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Meeting of the Governing Body 
 

To be held on Tuesday 24 May 2022, 1.45pm – 3.30pm. 
 

THIS MEETING WILL BE HELD VIRTUALLY DUE TO THE  
CURRENT HEALTH SITUATION 

 
AGENDA 

 
1. Welcome and Introduction   

I Pattison, chair 
  

    
2. Apologies for Absence   
    
3. Declarations of Interest   
    
4. Minutes of the previous meeting held on 22 March 

2022  
 Enclosure 

    
4.1 
 

Matters arising from the minutes and action log 
 

 Enclosure 
 

5. Notification of Items of Any other business   
    
6. Question Time 

Members of the public may raise issues of general 
interest that relate to items on the agenda. The chair’s 
discretion is final on the matters discussed and 
timescale. 

  

    
7. 
 
7.1 
 
 
 
7.2 
 
 
8. 
 
8.1 
 
 
8.2 
 
 
 
 

Items of Quality and Safety 
 
Minutes of the Joint Quality and Safety Committee 
meeting held on 8 February 2022 
P Harle 
 
Quality and Safety Update 
A Fox 
 
Items of Governance and Assurance 
 
Performance Report 
S Watson  
  
Better Care Fund (BCF) year-end technical 
submission 
S Watson 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
Enclosure 
 
 
 
Enclosure 
 
 
 
 
Enclosure 
 
 
Enclosure 
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8.3 
 
 
8.4 
 
 
8.5 
 
 
8.6 
 
 
 
8.7 
 
 
8.8 
 
 
 
8.9 
 
 
8.10 
 
 
8.11 
 
 
8.12 
 
 
9. 
 
9.1 
 
 
9.2 
 
 
9.3 
 
 
9.4 
 
 
9.5 
 
 

Finance report year ended 2021/22 
D Chandler 
 
Annual Accounts 2021/22 
D Chandler 
 
Sub-committee end of year reviews 
D Elliott 
 
CCG Annual Report 2021/22 including Annual 
Governance Statement 
D Gallagher 
 
Management Letter of representation 
D Gallagher 
 
Internal Audit Annual Report and Head of Internal 
Audit Opinion 
G Robson 
 
Audit Completion Report 
C Waddell 
 
Approval of annual accounts and annual report 
I Pattison 
 
Governing Body Assurance Framework 
D Elliott 
 
ICB Draft Constitution 
D Gallagher 
 
Items for sub-committee assurance 
 
Minutes of the Executive Committee meeting held 
on 1 March 2022 
 
Minutes of the Executive Committee meeting held 
on 5 April  2022 
 
Minutes of the Audit and Risk Committee meeting 
held on 11 January 2022 
 
Minutes of the Primary Care Commissioning 
Committee meeting held on 24 February 2022 
 
Minutes of the Patient and Public Involvement 
Committee meeting held on 8 March 2022 
 

Enclosure 
 
 
Enclosure 
 
 
Enclosure 
 
 
Enclosure 
 
 
 
Enclosure 
 
 
Enclosure 
 
 
 
Enclosure 
 
 
Verbal 
 
 
Enclosure 
 
 
Enclosure 
 
 
 
 
Enclosure 
 
 
Enclosure 
 
 
Enclosure 
 
 
Enclosure 
 
 
Enclosure 
 
 

10. Items for Information Only 
 

 
 

 

10.1 
 
 
10.2 

Accountable Officer’s Report 
D Gallagher 
 
Minutes of the Northern CCG Joint Committee 

 Enclosure 
 
 
Enclosure 
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meeting held on 14 April 2022 

11. Any other business   
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GOVERNING BODY 

 
Minutes of the meeting held on Tuesday 22 March 2022, at 1.45pm 

by Virtual Video Conferencing 

Minutes 
 

 
Present: Dr Ian Pattison, Chair 
 Dr Raj Bethapudi, Elected GP Member 
 Mrs Debbie Burnicle, Lay Member PPI 

 Mr Derek Cruickshank, Secondary Care Clinician 
Mrs Ann Fox, Director of Nursing and Quality 

 Mrs Pat Harle, Lay Member Primary 
Dr Fadi Khalil, Elected GP Member 
Mrs Tarryn Lake, Associate Director of Finance on behalf of Mr 
David Chandler  
Dr Tracy Lucas, Elected GP Member 
 Mr Chris Macklin, Lay Member Audit 
Dr Saira Malik Elected GP Member 

         
    
In Attendance: Dr Claire Bradford, Medical Director 
 Mr Eric Harrison, Lead Practice Manager 
 Mrs Clare Nesbit, Director of  People and Primary Care 

Ms Gerry Taylor, Executive Director Public Health and Integrated 
Commissioning, Sunderland County Council 
Mrs Jan Thwaites, minutes 

 
2022/22 Welcome and Introductions 

 
The Chair welcomed everyone to the meeting, informing those present 
that the meeting would be recorded. This was to support administrative 
accuracy and for robust governance. There were no objections to the use 
of the recording device. 

2022/23 Apologies for Absence 
 

Apologies had been received from Dr Neil O'Brien, Accountable Officer, 
Mr David Chandler, Deputy Chief Officer/Director of Finance and Ms 
Deborah Cornell, Head of Corporate Affairs 

 
The Chair confirmed that the meeting was quorate. 
 

2022/24 Declarations of Interest 
 

Mrs Harle declared that she holds a post as a lay member at 
South Tyneside CCG.  The Chair accepted the declaration 
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and noted this should be a standard item on the agenda. 
 

Mr Macklin declared that he had recently been appointed as a non-  
executive elect for North Tees and Hartlepool Foundation Trust. The 
contractual arrangements between the two bodies was not material and he 
would continue in the dual roles for the next 3 months. This should be a 
standard item on the agenda. 

 
 Conflicts were raised for the GP members present in relation to item    
2022/32  Clinical Leadership proposed model. The Chair accepted the 
declaration and noted the GPs could take part in the discussion. 

 

2022/25 Minutes of the previous meeting held on 25 January 2022 
 

Mrs Burnicle noted that she was not in attendance at the last meeting but 
as  a voting member of the Governing Body. 

   
The minutes of the meeting held on 25 January 2022 were APPROVED as 
an accurate record.   

 
2022/26 Matters arising from the minutes 
  

In relation to the Section 75 agreement  the hospital charge programme 
would have to be included as a mechanism to transport funding to the 
Local Authority for the costs of packages of care. The Governing Body 
were asked to agree for this to be added to the agreement and for the 
Accountable Officer to sign off the additional variation of approximately 
£9m of resource which was within the national framework. 
 
Ms Taylor noted that the agreement had been presented  to the Health 
and Wellbeing Board meeting the previous week and  if it had been 
changed they would need to take Chairs action to sign off. 

 
There were no further matters arising from the minutes. 
 

2022/27 Notification of Items of any other business 
 
 There were no items of other business. 
 
2022/28 Question Time 
 
 There were no questions from members of the public. 
 
2022/29 Patient Story 
 

In summary the story had been shared by the patient wife. This 
gentleman had been born in the South East of England but had lived in 
Sunderland for the past 27 years. He lives with a number of health 
problems including congenital hearing loss for which he wears hearing 
aids. 
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 Whilst acknowledging that Covid had been a challenging time for 
particularly for appointments but the way in which appointments had 
been delivered through general practice, audiology and diabetes 
management had significantly enhanced both the husband and wife's 
experience. He has been able to have his appointment both on screen or 
over the telephone being able to utilise hearing aids or ear buds with the 
benefit of no extra background noise. He has been able to sit and take 
notes to ensure he was clear on any clinical management plan.  
 
They recognise that these changes on consulting were not for everyone it 
had distinct advantages for both of them.  
 
Sometimes he had been bypassed in clinics as he had not heard his 
name being shouted out. Another advantage was that he was able to  
lipread when on screen as no masks were being work therefore he was 
able to receive detailed information that he may have previously missed. 
 
It was highlighted that it was recognising these unexpected 
improvements for patients with some communication difficulties as a 
positive experience. 
 
Whilst recognising the challenges of a blended approach this may be 
opening up services more effectively for people.  
 
It was noted that this was an example to evaluate what had been gained 
as well. The new style consultation was also found to be more 
convenient for people who work or  work away from home. 

 
Action: Dr Pattison to write a letter of thanks to the patient for sharing 
their story. 

 
2022/30 Minutes of the Quality and Safety Committee meeting held on 14 

December 2021 
 
 It was explained that a decision had been made to make this meeting a 

focussed session on the vaccination clinics. The Governing Body were 
assured that the key issues, risks mitigated had been received by the 
committee 

  
 An observation was made of the greater level of scrutiny and challenge      

at the last Joint Quality and Safety Committee meeting, the first class 
reporting and the dedication of the members of the committee. A plea 
was made that going forward into the ICB this was not lost. 

  
 The Governing Body RECEIVED the minutes for Assurance. 

 
  2022/31 Quality and Safety Update 

 
 The update gave a summary of key issues pulled together across quality 

and safety. 
 

 Attention was drawn to the following areas of activity that the team 
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undertook from an assurance point of view: 
 

 The recurrent funding for the Health Navigator post for Adult Multi 
Agency Safeguarding Hub (MASH) had been agreed. It was noted that 
this was something that was not in place in other areas. This service had 
been funded for some time with non-recurrent funding 

 
 In regard to Commissioning for Quality and Innovation (CQUIN) and the  

NHS people strategy. The CCG wished to invest in workforce whereas 
the CQUIN indicator focussed on flu uptake. The Executive Nurses would 
escalate this  to NHSE/I to think about how to recruit and retain staff. 

 
 In relation to the patient safety update and the new patient safety incident 

response framework this was expected shortly and had been piloted and 
tested in other areas and slightly amended due to feedback received. 

 
 The next iteration of the Ockenden report was expected with a large 

focus on maternity services. In regard to the maternity survey there had 
been a decline across many areas due mainly to the Covid pandemic. 
The majority of women however had reported positive experiences in 
their own maternity care rather than the larger indicators. 

  
 A comment was made that it was good to see a focus on maternity and it 

would be  good to work together on some of the Public Health outcomes. 
 
 In relation to the infection prevention and control team, this had been 

discussed at the Health Protection Board. The Local Authority were 
seeing general  Covid outbreaks and also in care homes. A question was 
raised on what was the feeling of the team at the minute in regard to the  
level of resource. In response it was noted that Mrs Fox would be 
meeting with the team to explore these issues. Following this meeting a 
broader discussion as a system may be required. 

   
 It was explained that at a recent Quality Review Group with South 

Tyneside and Sunderland NHS Foundation Trust (STSFT )the discussion 
had been focussed on maternity. The outcome of this would come  
through to the  Joint QSC in due course.  

 
 The Governing Body RECEIVED the report and NOTED the content. 

   
   2022/32 Clinical Leadership Proposed model and approach for Sunderland 
 
 The purpose of this paper is to outline proposals for the clinical 

leadership model in Sunderland and to request the Governing Body to 
endorse the proposed clinical leadership model and note the direction of 
travel for ICB arrangements recognising the model will evolve over time.  

  
 Conflicts of interest had been declared by the GP members for this item, 

this would be managed accordingly. 
 
 Key points of the report were drawn to the Governing Body's attention, 

these included the following: 
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 The report built on the significant work already carried out in Sunderland. 

Concern was noted that with the abolition of the CCG and the transfer of 
functions to the ICB this could diminish the current clinical leadership 
model.  

 This model would hopefully secure the clinical model at place. Significant  
engagement had been undertaken with clinical colleagues across the 
patch who had all endorsed the approach. Clinical leadership covered a 
number of roles including nursing, quality and safeguarding, the 
pharmacy workstream, the networks and secondary care work and the 
medical leadership workstream. The Sunderland integration agenda had 
also been included looking at the ATB clinical leadership and the 
integrated commissioning work. The model builds on the expectations 
and supported the design principles of the ICS.  

 
 Significant investment had been made in clinical leadership roles 

including non-medical roles of  £1.26m,  any future model would not 
exceed this cost. Separate consideration was required in relation to a 
training budget that could be utilised at place to support current and 
emerging clinical leaders to develop; a separate paper would be 
presented to the Governing Body on this. 

 
 The paper proposed a clinical leadership structure to meet the national 

and regional expectations and intended to support the future place 
based arrangements that were in development. This would look at the 
governance arrangements proposed and as they evolved this would 
ensure that future clinical leadership would be incorporated at each level 
of governance decision making. Further work was required to determine 
the clinical leadership for Together for Children. 

 
 In regard to the ICB clinical role and the primary care clinical lead for the 

Together for Children Group clarity around the roles was requested. In 
response it was noted that the primary care role would need to be 
worked through with the ICB as it evolved. Dr O'Brien had been involved 
and was supportive of the paper in his role as Medical Director. 
Discussions around the structure below the medical director were being 
held, this would be an ICB appointed clinical role.  

 
 Support for the paper and the direction of travel to help influence going 

forward was given. 
 
 A question was raised if the document could be reframed to include both 

clinical and professional leadership to retain the focus on clinical 
leadership but broaden out to incorporate a wider perspective.  

  
 A comment was made that at the moment Together for Children was 

under the  governance arrangements for place which did not include 
everything that was done for children, this maybe reframed as well as 
developing arrangements under the governance arrangements going 
forward. Workshops were being held to work through this detail, this may 
look different in the future. 
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 It was noted that these were valid points and acknowledged the broad 
spectrum of clinicians and non-clinical staff, the report had tried to 
capture all of this but noted that some of the language could change to 
incorporate this.  

 
 A question was raised in relation to the timeline for an ICB structure on 

clinical output. In response it was noted that this was being worked 
through with the Executive Board Directors looking at their individual 
structures which linked in with the functions around the operating model. 
No timeframes had been release around structures and models although 
it was noted that places could be different. CCG's could put forward what 
their models could be and would be considered as long as they were 
flexible enough to evolve as the ICS/ICB evolved. 

 
 The report followed the key principle discussed as being required and 

the importance of the  clinical leadership role and structure going 
forward. A question was raised if this was different to other areas. 

. 
 In response it was explained that there were variables across the 

patches in relation to the amount of greater resource and investment 
around roles and costs. Sunderland CCG were in a good and robust 
place to argue that the placed based arrangements were affordable, 
sustainable and delivered outcomes. 

  
 The Chair noted that clinical leadership was important from both care 

and clinical services role and also a public perspective. For the purpose 
of the paper it should be roles and functions and not individuals that 
were looked at. 

 
       The Non-conflicted Governing Body: 
 

• ENDORSED the model of clinical leadership outlined in section 8 and 
were cognisant of the ATB model as shown in section 5.2 of the paper 
and how they complimented each other. 

• AGREED that the proposed model would not exceed the cost of the 
current clinical leadership model. 

• NOTED that further work was required to determine clinical leadership 
of Together for Children as part of the overall place-based model 

• NOTED the direction of travel in line with ICB arrangements and that 
this clinical leadership model would flex and evolve in-line with ICB 
developments. 

 
 2022/33  Performance Report 

  
The report provided the Governing Body with an exception report in 
relation to the current position for the CCG against the NHS Single 
Oversight Framework requirements. 
 
Attention was drawn to the key highlights from the report, these included 
the following areas: 

 

• Cancer performance was in a volatile position both regional and 
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national trends reflected this. Apart from one Sunderland were 
below all national standards in terms of performance. The CCG 
were working  with the Northern Cancer Alliance to instigate new 
recovery measures to improve performance 

 

• Children's mental health – continue to have over 18 week waiters 
and a high level of referrals into these services. They were 
sustaining a relatively  low level of breaches in comparison to pre 
pandemic. A lot of work had been undertaken to reform the 
system and look at new additions including a single point of 
access for children and the Mental Health Investment Standard 
(MHIS) 

• Improvements had been made in elective services, Sunderland 
continued to have the best performance in the region for elective 
recovery 

• A number of 104 week waiters had been identified, they were not 
patients that had been commissioned by Sunderland CCG but by 
NHSE and were therefore identified in our waiting list  

• Inroads were being made into diagnostic waiting times, currently  
35% of patients were waiting over 6 weeks, this was improving 
significantly. Figures for March showed a reduction of 50% 

• Pressure areas were in  echo cardiography but additional capacity 
had been created within the system 

• Health checks for serious mental health and learning disabilities  
continued to be a focus in the CCG and were driving towards the 
national trajectories 

• Current performance was strong for SMI, a lot work had been 
carried out in February and March to achieve the identified 
trajectories 

 
It was confirmed that radiology figures from the Primary Care Centres 
were not included in the report but there had been a lot of work ongoing 
with x-ray facilities and looking at what the future access to those 
services would look like. It was explained that the standard historic 
timescale to report was 2 weeks although this had been variable. The 
Trust were reporting a 4-6 week turnaround for reporting. 
 
Action: Mr Watson to pick up the issue of timescales around reporting of 
x-rays with the Trust. 

 
A new diagnostic centre had been planned for the South Tyneside 
Hospital site which should ensure more capacity than seen before. 
 
In regard to cancer waits – does the CCG monitor how far outside of the 
target the performance is, was this tracked. In response it was noted that 
the information was available and could be incorporated into the next 
report to the Governing Body. 
 
Dr Bradford explained that weekly reporting went to the national cancer 
team which was co-ordinated by the Northern Cancer Alliance to monitor 
performance and waiting times and looked at high volume groups. The 
reporting was a few days and not a month, there was a plan to move to a 
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faster diagnosis standard and not a 2 week wait. The patients would get 
seen and investigated within 28 days with a diagnosis and a care plan. 
 
The Governing Body NOTED the position and progress against each 
indicator in the NHS Single Oversight Framework and the risks to 
performance as a result of Covid 19. 
 

2022/34  Finance Report 
 

  The purpose of the report was to present to the Governing Body a 
summary of the financial position and year end forecast as at month 11 
(period ending 28th February 2022). 

 
 The key headlines from the report were drawn out, these included the 

following: 
 

o The CCG were delivering all financial key performance indicators 
(KPIs) and forecast a £3.6m surplus which was £3m above the 
plan 

o NHS England had confirmed that for 2021/22 surpluses would be  
Retained as part of the CCGs cumulative surplus position 

o A number of allocations were still being received for additional 
schemes 

o There was an over spend on Continuing Healthcare (CHC) of  
£1.1m which was linked to the increased packages of care and the 
long term impact of Covid 

o Mental health were forecasting an over spend which was linked to 
Section 117 package increase costs 

o In terms of risks and mitigations prescribing and packages had 
been removed or reduced as it was expected that these would be 
managed for the remainder of 2021/22 

o Assurance had been received from the Sustainability Delivery 
Group (SDG) on the delivery of the £3.5m productivity plan.  

 
 In regard to the drawdown approach where CCGs had been guaranteed 

drawdown access. A national call had confirmed that there would be a 
confirmation exercise to collect information where there was a 
guaranteed drawdown at a CCG level before consolidating to the ICB 
brought forward positions. 

 
The CCG were on track but there had been an inference on the 
anticipated allocations yet to be received. Assurance was sought where 
allocations were still to be received that any variation could be managed . 
It was confirmed that NHSE had a process to lock down the numbers 
within the financial ledger for any anticipated allocations and it is not 
expected that this will vary from expected values as a result. 

 
 The Governing Body NOTED the financial update. 

 
  2022/35 Sunderland Partnership Memorandum of Understanding (MOU)  
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The purpose of the Memorandum of Understanding (MoU) was to 

establish a framework for the discharge of delegated statutory duties, 

budgets, and outcomes between the following organisations with regards 

to integrated commissioning and provision of health and care services to 

improve outcomes for patients and residents and improve population 

health in Sunderland. 

 

The MOU had been presented to agree and sign off with partners as part 

of the place based arrangements that were being developed. This would 

also be signed off by the Local Authority and the Foundation Trusts as 

part of the working arrangements.. 

A question was raised that the CCG would not exist in 3 months' time – 

would it not be for the ICB to sign up for Sunderland as the 

commissioning body going forward. Ultimately the MOU would impact on 

ways of working going forward and would need to go through a formal 

governance process for sign off. The Governing Body would sign up as a 

direction of travel as to what the CCG would want in place. 

 

The Governing Body ENDORSED the memorandum of understanding.  

 
2022/36 Minutes of the Executive Committee meeting held on 11 January   

2022 
 
  The Governing Body RECEIVED the minutes. 

 
2022/37 Minutes of the Executive Committee meeting held on 1 February 

2022 
 
  The Governing Body RECEIVED the minutes. 

 
2022/38 Minutes of the Patient and Public Involvement Committee meeting 

held on 9 November 2021 
  The Governing Body RECEIVED the minutes. 
 
2022/39  Accountable officer's Report 
   The report gave an update from the Accountable Officer on key issues 

  that affected Sunderland. 
  

There would be a North and South area team in regard to wider planning 
for services, it was unclear what that now meant, there was a need for 
clarity on this area. It was explained that there had been savings on the 
third post which would go into strengthening more place based 
arrangements. It was noted that some of the issues raised had been 
discussed at a recent Health and Wellbeing Board meeting. 
 
A comment was made in regard to the prescribing project developments 
and output, this was good to see. 

 
  The Governing Body RECEIVED the report. 
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2022/40  Minutes of the Northern Joint CCG Committee meeting held on 10 

February 2022 
 

  In regard to the Covid medicines delivery unit issues and the need for a 
longer term solution. It was noted that there was an issue in access in 
community. There was a process to go through for eligible patients and 
have local supplies that could be distributed. There were some logistical 
issues for the clinicians to get the message across on access etc. 

   
  The Governing Body RECEIVED the minutes. 
 
2022/41  Any other business 
 

 There was no other business. 
 

2022/42  Date of next meeting 
  Tuesday 24 May 2022, Virtual meeting. 



                                                                  NHS Official                                              Item: 4.1      

              

 
1 

NHS SCCG Governing Body Action Log      

NHS Sunderland CCG Governing Body Action Log   
 

 

Minute Reference Action Point Lead Timescale 

2022/29 Patient Story Dr Pattison to write a letter of thanks to the patient 
for sharing their story. 

IP Completed 

2022/33 Performance Report Mr Watson to pick up the issue of timescales 
around reporting of x-rays with the Trust. 

SW Following the meeting 
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Joint Quality and Safety Committee 

8 February 2022, 9am – 12:00 
Via Microsoft Teams  

 
 
Present:  
  Mrs Pat Harle, Lay Member STCCG/SCCG (Chair)  

Mrs Debbie Burnicle, Lay Member for PPI SCCG 
Mr Tarquin Cross, Secondary Care Clinician STCCG (joined at 10:30)  
Mr Derek Cruickshank, Secondary Care Clinician SCCG 
Mr Steve Edgeley, Safeguarding Nurse Children SCCG 
Miss Kirstie Hesketh, Head of Quality and Safety STCCG/SCCG 
Mrs Ann Fox, Executive Director of Nursing Quality and Safety SCCG 
Dr Saira Malik, Executive GP SCCG 
Ms Helen Osborn, Senior Clinical Quality Officer NECS 
Mrs Victoria Playforth, Head of CHC and Complex Cases SCCG   
Ms Jeanette Scott, Executive Director of Nursing Quality and Safety STCCG 
Dr Matthew Walmsley, Clinical Chair STCCG 

 
In Attendance: 
   
  Mr Connor Dooley, Clinical Quality Nurse, SCCG (for item 2021/131 only) 

Mrs Jane Leighton, Governance Manager SCCG/STCCG 
  Ms Eleanor Hardy, PA SCCG (minutes) 
 
 
2022/01  Welcome and Introductions 
 

The Chair welcomed everyone present to the meeting of the Joint Quality and 
Safety Committee.  
 

 
2022/02  Apologies for Absence 
     

Dr Claire Bradford, Medical Director SCCG 
Mr Paul Cuskin, Lay Member STCCG 
Mrs Wendy Proctor, Designated Nurse Safeguarding Adults SCCG 
Ms Gerry Taylor, Executive Director of Public Health and Integrated 
Commissioning 

 
 
2022/03   Declarations of Interest 
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The Chair reminded all present that if any declarations became apparent 
during the meeting these should be declared at the time of the relevant 
agenda item.  
 

• The Chair declared an interest in that she was a lay member with 
both South Tyneside CCG (STCCG) and Sunderland CCG (SCCG). 
This would be a standard declaration of interest item going forward.  

• Miss Hesketh declared an interest as she is Head of Quality for 
South Tyneside and Sunderland CCGs. Mrs Leighton declared an 
interest as she was the Governance Manager for STCCG and 
SCCG.   

• Ms Osborn declared an interest as she was NECS Clinical Quality 
support to both South Tyneside CCG and Sunderland CCG.  

• Dr Malik declared an interest due to her substantive role as GP in 
Sunderland. 

• Dr Walmsley declared an interest due to his substantive role as GP 
in South Tyneside.  

• Mrs Thompson declared an interest as she was seconded to NHSE 
on a part time basis.  

 
The Chair advised there were no material issues and declared the meeting as 
quorate. 

 
 
2022/04 Minutes of the Joint Quality and Safety Committee held on 14 December 

2021 
 

Subject to one amendment of wording and typos, the minutes of the meeting 
held on 14 December 2021 were AGREED as a true and accurate record of 
the meeting. 

 
 
2022/05  Matters Arising  
 
 Mrs Scott referred to page 3 of the minutes and advised that the extraordinary 

meeting with South Tyneside Safeguarding Partnership to ensure that all 
partners had the correct practice and procedures in place with regards to 
looking after, safeguarding and protecting children, had taken place week 
commencing 31 January 2022.  The session had been well attended and 
received.  An update on actions taken would be included in the next 
Safeguarding Report.  

 
 The Chair referred to page 15 of the minutes (any other business) and queried 

whether there was an update with regard to Avian Flu at Washington Wildlife 
Centre. In response Miss Hesketh confirmed this had been effectively 
managed and a process for Avian Flu was in place.  

 
The chair referred to page 15 of the minutes (any issues for escalation to GB) 
and queried what the position was with regard to the risk in relation to 
CNTWFT compliance with their statutory safeguarding adults training.  Mrs 
Scott, who was the lead for the CNTWFT Quality Review Group across the 
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patch, had composed a letter on behalf of the three Chairs of the different 
localities, to CNTW FT, expressing their concern and requesting a detailed 
action plan with clear and appropriate timelines and plans to be implemented 
to ensure that compliance was maintained going forward before the end of 
March 2022.  If this assurance was not provided, this issue would be 
escalated to the Quality Surveillance Group. 
 
The Chair noted that assurance was being sought through the appropriate 
route.  

   
 
2022/06  Action Log  
 

Action 6 and 11-17  had been updated, completed and closed.  Actions 8 
would remain on the action log and an update provided prior to the next 
meeting on 12 April 2022. 
 
Action: S Golightly 
 
 

  QUALITY AND GOVERNANCE 
 

 

2022/07 Quality and Safety Risk Management Reports  
 

The report provided the committee with the latest update of the quality and 
safety risks in each CCG area as of 25 January 2022.  
 
There were currently six risks documented for STCCG; one new risk had been 
added during the reporting period, in relation to access to digital records, and 
no risks had been closed.  
 
There were currently 14 risks documented for SCCG; no new risk had been 
added during the reporting period and no risks had been closed. 
 
The Chair asked whether the risk with regard to access of digital records 
should also be added to SCCG Risk Register.  Mrs Fox noted that this was an 
issue for the CCGs rather than a risk as mitigation could only be provided by 
NHSE.  Both CCGs needed to be aware this was included on the NHSE Risk 
Register,  and an update would be provided in both Safeguarding Reports.  
 
Mr Edgeley noted this was a national issue and as part of NHSE mitigation, 
they were advising CCGs to consider adding this to their Risk Registers. 
When information and updates were received from NHSE and if CCGs were 
not assured, this was the time when the risk should be added to both CCGs 
Risk Register.  
 
It was noted in relation to SCCG Risk Register, the review date for the risk 
regarding Quality of Commissioned Services (Children's) was 15 December 
2021 yet no update had been provided.  Mr Edgeley apologised and assured 
the committee that this risk was one of the key priorities of work that was 
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being undertaken and managed and would rectify the omittance of an update 
on the Risk Register.  

 
In relation to STCCG risk 2381 (Designated Dr Roles), Mrs Scott advised a 
meeting had been held with STSFT and significant progress had been made.  
There was now an agreed Memorandum of Understanding which would go 
alongside the specification around the Designated Dr cover.  This had been 
agreed by STSFT and STCCG and now needed to go through STSFT internal 
governance process.  The committee could be assured required actions had 
been completed and an agreement was in place.  
  
The Chair requested that review dates for both CCGs risks were responded 
to, and an update provided as required.   

 
The Joint Quality and Safety Committee RECEIVED the reports and NOTED 
the content. 

 
 
  PATIENT SAFETY 
 
2022/08  Patient Safety Specialist Briefing  
 

The report provided the committee with a brief overview of any information, 
risk or concern that had been shared through the new patient safety specialist 
(PSS) programme since the last meeting. 
 
Ms Osborn advised patient safety specialists had been contacted yesterday to 
start to look at numbers for traininng at each level and to provide feedback 
 
With regard to item 4 of the report, Update on Patient Safety Incident 
Response Framework (PSIRF), it was queried whether there was a relevant 
verbal update available.  Miss Hesketh advised the main Serious Incident 
componment supporting the framework would not be released until late 
Spring.  There had been a number of pilots successfully in place across the 
country which would inform the PSIRF. Once the PSIRF was released, there 
would be a timeline of one year to introduce the system and new processess, 
which may put current processess at risk as the CCG looked to adopt any 
new processess outlined in the PSIRF.   
 
It was noted it would be a challenge moving from the currrent framework and 
there was a lot of uncertainty with regard to what was being done at different 
levels.  

 
It was noted there could be very significant changes ahead that would need 
time given to implement but that it was unlikely that any new  resouces to 
enact the framwork would be provided.  As an organisation we needed to 
consider whether we could commit to making these changes as a system and 
if we could not this would need to be added to our Risk Registers going 
forward. 
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The Joint Quality and Safety Committee RECEIVED the briefing for 
information  
 
 

2022/09 STCCG Quality Strategy and Action Plan 
 
  Miss Hesketh provided a verbal update to the committee.  
 

It was anticipated a national Quality Framework for the ICB may be released 
soon and if so would be influnetial in directing a new Quality strategy, for now 
the CCGs current startegy remained in place and was extended intil the end 
of March at a previoue meeting.  
   
This item was originally on the agenda as part of a wrap up session for the 
closure of CCGs and subsequent ICB transition but the timeframe for this had 
moved to June 2022. Therefore it was acknowledged by members that the  
Quality Action Plan remained ongoing.  The CCGs had no control over items 
such as the PSIRF timescales  therefore they remain on the action plan as 
open actions and would be revisited  as part of any wrap up session taking 
place at future Joint Quality and Safety Committee  meetings.  
 
Mrs Scott advised she was the CCG Executive Director of Nursing Quality and 
Safety representative sitting on the Clinical Leadership workstream so was 
aware of the work carried out to date. It was not clear yet what the level of 
delegation would be and who would hold responsibility.  The Medical Director 
and Director of Quality and Safety posts were currently in the process of being 
recruited to.  Those two post profiles mirrored the areas of repsonsibility of 
each other and they would be demonstrating their leadership and how they 
wanted to see things in the future.  The role of the Clinical Leadership 
workstream was to raise suggestions/options on what the future could look 
like and offer support.  
 
Mrs Scott felt there would be some regional objectives and the opportunity for 
place based arrangements to add some very specific elements to them if 
relevant. 
 
A discussion took place around the transition and beyond June 2022 and it 
was noted that Place based arrangements regarding quality and safety 
responsibility be identified as soon as possible.  The Chair asked that this 
concern was noted in the one page Quality paper submitted to both Governing 
Bodies.  
 
Action: Miss Hesketh  
 
The Chair PROPOSED and the Joint Quality and Safety Committee AGREED  
this item would be removed from the agenda as it was business as usual and 
brought back to the committee as and when there was further information 
available. 
 

                                                                                                                                                                            
QUALITY IN COMMISSIONED SERVICES  
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2022/10 Quality Assurance Exception Report  
 

The report outlined any key risks to quality for the CCGs’ main commissioned 
providers, as well as actions and related assurances, whilst outlining any 
contractual changes included in the providers’ standard contracts. In addition 
to this the report detailed information regarding primary care incident reporting 
on the Safeguard Incident & Risk Management System (SIRMS). 
 
Ms Osborn highlighted that staffing pressures was the main issue particularly 
in relation to midwifery and closure of the midwife led unit at South Tyneside. 
STSFT was contacting all women that were impacted and plans were in place 
for those women to be diverted elsewhere.   
 
With regard to NEAS, a system wide Handover Escalation Protocol had been 
developed in partnership with clinical leads, CCGs and NHS England for 
discussion, to support improvements in handover delays. 

 
Miss Hesketh referred to the Infection Prevention and Control slide within the 
presentation.  In reference to the Avian Flu process, last week a care home in 
South Tyneside also encountered an outbreak of a group A streptococcal 
infection.  A response was swiftly, put in place around antibiotic prophylaxis. 
As a result of this outbreak Miss Hesketh had asked UKHSA for a list of what 
else we could potentially see coming up in the care home environment around 
prophylaxis so we could put in place appropriate Standard Operating 
Procedures (SOPs). In this incident Care Home staff were  recommended to 
take on a course of prophylaxis antibiotics. However, staff had pushed back 
as the cost of a prescription was more than some of their hourly rates of pay. 
A resolution had been reached by the local Public Health Team funding this 
element. Miss Hesketh would take how prescriptions were funded from a 
health protection perspective to the HCAI Board tomorrow for discussion and 
to understand if there was a consistent approach. 
 
Mrs Scott noted with regard to staffing pressures in midwifery, this was a 
national and regional problem and STSFT was not the only Trust affected. 
Added to this issue there was a problem in South Tyneside with more than 
50% staff absence in the Community Midwifery Unit therefore cover 
arrangements had to be put in place with Sunderland Community Midwifery 
team. 
 
The Chair queried whether there had been any patient feedback in relation to 
this and Mrs Scott advised that to date, all the women affected had been 
happy to deliver their babies in Sunderland.  
 
Mrs Scott noted that Primary Care colleagues had not been informed of the 
closure and the CCG had taken action to do this. This was an issue that 
needed to be monitored closely in terms of continuity of care. 
 
It was noted it was concerning there was not a date for the South Tyneside 
Midwifery Unit to be reopened and the national focus should be to ensure 
recruitment and jobs being filled.  
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Mrs Scott advised that steps had been taken to appoint a Head of  Midwifery, 
who was being supported by a consultant midwife.  There was a national 
shortage of midwives and there were the same issues as other groups of 
health staff to get people to come and work in Sunderland and South 
Tyneside.  
 
Mrs Fox advised the last STSFT Quality Review Group meeting had been 
stood down due to staff pressures.  The next meeting was scheduled for 10 
March 2022 and this issue would be raised for discussion on the agenda.  
 
It was noted that staffing pressures was an ongoing issue and not just in 
midwifery.  Support was needed across the patch in terms of quality of care 
and outcomes to come together and try to resolve these problems on an 
ongoing basis. In response assurance was given that this was in place with 
the LMS and the challenge was there was lots of red in the daily reporting 
around maternity staffing.  The mechanisms for looking at what we could do 
collectively were in place but unfortunately were very small at the moment, but 
this should not prevent us from challenging this.   
 
Miss Hesketh advised that Trusts had received a letter on 25 January 2022 
from NHSE as a follow up from the Okenden Report.  Trusts had been 
requested to review their assurance assessment tool and provide updates to 
their own Boards before the end of March 2022.  Trusts had also been asked 
to ensure they had discussion and oversight of their progress against the 
seven main actions outlined in the first Okenden Report including their 
maternity service workforce plans, to be shared with ICS and the LMS. 
Feedback from this would come through the STSFT Quality Review Group 
and would provide  oversight and input on how this was being tackled as a 
system.   
 
Mr Edgeley provided further assurance to the committee that Designated 
Professionals were offering a level of direct supervision and were looking 
extensively at learning.  Mr Edgley was currently supervising four midwives 
and feedback was they valued this process and did not want to be left in 
isolation.  
 
Mrs Thompson referred to the sepsis percentage deteriorating during the last 
two quarters in STSFT report and queried what STSFT was doing with regard 
to timely treatment of antibiotics.  In response it was noted that regular 
updates on sepsis were included in the STSFT Quality Reports provided to 
the Quality Review Group and this was something that was regularly 
discussed and monitored through that group.  
 
The Joint Quality and Safety Committee RECEIVED the report, NOTED the 
content and had sought clarification where necessary. 
 
 
  

2022/11  SCCG Care Home Quality Assurance Report 
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The report provided an overview by exception of quality risks, good practice, 
issues, or concerns relating to the care home sector across Sunderland.   
 
The impact of the Omicron variant had led to delays in some projects with key 
meetings being postponed due to staff redeployment, absence and service 
pressures. An example of this was the care home assurance tool pilot for the 
quality assurance program which had to be delayed due to the volume of 
outbreaks. It was hoped the tool would be piloted within the next two month. 
The Chair queried whether Mr Dooley had any concerns with regard to the 
delay of the pilot and in response Mr Dooley confirmed an event was 
scheduled to introduce the assurance toolkit to reduce any anxieties providers 
may have around the changes and invite a home to be part of a pilot scheme 
so it could be evaluated.  
 
It was queried what was new about the "new Care Home Early Response 
Team (CHER) " Mr Dooley explained this was a service that would go into 
services, provide information and leave on the same day.  This was not a 
long-term support service and would link in with those that were, such as the 
Challenging Behaviour Team.  Mr Dooley would share a presentation in 
relation to this to the committee following this meeting.  
 
Miss Hesketh had fedback to the Care Home Group there were a number of 
mental health models going into care homes and it was important to ensure 
the boundaries were understood. 
 
Mr Dooley highlighted one of the main issues for the CHER Team was they 
did not want to go into care homes and change medication for people with 
challenging behaviour, they wanted to go in with behavioral techniques.  
 
The Chair referred to the Covid impact causing delays on some projects and 
queried whether there were any other issues with regard to that.  Mr Dooley 
advised there was nothing significant to highlight.  
 
Dr Malik noted the most important thing was the patient and the coordination 
of care for patients.  The NHS tended to provide lots of services and 
information on these sometimes did not flow back to Primary Care. Whatever 
service was provided, Primary Care would very much appreciate coordination 
of information. Mr Edgeley noted this point was critical, and the CCG had 
asked CNTW to provide the level of assurance around the integrated model 
and in particular around people in crisis and complex case management as it 
was essential that all organisations responded effectively.  
 

  The Joint Quality and Safety Committee RECEIVED the report for assurance. 
 
 
 

2022/12 STCCG Quality of Care Sector Assurance Report  
 

The report provided the committee with assurance on the quality of care 
across the care home sector in South Tyneside detailing any areas of risk and 
opportunity. 
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Miss Hesketh advised that recuperation beds had been established in three 
care homes to support hospital discharges. Unfortunately, two of those homes 
had to close admissions due to Covid outbreaks and isolation. The change in 
guidance from 28 days to 14 days had been very helpful.  
 
There had been a significant increase of Covid cases in care homes but with 
very mild symptoms and no reported deaths.  
 
The vaccination rate in South Tyneside was excellent, however not so much 
with the flu vaccinations.  This was something that would be considered to 
ensure the right model was in place for next year.  
 
Occupation rates in care homes was up to 90% which unfortunately was 
causing some issues with the hospital discharge process.  
 
Assurance would be provided to the committee at the next meeting in April 
around the Help to Live at Home Service issues. 
 
There was an update in the report for the first time around the Enhance Care 
in Care Home modelling that was going on.  
 
It was commented that in relation to discussions held  today by the committee 
around coordination of care and Primary Care in terms of emergency 
response, South Tyneside had been looking at how they could work with the 
teams that linked with the PCNs and Enhanced Care in Care Homes as there 
were a lot of vulnerable people who would benefit from having an urgent 
community response.  This put urgent community response firmly in the 
Primary Care arena.  This was in the early stages of discussion. 
 
It was noted there may be residents in care homes that could have been 
rehabilitated to care in their own homes and it was queried whether this cohort 
was being looked at in more detail. Mrs Playforth advised that the 
development of Personal Health Budgets to discharge would help support 
families to take people back into their own homes.  The data needed to be 
looked at more closely.  From an assessment point of view, a greater acuity 
was being seen right at the front end, however when assessed the 
interpretation of their needs at the time of being in hospital was not the right 
perspective to take to then put them into nursing care or residential care  This 
was being looked at to identify how this could be facilitated and would help 
identify the scale of how many people were in nursing/residential care that 
could perhaps be cared for appropriately in their own homes. The return to 
face-to-face assessment would help with this.  
 
Mr Edgeley agreed with this and noted it was essential a discussion around 
this was held from a multi-agency perspective and would be a good action for 
our Designated Professionals for Safeguarding Adults to take this to both 
CCGs Safeguarding Adults Boards and raise as a question and the response 
would come back through future Safeguarding Reports. It was noted it was 
important to work around this as a system.  
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A query was raised as to how this could be done jointly and effectively with 
two Local Authorities and CCGs. 

 
Action: Designated Professionals to take these questions to both 
Safeguarding Adults Boards.  
 
In relation to working better and jointly in the community as a system, Dr Malik 
noted social isolation increased the chance of dying by 29%.  Most of the 
patients being admitted to hospital or who required intensive input were 
people with long term conditions that lived at home. Whilst entirely in favour of 
empowering people to stay in the environment they needed to be in, this 
information needed to be considered in the context of how we deliver health 
and social care as it was about people eating well, progressing well and 
sustaining their mental health in a positive manner.  This was why we needed 
to change community working as care staff visiting once a week or going to a 
club once a week was not going to sustain resolving social isolation or reduce 
harm to patients by not helping them in a progressive community manner.  Dr 
Malik asked the committee to take this challenge a little bit further to see how 
quality and safety reassurance can really play-in in a well-placed manner.  
The Chair noted that the committee had accepted this challenge.  
 
Mrs Playforth agreed and noted this what was about working together as a 
system. 
 
Mrs Scott advised a Care Rooms initiative had been proposed, managed by 
NECS which provided care and support for a fixed period of time.  This 
initiative was not being considered by both Local Authorities at the moment. It 
was noted that this initiative had been developed without local commissioners.  
A number of questions had been asked about this initiative but to date a 
response had not been received.  

 
The Joint Quality and Safety Committee RECEIVED the report for assurance. 
 
 
 

2022/13 STCCG Continuing Health Care Assurance Report 
 
 The report provided the committee with an overarching assurance report for 

Continuing Health Care in South Tyneside.  
 
 With regard to workforce pressures and redeploying of staff due to Covid, this 

was now recovering.  Following a skill-mix review, and the retirement of 
several staff, the CCGs new CHC workforce represented a cross range of 
nursing specialties, enhancing the workforce and its expertise. 

 
 The Chair referred to paragraph 3.2 of the report, workforce update and recent 

recruitment activity identifying a shortage of qualified and experienced 
applicants for CHC Nurse roles, in line with regional and national workforce 
issues, and queried what could be done at a local level about this and was this 
the same situation in Sunderland. Mrs Playforth advised not to the same 
extent; Sunderland had been able to bring in agency staff then recruit them to 
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the CHC Team so had a pretty solid workforce.  There was an offer across the 
ICS of mutual aid that South Tyneside could tap into. Mrs Scott thanked Mrs 
Playforth for this; however, South Tyneside was currently  reaching the 28-day 
target so mutual; aid was not needed at this point in time. The issue was about 
how the job was made interesting and attractive and attracted applicants from 
a broad spectrum of backgrounds and experience. Mrs Playforth advised that 
prior to the Pandemic, she had a meeting with Teesside and Sunderland 
Universities with regard to having nursing students placements. This would 
give the students an understanding of what CHC Nurses did and may be a 
career route for some of the students. Mrs Playforth was happy to share any 
of the conversations already held and would work with Mrs Golightly around 
this once we were out of the Covid period.  

 
 The Joint Quality and Safety Committee RECEIVED the report and NOTED: 

The successful achievement of national performance standards against a 
backdrop of significant system and workforce pressures and the impact of the 
CHC Team in broader system transformation, e.g., Enhanced Health in Care 
Homes 

 
 
2022/14 SCCG Continuing Healthcare and Packages of Care Report 
 
 The purpose of the report is to provide the committee with an update on the 

quality of Continuing Healthcare (CHC) service delivery across Sunderland. 
 
 As a result of the Covid 19 Omicron variant, the CHC team had supported the 

integrated discharge team and the vaccine booster program with nurse 
resource in December and January. 

 
 The Business As Usual (BAU) 28-day assessment pathway fell slightly below 

the 28-day timeframe KPI in Quarter 3 as a result of supporting the system 
and external workforce pressures but this had been recovered already. 

 
 Sunderland was in a positive place with regard to appeals and was now 

looking at the Business Intelligence Toolkit to gain an understanding of what 
the demographic now looked like and drill down to the stories behind the 
numbers.  

 
Patient stories were now being looked at particularly as assessments had 
returned to face to face.  It was anticipated a patient story would be included in 
the report for a future meeting.  

 
 A case was being prepared for consideration with regard to continued 

investment in the team to support future delivery and an update would be 
provided in a future report.   

 
 SCCG was sharing good practice with North East and North Cumbria (NENC) 

moving forward. 
 
 It was noted workforce pressures was a national issue and was a knock-on 

effect of the disruption caused through the Pandemic and the normal flow of 
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people looking for careers in the NHS. Also, some NHS staff were being 
deployed to other places of work away from their usual trajectories.  

 
 The Chair expressed her thanks to all teams across the CCGs on behalf of the 

committee for the amount of commitment and work being carried out given all 
of the current issues and workforce impact. The Chair asked that this was 
conveyed to all of the teams via the Executive Directors of Nursing Quality and 
Safety.  

 
 The Joint Quality and Safety Committee RECEIVED the report and NOTED 

the update and received assurance that progress was being made, the 
identified risks and issues were being managed and quality assurance 
mechanisms of commissioned services were developing further in line with 
recovery.  

 
 
2022/15 Commissioning for Quality and Innovation (CQUIN) 
 
 The report presented a brief overview of the 2022/23 Commissioning for 

Quality and Innovation (CQUIN) scheme to the committee.  
 
 Cumbria, Northumberland and Tyne & Wear Foundation Trust (CNTWFT) 

would automatically deliver all 5 Mental Health indicators excepting IAPT in 
South Tyneside. This was because South Tyneside CCG commission their 
IAPT service through STSFT (life cycle) not CNTWFT. Arrangements have 
been put in place to add the IAPT CQUIN to the life cycle contract with 
STSFT.    

 
 With regard to North East Ambulance Service Foundation Trust (NEASFT) the 

scheme for ambulance services only offered one CQUIN which is flu 
vaccination. The guidance suggested for providers with 3 or less indicators 
that local additional schemes could be developed. Therefore, provider 
management colleagues were reviewing the guidance to see how this could 
be applied to NEASFT and there were a number of proposals in the pipeline. 
This was a good opportunity to shape some of the system pressures on 
NEASFT.  

 
 The CCG had put forward five indicators to South Tyneside and Sunderland 

Foundation Trust (STSFT) which were:  
1. Acute & Community, CCG01: Flu vaccinations for frontline 

healthcare workers. 
2. Acute, CCG03: Recording of NEWS2 score, escalation time and 

response time for unplanned critical care admissions.  This would 
support the deteriorating patient conversation.  

3. Acute, CCG06: Anaemia screening and treatment for all patients 
undergoing major elective surgery. 

4. Acute, CCG08: Supporting patients to drink, eat and mobilise after 
surgery.  This would benefit and align to some work going on across 
the region in relation to hydration.  
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5. Community, CCG14: Assessment, diagnosis and treatment of lower 
leg wounds.  This would put the spotlight onto the pressure ulcer 
agenda and would support the National Wound Care Strategy.  

 
It was noted it was surprising not to see the "assess and document the 
pressure ulcer risks" indicator when there were so many pressure ulcers as 
serious incidents, and it was queried whether the lower leg indicator was more 
important because there were so many pressure ulcers from lower leg.  Miss 
Hesketh advised the trust had not chosen to put the "assess and document 
the pressure ulcer risks" indicator forward as a proposal as there was so much 
work already going on around this and the CCG was starting to see reductions 
through the Quality Reports presented to the STSFT QRG. It was good to see 
something from a community element that was different to what they were 
doing on a daily basis.  
 
It was queried with reference to "Flu vaccinations for frontline healthcare 
workers", as to why this was the only indicator in relation to staff and was this 
the correct thing to do as there was a key need to retain staff and this could 
be counterproductive.  It was clarified unfortunately in the CQUIN proposed 
there was not an alternative indicator to propose.  This could be fed back to 
NHSE saying we accept where we were now, but what was the intention to 
support and retain staff as everything the committee had looked at in terms of 
quality impact  had been workforce related without exception.  It was 
suggested that both CCGs mentioned to both Governing Bodies should NHSE 
be looking at considering a broader approach to CQUIN rather than being 
very clinically focused without looking at the wider impact of the NHS as an 
organisation. With regard to what we could influence before the CCGs ended, 
this could be put before for consideration moving forward.  
 
Action: Both Executive Directors of Nursing Quality and Safety to have a 
conversation with the Directors of People around this suggestion. 
 
The Chair queried who at STSFT were involved in the decisions put forward.  
Miss Hesketh advised this was the Medical Director, Clinical Effectiveness 
Teams and their Clinical Leads. The Chair asked when these indicators were 
put forward by STSFT, were there any concerns or rationale around them and 
Miss Hesketh confirmed there was not.  
 
The Chair asked the committee if they accepted the indicators proposed, with 
the "let's look future wise in terms of the workforce challenge" added.  It was 
noted, with regard to the previous discussion around flu vaccination being the 
only indicator in relation to staff,  it would be good to have a one-sided paper 
advising that the committee had discussed and agreed the indicators but 
wanted to make a suggestion through both Directors of People up to NHSE 
that should NHSE be looking at considering a broader approach to CQUIN 
rather than being very clinically focused without looking at the wider impact of 
the NHS as an organisation, then this could go in the Governing Body paper 
for both CCGs. This should also be included in the one page Quality summary 
submitted to both Governing Bodies.  
 
Action: Executive Nurses/Miss Hesketh 
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The Joint Quality and Safety Committee RECEIVED the report for information 
and AGREED the proposal indicators from STSFT. 

 
 

ITEMS FOR INFORMATION  
 
2022/16  SCCG Performance Report 
 

The Joint Quality and Safety Committee RECEIVED the report for information. 
 
 

2022/17 South Tyneside Alliance Executive Committee Integrated Quality and 
Provider Management Report 

 
  The Joint Quality and Safety Committee RECEIVED the report for information. 
 
 
2022/18  Cycle of Business (CoB) 
 

The Chair noted the CoB would be reviewed as things developed from a 
statutory perspective.  
 
The Joint Quality and Safety committee RECEIVED the Cycle of Business for 
information.  
 
 

2022/19 Joint Locality Cancer Group, Sunderland CCG and South Tyneside CCG 
minutes, 2 December 2021 

 
 The Joint Quality and Safety Committee RECEIVED the minutes for 

information. 
 
 
2022/20 South Tyneside and Sunderland Area Prescribing Committee minutes, 1 

December 2021 
 

The Joint Quality and Safety Committee RECEIVED the minutes for 
information. 
 
 

2022/21 Designated and Named Safeguarding Assurance Group Dashboard 
Meeting minutes, 11 November 2021 

 
The Joint Quality and Safety Committee RECEIVED the minutes for 
information.  
 
 

2022/22  Any issues for escalation  
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Items of escalation would be captured in the one-page paper submitted to 
both Governing Bodies.  
 
 

2022/23  Any other business 
 
  There was no further business discussed.  
 

The Chair advised the committee that this would be the last committee 
meeting Ms Hardy would support as she would be retiring on 10 March 2022. 
On behalf of the committee, the Chair thanked Ms Hardy for her outstanding 
work and commitment over the years. The Chair also thanked Ms Hardy on a 
personal level for her exceptional support and wished her much happiness for 
the future.    

 
   
  DATE AND TIME OF NEXT MEETING 
 
2021/146 Tuesday 12 April 2022, 9am - 12.00 Via Microsoft teams  

  
   

 

Signed:    
 
   
 
 
  Date: 12th April 2022 
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GOVERNING BODY 

 
24 May 2022 

Report Title: 
 

Quality and Safeguarding Update  
 

Purpose of report 

The following update provides the Governing Body with a succinct single page document highlighting quality and safeguarding 
activity across Sunderland Clinical Commissioning Group and its commissioned services.   
 

Key points 

• The update includes a brief overview of information reported at the Quality Safety Committee and details any key quality 
assurance exceptions, patient safety updates and any key publications.       

• Any key changes in legislation are reflected and a brief synopsis of safeguarding activity is presented.  
 

Risks and issues 

• Ongoing pressures have resulted in the temporary closure of the Midwifery Led Birthing Unit (MLBU) in South Tyneside 
remaining in place. The position is being reviewed weekly.    

• The final Ockenden report from the independent review of maternity services at the Shrewsbury and Telford Hospital 
NHS Trust was published on 30th March 2022. Donna Ockenden and her review team build upon and enhance the 
original recommendations and actions that were outlined in their 1st report which was published at the latter end of 2020. 
The report highlights new themes that require sharing and addressing across maternity services in England as a matter 
of urgency to ensure positive and essential change. There is an emphasis placed on the need for timely and independent 
reviews of serious maternity incidents to ensure lessons are learned and changes implemented effectively. In response 
the Secretary of State has been asked to consider that learning and service change from maternity incidents be 
introduced into clinical practice within 6 months of the incident occurring and that all investigations be independently 
chaired. Many of the issues and themes highlighted in the 2 reports are not unique to Shrewsbury and Telford FT and 
have been highlighted in other local and national reports in recent years. To address this the review team have identified 
15 immediate & essential actions to be considered by NHS Trusts in England. STSFT is reviewing its position against the 
new IEAs and working with the CCG on reviewing their level of compliance overall. Their final position will be shared with 
the CCG and Local Maternity and Neonatal Network and discussed at the forthcoming Quality, Safety Committee. 
NHSE/I have also announced they will be publishing a breakdown of performance by Trust against the IEAs outlined in 
the 1st report, of which there were 7 at their public Board meeting in May.  

• The Rose Lodge Learning Disability Specialist Assessment and Treatment in-patient unit in South Tyneside remains 
temporarily closed to new admissions. This is due to ongoing pressures associated with the current acuity and 
complexity of in-patients. Commissioners across North East and North Cumbria ICS have been working together with 
Cumbria, Northumberland, Tyne and Wear NHS Foundation Trust (CNTWFT) to address any delayed transfers of care 
that may have been contributing to the pressures. Meetings take place weekly with regular updates being received by the 
Quality Review Group and the CCGs Quality, Safety Committee.     

• Equally CNTWFT have been experiencing pressures in their adult acute pathways. This situation is also compounded by 
increased patient acuity but is also associated with longer length of stays, a growth in numbers of patients with learning 
disabilities requiring admissions and the availability of mental health beds. Staff absence has also provided challenges 
across community and inpatient settings. This is being monitored through surge conversations and the impact on quality 
continues to be appraised through the quality review group. 

• The new Complex Adult Risk Management (CARM) framework, has prompted a significant level of new referrals for high-
risk community cases. This is managed and coordinated via CARM triage meetings and multi-agency panels which 
produce quarterly outcome reports to the Sunderland Safeguarding Adult Board (SSAB) and review all referrals with the 
lead agency.  

• The CCGs Safeguarding Team are leading a Task and Finish Group in response to concerns raised by the Designate 
Nurse for Cared for Children regarding the poorer outcomes and prevalence of early deaths of care experienced young 
people. Care experienced people are 7 times more likely to die before the age of 25 years than the general public and 
are also more likely to experience an unnatural death. There is an increasing numbers of serious case reviews being 
undertaken on older children, with the association being made between early childhood experiences and teenage 
suicides and accidental deaths reflects this. The task and finish group are keen to raise the profile of this specific group 
of young people in order to implement early help and preventative measures through training and awareness sessions, 
to also introduce care experienced champions within health settings, and explore how to improve service involvement 
through transition into adulthood. 

• The timeframe for organisations appointing Patient Safety Partners to their safety related committees has been extended 
to 31st September in account of the current pressures across the NHS. The appointment of lay people as patient safety 
partners is a key part of the implementation of the Framework for involving patients in patient safety. The requirement to 
recruit PSPs has been flagged to colleagues supporting the emerging quality infrastructure for the Integrated Care Board 
(ICB).    

• NHSE/I have published a set of 'enduring standards and general principles' to highlight actions in historical patient safety 
alerts that remain relevant to current practice and unlikely to change in the foreseeable future. The standards were 
published following a clinical review of patient safety alerts and will act as an aid for organisations to ensure that 
standards are embedded locally and form part of patient safety improvements.           

• Work is underway on our annual People with a Learning disability and autistic people (LeDeR) report. Disappointingly 
due to changes in the data fields on the national system this year it won't be possible to draw comparisons with all 
indicators reported in previous reports. The Cumbria and North East learning disability network will be escalating this 
concern to NHSE/I colleagues. The report will be presented to the QSC in June for approval before being presented to a 
future CCG Governing Body. 



    

                                             
                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                  
                                                                                                                                                                                                                          
 

• New thresholds have been published for NHS trusts and NHS foundation trusts to minimise rates of both Clostridioides  
difficile (C. difficile) and of Gram-negative bloodstream infections to threshold levels set by NHS England and NHS 
Improvement.  

  Assurances 
  

• Any quality or safeguarding concerns are discussed at the CCG Quality and Safety Committee, and respective Quality 
Review groups with providers. 

• Key quality risks that may impact on the wider health care system are shared with the Cumbria and North East Quality 
Surveillance Group and captured on the CCGs directorate risk register.  

• Regular dialogue takes place between commissioned services and the CCG Executive Director of Nursing, Quality and 
Safety and the Head of Quality and Patient Safety and Safeguarding Designates.       

        

Recommendation/Action Required 

The Governing Body is asked to note the content of the update.    
 

Sponsor/approving directors   
Ann Fox, Executive Director of Nursing, Quality and Safety   
 

Report author Kirstie Hesketh, Head of Quality and Patient Safety   

Governance and Assurance 

Link to CCG corporate objectives  (please tick all that apply) 

CO1:Develop and support system transformation and  ensure a well-led organisation  

CO2:  Maintain financial control and performance   

CO3: Maintain and improve quality of CCG commissioned services ✓ 

CO4: Identify and deliver the CCG’s strategic priorities  

CO5: Covid-19 Response and Recovery  

Relevant legal/statutory issues 

 

Any potential/actual 
conflicts of interest 
associated with the paper? 
(please tick) 

Yes  No ✓ N/A  

If yes, please specify  

Equality analysis 
completed 
(please tick)  

Yes  No  N/A ✓ 

Quality impact assessment 
undertaken  
(please tick) 

Yes  No  N/A ✓ 

 If no, please specify  yes, please specify  

Key implications 

Are additional resources 
required?   

 
No 

Has there been appropriate 
clinical engagement?  

Not applicable 

Has there been/or does 
there need to be any 
patient and public 
involvement? 

Not applicable 

Is there an expected impact 
on patient 
outcomes/experience?  If 
yes, has a quality impact 
assessment been 
undertaken? 

Not applicable   

Has there been member 
practice and/or other 
stakeholder engagement if 
needed?   

Not applicable  



    

                                             
                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                  
                                                                                                                                                                                                                          
 

Quality and Safeguarding Update 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Ockenden  

• The Ockenden - Final report from the independent review of 
maternity services at the Shrewsbury and Telford Hospital 
NHS Trust was published on 30th March 2022. The report 
builds upon & enhances the original recommendations and 
actions within the 1st report (2020). It highlights new themes 
that need sharing across maternity services in England as a 
matter of urgency to ensure positive and essential change. 

• There is an acknowledgement of the current significant 
pressures in maternity services and the ongoing issues in the 
recruitment and retention of midwifes & obstetricians. 
Workforce planning, reducing attrition of maternity staff and 
providing funding to support a sustainable and safer maternity 
workforce is essential to ensure safe, effective services.  

• Emphasis is placed on the need for timely and independent 
reviews of serious maternity incidents to ensure lessons are 
learned and changes implemented effectively. The Secretary 
of State has been asked to consider that learning and service 
change from maternity incidents be introduced into clinical 
practice within 6 months of the incident occurring and that all 
investigations are independently chaired. 

• Many of the issues highlighted in the 2 reports are not unique 
to the Trust concerned and have been presented in other local 
and national reports in recent years. As a result, the review 
team have identified 15 immediate & essential actions to be 
considered by NHS Trusts in England. STSFT is reviewing its 
position against the new IEAs and working with the CCG on 
reviewing their level of compliance overall. NHSE/I will be 
publishing a breakdown of Trust performance against the 1st 
report IEAs in May at their public Board meeting.     

• The report raises the differentiation between 'assurance & re-
assurance' and raises the questions whether commissioners 
receive robust assurance through their quality governance.  
processes.          

Author  

Kirstie Hesketh - Head of Quality and 
Patient Safety, SCCG 
With contributions from CCG safeguarding team    

 Quality Risks/ Concerns 

• Cumbria, Northumberland, 
Tyne and Wear NHS 
Foundation Trust (CNTWFT) 
have been experiencing 
pressures in their adult acute 
pathways.  The situation 
continues to be compounded 
by increased patient acuity 
and associated longer length 
of stays, a growth in numbers 
of patients with learning 
disabilities requiring 
admissions and the availability 
of mental health beds. Staff 
absence has also provided 
challenges across community 
and inpatient settings. This is 
being monitored through 
surge conversations and the 
impact on quality continues to 
be appraised through the 
quality review group.      

• Published data for the 
Summary Hospital-level 
Mortality Indicator (SHMI) 
placed STSFT as higher 
than expected. This will be 
impacted by St. Benedict’s 
Hospice. Mortality rates are 
scrutinised and monitored 
by the Trust's mortality 
group which CCG 
colleagues attend.    

 

  Safeguarding  

• The CCG Safeguarding Team are leading a Regional Task and Finish Group in response to concerns raised by the Designate 
Nurse for Cared for Children and the poorer outcomes and prevalence of early deaths of care experienced young people. Care 
experienced people are 7 times more likely to die before the age of 25 years than the general public and are also more likely to 
experience an unnatural death. The increasing numbers of serious case reviews being undertaken on older children, with the 
association being made between early childhood experiences and teenage suicides and accidental deaths reflects this. The group is 
keen to raise the profile of this specific group of young people across partner agencies to help implement early help and preventative 
measures through training and awareness sessions, to also introduce care experienced champions within health settings, and explore 
how to improve service involvement through transition into adulthood. 

• The new Complex Adult Risk Management (CARM) framework, has prompted a significant level of new referrals for high-risk 
community cases. This is managed and coordinated via CARM triage meetings and multi-agency panels which produce quarterly 
outcome reports to the Sunderland Safeguarding Adult Board (SSAB) and review all referrals with the lead agency.  

• SSAB have agreed a new subgroup (which was escalated and discussed via CCG and the Safeguarding Partnership Group). This 
will be in the form of a separate safeguarding adult review (SAR) panel, that gives a renewed focus on the SAR referral / criteria for all 
agencies and a dedicated panel to review, scope and investigate SAR referrals. The panel will include actions and recommendations 
from national SARs and all actions/learning will be shared with the Learning and Improvement Group (LIPP).   

Quality and Safety Committee (QSC)  
The QSC, held jointly with South Tyneside CCG, took place on the 12th April. Aside from information already cited in this update 
other areas of discussion to note are as follows:   

• Discussion took place regarding the ongoing closure of the Midwifery Led Birthing Unit at South Tyneside District Hospital following 
its temporary suspension at the start of the year. Ongoing pressures caused by a high staff absence rate continue to impact on the 
Trust's ability to be able to provide a safe service and the unit remains closed. Regular dialogue is taking place bewteen the CCG 
and Trust representatives.     

• The QSC were informed of the ongoing pressures being experienced by Noth East Ambulance Service NHS Foundatiosn Trust 
(NEASFT) which was demonstrated by escalation of their operational pressure escalation levels due to high acuity demand and 
decereased caapcity. Significant issues with handover delays have contributed to these pressures and an improvement plan is in 
place across the North East to support alleviating these pressures.   

• The timely and equitable access of community X-rays was raised as a patient safety risk, work is underway, supported by a task and 
finish group to ensure effective radiology pathways are in place.     
 

 
CCG Governing Body - May 2022 

Patient Safety      
Patient Safety Partners: In recognition of NHS capacity issues, as well as competing priorities 
around the changing landscape NHSE/I have extended the timescale to 31st September for 
organisations to appoint two patient safety partners to their safety related committees. The 
appointment of lay people as patient safety partners is a key part of the implementation of the 
Framework for involving patients in patient safety. The requirement to recruit PSPs has been flagged 
to colleagues supporting the emerging quality infrastructure for the Integrated Care Board (ICB).    
World Patient Safety Day (WPSD) 2022: will be held on 17th September with a focus on medication 
safety. As the WPSD falls on a Saturday it is suggested that organisations focus their activity on the 
days leading up to WPSD. In response our Head of Quality and Patient Safety is liaising with 
Medicines Optimisation to ensure the CCG participates in the WPSD campaign.         
Patient Safety Alerts: NHSE/I have published a set of 'enduring standards and general principles' to 
highlight actions in historical patient safety alerts that remain relevant to current practice and unlikely 
to change in the foreseeable future.  The standards were published following a clinical review of 
patient safety alerts and will act as an aid for organisations to ensure that standards are embedded 
locally and form part of patient safety improvements.           
Patient Safety Incident Response Framework: The revised framework is expected to be published 
in June 2022. At this point organisations will be asked to prepare for transition from the Serious 
Incident Framework to PSIRF. This will be a gradual process. In preparation for PSIRF a training 

procurement framework has been published and is under review by the quality team.  
 

Care Quality Commission (CQC) 

• CQC as part of their inspections of GP practices use a set 
of clinical searches to help understand the clinical safety 
and effectiveness of care delivered. Searches are based 
on national guidance, good practice and MHRA safety 
advice and focus on safe prescribing, monitoring of higher 
risk drugs and identification of potential missed 
diagnoses.  The CQC are working with Ardens as part of a 
12-month pilot to create, review and deliver the searches. 
Ardens is an independent healthcare informatics company. 
The searches will be available at no charge to EMIS web/ 
SystemOne practices.   
 

Due Diligence (DD): work on the due diligence process continues in readiness for transition to the 
ICB. A detailed overview report of the Quality Governance indicators was presented to the April 
QSC to provide both oversight and challenge. The report was well received, and committee 
members have asked to be provided with an updated position at the forthcoming QSC in June.    

LeDeR  

• Work is underway on the CCGs annual 
People with a Learning disability and 
autistic people (LeDeR) report. 
Disappointingly changes in the data 
fields on the national system means 
that it won't be possible to draw 
comparisons with all indicators reported 
in previous reports. The Cumbria and 
North East learning disability network 
will be escalating this to NHSE/I 
colleagues. The report will be 
presented to the QSC in June for 
approval before being presented to the 
CCG Governing Body.   

• Following discussion at QSC the CCGs 
LeDeR panel will be reviewing the 
process for sharing lessons learned 
from reviews. This is with aim of 
enhancing learning and in particular 
being clear about how the CCG can be 
assured that learning has been 
understood, actioned and monitored.     

Infection, Prevention and Control (IPC) 

• The NHS Standard Contract 2022/23 includes 
quality requirements for NHS trusts and NHS 
foundation trusts to minimise rates of both 
Clostridioides difficile (C. difficile) and of Gram-
negative bloodstream infections to threshold levels 
set by NHS England and NHS Improvement. For 
example STSFT has been set a C.difficile threshold 
of 62 and 124 E.coli cases. The CCG C.difficile 
threshold has been set as 64 and 229 for E.coli.   
The thresholds are set on existing CCG 
geographies but will be revised to reflect ICS 
geographies once legislation is passed by 
parliament.     

• On the 14th April the UK Health Security Agency 
(UKHSA) published revised IPC guidance aimed at 
supporting the return to pre-pandemic social 
distancing and cleaning protocols. Meanwhile all 
healthcare organisations should continue to 
undertake local risk assessments to ensure safe 
systems of work and a new IPC manual for England 
has been produced. All patients, visitors and staff 
should continue to practise good hand and 
respiratory hygiene, including the continued use of 
face masks by staff and face masks/coverings by 
visitors and patients where clinically tolerated. The 
CCGs IPC team are supporting the implementation.     

Rose Lodge (CNTWFT): Ongoing pressures associated 
with acuity and complexity of patients has led to the 
continued closure of new admissions. Work is ongoing with 
CCGs, the Trust and wider system partners to address the 
current position with weekly system meetings taking place 
and regular discussion at the quality review group.       
CCGs across the ICS have met to consider how they can 
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Purpose of report 

To provide the Governing Body with an exception report in relation to the current position 
for the CCG against the NHS Single Oversight Framework requirements. 

Key points 

• Referral to Treatment (RTT) performance remains in a positive position with 
Sunderland CCG (SCCG) the highest in the ICS.  Performance improved slightly 
again in March'22, up to 81.5%.  I.S. arrangements remain in place which will continue 
into 2022/23 via national Elective Recovery Fund (ERF) in place and agreed in 
provider contracts.  Work has now started to secure additional capacity at South 
Tyneside and Sunderland NHS Foundation Trust (STSFT) as part of the ERF 
arrangements and further updates will be provided in due course.  Elective plans have 
been submitted as part of national planning requirements and further work is now 
underway as final submissions approach.  The expectation is that both locally and 
regionally, systems will be working to deliver elective activity in excess of 2019/20 
levels (104%) although this remains a challenge locally and across the ICS.      
 

• The number of over 52-week waiters is now 219 for March'22, a further decrease of 
4 on the previous month.  The CCG have 11 extreme waiters (over 104 weeks) and 
orthopaedics accounts for almost all of the over 104-week waiters due to pressures 
in specialised spinal services (spinal deformity) which subject to discussions between 
NHS England as commissioners for these services.  Extreme waiters reduced by 1 
this month.  Plans are being drawn up to deliver the requirements set out by NHS 
England and Improvement to reduce long waiters but due to pressures in specialised 
spinal services, it is likely that there will still be some very long waiters in 2022/23 for 
Sunderland.  The Provider Collaborative and Spinal Programme Board are working 
on several options and pathways to reduce spinal delays.   

 

• Diagnostic waiting times performance has improved again this month due to 
improvements in radiology (MRI, CT particularly) but concerns remain in plain-film x-
ray (not nationally reported in performance) and reporting for other aspects of 
radiology.  Due to concerns raised by general practice, and the impact of radiology 
on other services, performance has been escalated at STSFT.  Workforce pressures 
in Sunderland along with the impact of COVID-19 on third-party provision have 
exacerbated the pressures in Q4 and whilst recruitment is taking place, performance 
and outcomes are deteriorating.  Additional reporting capacity has been secured in 
the short to medium term whilst a recovery plan is being developed by STSFT.  Mutual 



aid has been explored by STSFT but no support has been forthcoming from other 
providers across the ICS.  Echocardiography remains the key driver to the relatively 
poor national performance but this continues to improve month on month with the 
backlog significantly reducing over the last three months.  The additional capacity 
secured by STSFT will continue into 2022/23. 

 

• Cancer performance remains volatile and extremely challenged in several areas, as 
it did pre-pandemic.  Two week wait (2WW) referrals remain higher than pre-
pandemic levels in most tumour groups and treatments are either comparable or 
higher.  The focus continues on implementation of streamlined cancer pathways 
locally and regionally and also rapid diagnostics.  This is supported by new schemes 
within the General Practice Quality Premium (GPQP), the implementation of the full 
post faecal immunochemical test (FIT) programme and delivery of the CCG's local 
cancer plan which is underpinned by regional and national cancer strategies.  
 

• A&E four hour wait performance for STSFT remains a pressure, predominantly due 
to workforce pressures linked to COVID-19.  Final full year performance for 2021/22 
was 81.4% for all types and 71% for type 1 which was a reduction on 2020/21 where 
performance was higher due to the impact of COVID-19 on attendance levels.  When 
comparing performance to 2019/20, type 1 performance was worse and all types 
slightly better.  Additional analysis has been included within the report to show the 
urgent care activity levels across the Sunderland system in response to discussions 
at previous Governing Body and Executive Committees.  Workforce pressures remain 
the key issue which is impacting all providers across the ICS and locally at STSFT.  
Attendances in March'22 were volatile with increased volumes in the middle of the 
week which is very different to usual trends along with later presentations.  April'22 
volumes returned back to "expected" levels but pressures remain in the system which 
is replicated nationally. 

 

• Children’s mental health waiting times continue to deteriorate with the waiting list 
position now comparable to pre-pandemic levels.  The waiting list volume and over 
18-week waiters continue to increase due to the sustained increase in demand during 
the pandemic.  Referrals were 36% higher in 2021/22 which has had a detrimental 
impact on waiting times.  Urgent meetings have been scheduled with providers to 
discuss the actions being taken to improve waiting times and support children, young 
people and their families along with delivering the changes to the pathways in 
Sunderland.   

 

• Integrated Urgent Care (IUC – 111) and ambulance response times for North East 
Ambulance Service (NEAS) decreased in March'22, despite improvements in 
January'22 and February'22.  Demand increased in March'22 and the impact of 
COVID-19 on the workforce meant that NEAS escalated to REAP4 again.  A number 
of call handlers have been recruited into 111 and 999 services and additional third-
party capacity remains in place to provide additional resilience.  Additional resources 
have been agreed via contract negotiations for 2022/23.  This will be linked to the 
development and delivery of an action plan to improve performance.  A regional 
handover SOP has been agreed for providers to implement and locally, this will be 
enhanced by additional actions by STSFT to reduce handover delays.  This is on the 
back of national scrutiny around handover delays.   
 

• Health checks for serious mental health (SMI) and learning disabilities (LD) 
performance for 2021/22 shows a significant achievement for Sunderland with LD 
performance delivering 79.9%, above our local stretched target and SMI delivering 



57%, only slightly below the national expectation of 60%.  Both areas have delivered 
improvements on last year despite the challenges within General Practice which is an 
excellent achievement. 

 

• A full position against the SOF and other local indicators is embedded within the 
report. 
 

   

Risks and issues 

• Risk of delivery of NHS Constitutional and national expectations as a result of the 
C19 pandemic. 

• A&E four-hour standard which is subject to national scrutiny and below the locally 
submitted trajectory. 

• Cancer waiting times; particularly 62-day performance at STSFT for lung and 
urological pathways.  Breast also remains a concern both locally and nationally. 

• RTT performance as a result of the restricted capacity and a risk that referrals 
increase back to levels pre-C19. 

• Diagnostics and the impact on other pathways including cancer 

• Mental health waiting times for adults and children and the risk of a surge in demand 
in the coming months as a result of C19 

• Ambulance response times in categories two, three and four. 

• Integrated Urgent Care pressures due to workforce shortages and increased 
demand 

• Risks of further 52-week breaches as a result of the C19 pandemic. 
 
Identified risks on the risk register Sunderland CCG: 

• 2123 – Impact of C19 on CCG performance 

• 2309 – Impact of C19 on the CCG’s quality assurance framework 

• 2311 – Impact of C19 on services and risk of patient harm 

• 2310 – Lack of accessible PPE compromising patient and staff safety 

• 2390 – Increased demand for mental health services as a result of C19 
• 2391 – Increased cancer waits as a result of C19 

 

Assurances  

• Via oversight from multi-agency programme/project groups with executive clinical 
and managerial leadership. 

• Via project plans including identification, management and monitoring of risks and 
issues through registers and issue logs. 

• Monthly contract review groups and performance groups with main acute providers. 

• Regular assurance discussions with NHS England and NHS Improvement 
• Regular planning discussions at ICP and ICS level 
• Assurance via All Together Better where key performance indicators are aligned to 

ATB programmes and transformation.  
 

Recommendation/Action Required 

The Governing Body is asked to: 

• Note the position and progress against each indicator in the NHS Single Oversight 
Framework 

• Note the risks to performance as a result of COVID19 

Sponsor/approving directors   Scott Watson 



 
 
 
 
 

Governing Body 

Director of Contracting, Planning and 
Informatics 

Report author 
Matt Thubron 
Head of Contracting and Performance  

Governance and Assurance 

Link to CCG corporate objectives  (please tick all that apply) 

CO1:Develop and support system transformation and  ensure a well-led organisation  

CO2:  Maintain financial control and performance   

CO3: Maintain and improve quality of CCG commissioned services  

CO4:Identify and deliver the CCG’s strategic priorities  

CO5: Covid-19 Response and Recovery  

Relevant legal/statutory issues 

NHS Single Oversight Framework, NHS Constitution 

Any potential/actual conflicts 
of interest associated with the 
paper? (please tick) 

Yes  No  N/A  

If yes, please specify  

Equality analysis completed 
(please tick)  

Yes  No  N/A  

Quality impact assessment 
undertaken  
(please tick) 

Yes  No  N/A  

,  

Key implications 

Are additional resources 
required?   

 

No 

Has there been appropriate 
clinical engagement?  

Yes via the clinical leads and Executive GP leads and 
ATB 

Has there been/or does there 
need to be any patient and 
public involvement? 

N/A 

Is there an expected impact on 
patient outcomes/experience?  
If yes, has a quality impact 
assessment been undertaken? 

N/A 

Has there been member 
practice and/or other 
stakeholder engagement if 
needed?   

N/A 
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1. Purpose 
 

The purpose of this report is to provide the Governing Body with an exception 
report in relation to the organisational position against the NHS Single Oversight 
Framework (SOF). 

 

2. Changes and areas of pressure since last month’s report 
 

 

• The CCG referral to treatment (RTT) performance continues to be the 
highest in the ICS.  Performance improved for RTT and long waits with over 
52 week waiters and over 104 week waiters down by 3 on the previous 
month. 

 

• Published A&E performance for South Tyneside and Sunderland NHS 
Foundation Trust (STSFT) continues to be a pressure with a further 
reduction in performance for April'22.  

 

• Cancer performance improved in Macrh'22 across most standards with 
referrals and treatments higher than pre-pandemic levels. 

 

• Six-week diagnostics performance has improved again this month and has 
shown a 18% improvement over the last 4 months.  The pressures remain 
in echocardiography (volume) but concerns have been raised around 
radiology, particularly for plain-film x-ray due to significant delays. 

 

• Waiting times in adult and children’s mental health services continue to 
increase, as does long waiters due to the sustained increase demand into 
services. 

 

• Ambulance response times and Integrated Urgent Care (IUC – 111) remain 
a pressure and both deteriorating in March'22 due to increased demand and 
workforce pressures linked to COVID-19.     

 

• Health checks for Serious Mental Health and Learning Disabilities 
performance for 2022/23 available and shows a significant achievement in 
both areas.     

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

3. Exception Reporting 
 
3.1 Accident and Emergency  
 



Accident and emergency performance is now available for the full year of 
2021/22.  Type 1 performance for the full year was 71% and for all types, 81.4%.  
March'22 performance deteriorated on the previous month due to workforce 
pressures.   
 
Charts 1 and 2 show the performance for April'22 for each provider in the ICS for 
type 1 and all types.  April'22 performance was 73.4% for all types and 57.9% for 
type 1 with performance continuing to reduce due to pressures in the system 
which is replicated both regionally and nationally.  
 
Chart 1 – CNE type 1 A&E performance – Apr'22 YTD position 

 
 
Chart 2 – CNE all types A&E performance – Apr'22 YTD position 

  
 
 

Urgent care attendances remain volatile but overall, attendances remain lower 
than pre-pandemic levels, when adjusted for the urgent care changes in 
Sunderland.  Type 3 attendances continue to be around 50% lower when four 
urgent care centres were open which is consistent with the Urgent Care Strategy 
modelling and type 1 attendances were also lower overall.  March'22 was 
particularly busy but attendances reduced across the board in April'22.   
 Presentations later in the evening alongside workforce pressures meant 
performance deteriorated significantly over those two weeks.  Pressures remain 
into May'22 and these pressures are consistent with providers across the ICS 
and nationally.  
 



Chart 3 shows the average daily attendances at Sunderland urgent care units 
over time and demonstrates the changes in provision and the overall decrease in 
type 3 attendances linked to the Sunderland Urgent Care Strategy.  Chart 4 
provides a visual representation of the average daily attendances prior to the 
changes, the impact of COVID-19 and then into 2021/22. 
 
Chart 3 – Average daily urgent care attendances in Sunderland urgent care facilities from 
Apr'18 

 
 
Chart 4 – Average daily urgent care attendances in Sunderland urgent care facilities from 
Apr'18 comparing reference periods. 

 
 

Surge arrangements continue to be in place with continued focus on discharge 
arrangements and system flow.  Additional community beds to support flow and 
additional winter schemes are in place and subject to on-going evaluation, 
however pressures remain around workforce, in and out of hospital, to support 
these schemes.  Evaluation of winter schemes is on-going and the output of this 
will be used to feed into winter plan developments for 2022/23.  There is also a 
continued focus on discharge to ensure that flow across the system is optimized.   
 
The A&E four hour wait standard remains in place until it is officially removed and 
replaced by the new A&E clinical quality standards.  Shadow monitoring is in 
place for each of the new standards and locally, STSFT compare favorably for all 
standards as reported in previous reports.   

0

5,000

10,000

15,000

20,000

25,000

T
o

ta
l 

A
tt

e
n

d
a

n
ce

s

Total Monthly Urgent Care Attendances at Sunderland Units

Adult ED (Type 1) Paed ED (Type 1) Pallion (Type 3) Bunny Hill (Type 3) Washington (Type 3) Houghton (Type 3)

280
288

306

285

226 228

294 294298
284

211

147

100
110

157

133

0

50

100

150

200

250

300

350

2018/19 Pre 2 Centre Closure Post 2 Centre Closure Post 3 Centre Closure

(to COVID)

COVID - 6 Months COVID - to March 21 Apr21 - Sep21 Oct21 - Mar22

Average Daily Attendances - Reference Periods

Total Type 1 Total Type 3



 
3.2 Referral to Treatment (RTT) and waiting lists  
 
RTT performance continues to improve with published performance for March'22 
81.5%, an improvement on the previous month.     

 
Table 1 shows the March'22 published performance by specialty compared to the 
previous month as well as the total number of patients on an incomplete pathway 
(waiting list) which has increased on the previous period. 
  

 Table 1 – SCCG RTT performance by specialty Mar'22 

 
 
Over 52-week waiters reduced by 4 in March'22, down to 219 from 223.  Of the 
219 patients waiting in excess of 52 weeks, 11 patients were waiting longer than 
2 years (104+ weeks), a reduction of 3 on the previous months.   
 
Locally at STSFT, RTT performance remains strong, and the number of long and 
extreme waiters is low comparative to other Trusts.  The main pressure for 
extreme waiters remains in specialised spinal deformity services where a 
significant proportion of the activity can only be undertaken at specialised 
providers.  The Provider Collaborative are working with the Spinal Programme 
Board and commissioners to look at various options and pathways to help 
increase capacity to treat those who are waiting a significant amount of time.  This 
includes non-specialised providers undertaking lower-end spinal surgery to free 
up capacity in those providers.   
 
Table 2 – SCCG over 52-week waiters for Mar'22 by provider and specialty. 

 

18ww RTT Incomplete

Specialty  < 18 Weeks 
 >= 18 

Weeks 
  Total <18wks   < 18 Weeks 

 >= 18 

Weeks 
  Total <18wks  

Cardiology 641 96 737 87.0% 624 111 735 84.9%

Cardiothoracic Surgery 9 0 9 100.0% 6 0 6 100.0%

Dermatology 997 383 1,380 72.2% 1,002 338 1,340 74.8%

ENT 2,283 452 2,735 83.5% 2,138 415 2,553 83.7%

Gastroenterology 886 122 1,008 87.9% 717 110 827 86.7%

General Medicine 28 10 38 73.7% 34 10 44 77.3%

General Surgery 2,064 380 2,444 84.5% 1,962 402 2,364 83.0%

Geriatric Medicine 327 48 375 87.2% 324 63 387 83.7%

Gynaecology 1,594 379 1,973 80.8% 1,592 351 1,943 81.9%

Neurology 518 97 615 84.2% 534 134 668 79.9%

Neurosurgery 49 14 63 77.8% 49 15 64 76.6%

Ophthalmology 2,585 444 3,029 85.3% 2,446 382 2,828 86.5%

Other 5,931 504 6,435 92.2% 5,492 450 5,942 92.4%

Plastic Surgery 233 145 378 61.6% 214 156 370 57.8%

Rheumatology 570 87 657 86.8% 551 57 608 90.6%

Thoracic Medicine 751 263 1,014 74.1% 687 320 1,007 68.2%

Trauma & Orthopaedics 2,420 1,471 3,891 62.2% 2,397 1,395 3,792 63.2%

Urology 1,377 377 1,754 78.5% 1,313 361 1,674 78.4%

CCG Overall Summary 23,263 5,272 28,535 81.5% 22,082 5,070 27,152 81.3%

MARCH FEBRUARY

Current Month Previous Month



 
 
When benchmarking performance across the ICS, the SCCG position remains 
positive and is the highest across the ICS.   
 
Table 3 – RTT performance at ICS level by CCG showing change on previous month and ICS 

rank Feb'22 

 
 

Additional capacity remains in place via the Independent Sector (I.S.) with STSFT 
continuing to transfer patients to the I.S. and additional capacity commissioned 
via the Elective Recovery Fund (ERF) for 2021/22.  ERF arrangements for 
2022/23 have now been agreed and will form part of provider contracts and 
financial baselines going forward.  Risks remain to delivery due to the 
requirement to deliver 104% of 2019/20 planned care activity. 

 
At a regional level, work continues to implement an elective recovery hub, 
delivered jointly between Commissioners and the Provider Collaborative, this 
continues to focus on the reduction of extreme and long waiters (104+ and 52+ 
week waiters) by further transfers between NHS providers and the I.S. 

 
3.3   Cancer waiting and treatment times 
 
Cancer performance for March'22 is shown in table 4 with performance improving 
across all standards with referrals and treatment volumes also higher than 
previous months and compared to 2019/20.  

 
Table 4 – SCCG Mar’22 cancer performance by standard 

 

Specialty   Total  >= 18 Weeks   18-26wks     26-36wks    36-46wks      46-52wks    52wks +   

Cardiology 737 96 62 21 13 0 0

Cardiothoracic Surgery 9 0 0 0 0 0 0

Dermatology 1,380 383 144 144 56 11 28

ENT 2,735 452 336 96 16 4 0

Gastroenterology 1,008 122 63 32 11 0 16

General Medicine 38 10 2 7 1 0 0

General Surgery 2,444 380 200 116 40 11 13

Geriatric Medicine 375 48 27 19 1 1 0

Gynaecology 1,973 379 229 99 23 5 23

Neurology 615 97 79 13 5 0 0

Neurosurgery 63 14 5 4 4 0 1

Ophthalmology 3,029 444 357 74 9 3 1

Other 6,435 504 325 119 39 9 12

Plastic Surgery 378 145 47 39 23 10 26

Rheumatology 657 87 73 11 3 0 0

Thoracic Medicine 1,014 263 128 99 34 1 1

Trauma & Orthopaedics 3,891 1,471 598 453 263 79 78

Urology 1,754 377 194 119 42 2 20

CCG Overall Summary 28,535 5,272 2,869 1,465 583 136 219

Current Month

MARCH
18ww RTT Incomplete

RTT % Performance

Feb-20 Apr-21 May-21 Jun-21 Jul-21 Aug-21 Sep-21 Oct-21 Nov-21 Dec-21 Jan-22 Feb-22 Mar-22 Trend

Rank

 Feb-20

Rank 

Latest Month
Variance

NHS County Durham CCG 87.8% 73.6% 77.4% 78.3% 77.8% 76.9% 76.1% 76.4% 76.6% 75.3% 75.0% 74.4% 74.8% 6 5 -12.9%

NHS Newcastle Gateshead CCG 87.8% 71.6% 73.4% 74.9% 74.2% 73.3% 72.4% 71.5% 71.9% 70.2% 69.7% 70.0% 69.8% 5 7 -18.0%

NHS North Cumbria CCG 73.5% 56.9% 64.8% 66.2% 66.7% 65.6% 64.6% 64.0% 63.3% 62.0% 62.2% 62.6% 63.7% 8 8 -9.7%

NHS North Tyneside CCG 88.2% 75.7% 76.8% 78.1% 78.1% 77.3% 76.4% 76.4% 76.7% 76.0% 75.2% 75.1% 75.3% 4 4 -12.9%

NHS Northumberland CCG 88.7% 75.1% 77.4% 79.3% 79.1% 78.1% 77.3% 76.5% 77.6% 76.5% 76.2% 75.8% 75.5% 3 3 -13.2%

NHS South Tyneside CCG 90.7% 81.7% 83.8% 84.9% 83.8% 82.6% 80.7% 80.3% 80.3% 78.2% 78.4% 78.1% 78.7% 2 2 -11.9%

NHS Sunderland CCG 90.8% 82.8% 85.7% 86.8% 85.9% 84.8% 83.9% 83.3% 82.9% 80.8% 80.9% 81.3% 81.6% 1 1 -9.2%

NHS Tees Valley CCG 87.1% 73.2% 75.2% 76.2% 75.2% 74.4% 74.6% 74.3% 74.6% 72.8% 71.0% 71.2% 71.5% 7 6 -15.6%

Feb-20 vs Latest 

Month



 
 
Table 5 shows a further detailed breakdown of 2WW performance by tumour 
group for March'22 compared to March'19.  This is supplemented by chart 5 which 
shows 2WW performance and volumes from April'19.   
 
Table 5 – SCCG 2WW cancer performance for the latest month compared to pre-pandemic period 
 

 
 
Chart 5 – SCCG 2WW performance from Apr'19 

 
 
Referrals into breast cancer services remain higher than pre-pandemic levels 
whilst maintaining an improvement in performance.  The total number of referrals 
was 40% higher than March'20 and performance remained above the national 
standard.  Pressures in 2WW remain in skin and lung pathways, the former 
expected to improve from May'22 when additional capacity is in place in CDDFT.  
The tele-dermatology pathway remains in place but workforce pressures in 
secondary care and continued increased demand have had a detrimental impact 
on performance for 2WW but to provide assurance, the skin pathway is one of the 
only pathways to be delivering the 28-day faster diagnosis standard.  Additional 

Indicator Target SCCG Total Treated In Time Breaches

2 Week Wait 93.0% 91.0% 1,443 1,313 130

2 Week Wait (Breast Symptoms) 93.0% 90.4% 52 47 5

31 Day First Treatment 96.0% 98.3% 174 171 3

31 Day Subsequent Treatment 98.0% 96.4% 169 163 6

31 Day Subsequent Treatment (Drugs) 98.0% 98.8% 83 82 1

31 Day Subsequent Treatment (Radiotherapy) 94.0% 100% 56 56 0

31 Day Subsequent Treatment (Surgery) 94.0% 80.8% 26 21 5

31 Day Subsequent Treatment (Other/Palliative/Declined/Unknown) (blank) 100% 4 4 0

62 Day Treatment 85.0% 80.7% 88 71 17

62 Day Treatment (Screening) 90.0% 83.3% 12 10 2

62 Day Treatment (Consultant Upgrade) (blank) 82.4% 17 14 3

Tumour Group OperationalStandard TotalTreated TreatedInTime TotalBreaches %Performance TotalTreated %Performance % Difference

Brain/Central Nervous System 93% 1 1 0 100.00%

Breast 93% 322 316 6 98.14% 203 96.06% 58.62%

Childrens 93% 3 1 2 33.33% 1 100.00% 200.00%

Gynaecological 93% 144 138 6 95.83% 104 97.12% 38.46%

Haematological (Excluding Acute Leukaemia) 93% 10 10 0 100.00% 11 100.00% -9.09%

Head and Neck 93% 157 148 9 94.27% 94 96.81% 67.02%

Lower Gastrointestinal 93% 257 240 17 93.39% 198 87.37% 29.80%

Lung 93% 61 46 15 75.41% 45 93.33% 35.56%

Sarcoma 93% 2 2 0 100.00%

Skin 93% 248 187 61 75.40% 158 97.47% 56.96%

Testicular 93% 8 8 0 100.00% 5 100.00% 60.00%

Upper Gastrointestinal 93% 121 115 6 95.04% 97 95.88% 24.74%

Urological (Excluding Testicular) 93% 109 101 8 92.66% 113 95.58% -3.54%

Grand Total 93% 1,443 1313 130 90.99% 1,029 94.66% 40.23%
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capacity remains in breast services due to the increased number of referrals since 
the pandemic.   
 
In Sunderland, the focus remains on delivery of the national cancer plan, working 
with providers and the Northern Cancer Alliance (NCA) to embed initiatives to 
improve faster diagnosis.  This includes utilising early awareness funding from the 
NCA to the implementation of the full postal faecal immunochemical test (FIT) 
programme which was recently approved by the CCG Executive Committee.  The 
GP Quality Premium will be used to underpin and deliver much of the cancer plan. 
 
As reported previously in the report, the impact of diagnostic delays is having a 
detrimental impact on cancer performance at STSFT.  Cancer continues to be 
prioritised but the impact of the delays on all pathways remains a key area of 
concern.   
 

3.4   Six-week diagnostics 
 

Diagnostics performance continues to improve month on month based on the 
national diagnostics indicator.  Improvements can be seen in CT, MRI and 
echocardiography where the backlog continues to decrease.   
 
Locally, plain film x-ray (not included in national performance) remains a 
significant concern due to delays from request to exam and exam to report where 
waiting times are significantly longer than they should be.  Radiology is 
experiencing significant pressures in Sunderland due to capacity constraints in 
the workforce and third-party capacity for scanning and reporting.   
 
In Sunderland, a number of radiologists have left the service and the impact of 
COVID-19 on third-party support during February'22 and March'22 has 
exacerbated the problem significantly.  Recruitment has commenced to increase 
the workforce, but risks remain around being able to recruit given the shortage 
nationally.  Additional reporting capacity has been secured by a third-party 
provider and is in the process of being mobilised.  This will focus directly on plain 
film x-ray due to the pressures in Sunderland.  STSFT have requested mutual aid 
from other providers which has not been forthcoming.   
 
Due to the performance and quality concerns, it has been agreed that a recovery 
group is established as part of ATB to review current issues and develop and 
implement an action plan to improve radiology pathways and performance. 
 
Echocardiography performance continues to improve with the backlog around 
1,000 lower than it was in December'21 which is positive.  Additional capacity has 
been secured for 2022/23 and it is expected that the backlog will be fully cleared 
by August'22.   
 
Echocardiography remains a pressure nationally with almost all providers failing 
to deliver the national standard and performance in STSFT has improved at a 
quicker rate from December'21 when benchmarking nationally which is 
encouraging. 
 
Chart 6 – Sunderland diagnostic test performance for Mar'22 



 
 
Table 6 – Diagnostics across the ICS pre and post C19 –Feb'22 

 
 
 
3.5   Children’s Mental Health Waiting Times 
 
Referrals into children and young people's mental health service continue to 
increase month on month with referrals 36% higher on average than pre-
pandemic levels.  Charts 7-9 show the impact of the increased demand on waiting 
times for assessment and treatment across both services in Sunderland.  
 
The waiting lists for assessment and treatment have increased significantly over 
the last two months (February'22 and March'22) and are now comparable to pre-
pandemic levels, higher for assessment in CAMHS.  Over 18-week waiters for 
assessment are now 224, compared to 278 in March'20 and over 18-week waiters 
for treatment are 360, compared to 320 in March'20.   
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Chart 7 – Total number of new referrals – CYPS and CAMHS from April’19 
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NHS Sunderland CCG Diagnostic Tests - % and number of patients waiting more than 6 Weeks - Mar 2022

Total Waiting > 6 Weeks  % > 6 Weeks Target <1%

Diag 6 Week % Performance

Feb-20 Apr-21 May-21 Jun-21 Jul-21 Aug-21 Sep-21 Oct-21 Nov-21 Dec-21 Jan-22 Feb-22 Mar-22 Trend

Rank

 Feb-20

Rank 

Latest Month
Variance

NHS County Durham CCG 1.3% 10.9% 9.8% 9.8% 10.3% 12.8% 11.5% 9.9% 8.7% 10.7% 10.5% 6.7% 8.8% 3 1 7.5%

NHS Newcastle Gateshead CCG 2.8% 22.0% 21.0% 23.3% 24.1% 25.8% 26.5% 25.6% 25.2% 25.6% 24.5% 19.0% 17.3% 5 4 14.6%

NHS North Cumbria CCG 8.0% 48.0% 46.6% 45.4% 47.3% 52.2% 51.9% 50.7% 45.5% 46.9% 42.4% 31.5% 26.3% 8 8 18.3%

NHS North Tyneside CCG 1.4% 6.3% 5.6% 10.1% 15.4% 17.8% 14.7% 8.0% 7.0% 9.4% 10.7% 8.6% 12.1% 4 2 10.7%

NHS Northumberland CCG 1.2% 9.5% 6.7% 12.7% 16.2% 21.8% 17.9% 11.7% 10.8% 12.2% 17.7% 14.2% 14.6% 2 3 13.4%

NHS South Tyneside CCG 3.8% 35.4% 31.2% 32.3% 36.4% 39.7% 37.9% 34.4% 33.8% 37.0% 32.2% 24.5% 22.4% 6 6 18.6%

NHS Sunderland CCG 0.9% 39.1% 35.0% 35.4% 40.0% 43.0% 40.2% 38.4% 35.7% 40.2% 35.4% 28.5% 26.1% 1 7 25.2%

NHS Tees Valley CCG 4.8% 11.1% 11.3% 12.2% 14.1% 20.7% 18.7% 14.9% 24.3% 22.1% 29.5% 22.2% 20.9% 7 5 16.1%

Feb-20 vs Latest 

Month



 
 
Chart 8 – Total number of children waiting for assessment – CYPS and CAMHS from April’19 

 
 
Chart 9 – Total number of children waiting for treatment – CYPS and CAMHS from April’19 

 
 
Additional resources have been deployed into services and to support the 
transformation agenda which remains a key priority in Sunderland.  Urgent 
meetings with providers have been scheduled in the diary to review actions being 
taken to improve waiting times and take forward the transformation of pathways 
and services. 
 
 
3.6   Serious Mental Illness (SMI) and Learning Disabilities (LD) Health 
Checks 
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Final positions are now available for SMI and LD health checks and both areas 
improved on previous years with LD health checks, delivering 79.9% which is 
above the national expectation of 75% and in-line with our locally stretched target 
of 79%.  This is a particularly good achievement given the increase in the LD 
register in General Practice. 
 
SMI health checks performance was 57% which was slightly lower than the 
national expectation of 60% but a significant improvement on previous years 
which is a great achievement given the pressures in General Practice.  Due to 
the way performance is calculated for SMI, if March'21 performance as included, 
performance would have been more than 66%.  Performance in 2020/21 was 
40% so 22/23 is a significant improvement and one of the highest in the ICS. 
 
Plans are now in the process of being developed for 2022/23 for both areas. 
 
3.7   Ambulance response times and Integrated Urgent Care 

 
Ambulance response and Integrated Urgent Care (IUC) performance improved in 
February'22 as pressures began to alleviate and additional capacity was secured 
from recent recruitment activities.  Performance in March'22 however 
deteriorated, again due to the impact of COVID-19 on the workforce and 
increased demand on services, particularly in the back end of the month.  Due to 
the pressures on the services in March'22, North East Ambulance Service (NEAS) 
returned to REAP4. 
 
A further recruitment exercise was successful and it is expected that this, 
alongside additional investment for 22/23 via contract negotiations, will help 
further increase the workforce into ambulance response and IUC.   
 
NEAS have undertaken some improvement work around ambulance turnaround 
times which has had a significant improvement on the turnaround, but 
improvements still need to be seen in the handover process.  Regionally, a 
handover standard operating procedure (SOP) has been delivered which is now 
being implemented by providers which will be monitored via local A&E delivery 
boards.  STSFT have undertaken some work locally around this and have visited 
other A&E departments to develop and implement improvement actions locally to 
help improve the handover process and reduce delays. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Chart 10 – NEAS ambulance response time performance March'22 



 
 
Alongside the additional recruitment of staff, additional capacity has been secured 
for call handling via Vocare and discussions are taking place to increase this 
further.  The development of an additional base in the South of the ICS is on 
course to be live in June'22. 

  
 

4. Recommendations 
 

The Governing Body is asked to: 

• Note the position and progress against each indicator in the NHS Single  
Oversight Framework. 

• Note the impact on performance from COVID-19  
 
 
Report Author:   Matt Thubron 

Head of Contracting and Performance  
 

Sponsoring Director: Scott Watson  
Director of Contracting and Informatics 
 

Date:     17th May 2022 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Notes to accompany the report: 
 
Due to the lack of baseline information for some of the indicators in the framework, a number of indicators have no 
performance rating.   

 
As some of these indicators rely on nationally published data which is not timely, the Business Intelligence team has 
wherever possible developed proxy measures.  Where data is available from local data sources, this is referenced in the 
report.  
 
 
 

Appendix one – Sunderland CCG risk assessment against the 
Improvement and Assessment Framework – 2021/22  
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9 achieved
Change from 

previous period

3 period 

continuous 

change

P1 P2 P3 P4 P5

Quality, access and outcomes ✓ ✓
Primary and community services including new community services response times ✓ ✓ ✓

# S001a: Appointments in general practice SCCG Weekly  w/e 

24/10/2021
34,140        25,363      7,151,513   67/106 Interquartile range ✓

S002a: Proportion of the population with access to online GP consultations SCCG  #N/A #N/A #N/A #N/A ### ✓
S003a: Dental activity SCCG  #N/A #N/A #N/A #N/A ###

S004a: Urgent community response: Crisis repsonse - 2-hour Care contacts SCCG  #N/A #N/A #N/A #N/A ### ✓ ✓
0 S005a: Daily discharges - as % of patients who no longer meet the criteria to reside in hospital STS FT Weekly  w/e 

12/12/2021
41.4% 41.5% (blank)   72/121 Interquartile range ✓

Restoration of elective and cancer services

S007a: Total  Elective Spells SCCG  #N/A #N/A #N/A #N/A ###

# S008a: Overall size of the waiting list SCCG Monthly  2021 10 27,884        17,953      5,556,301   36/106 Interquartile range

# S009a: Patients waiting more than 52 weeks to start consultant-led treatment SCCG Monthly  2021 10 252              397            285,974       3/106 Highest performing quartile

# S010a: Cancer - first treatments SCCG Monthly  2021 10 156              161            25,339         58/106 Interquartile range

# S010b: Cancer - urgent referrals seen SCCG Monthly  2021 10 1,209          1,129         230,557       61/106 Interquartile range

# S011a: Cancer - people waiting longer than 62 days STS FT Weekly  w/e 

05/12/2021
89                75               23,231         51/135 Interquartile range

S012a: Cancer - % meeting faster diagnosis standard SCCG Monthly  2021 10 >75% Met 83.4% 73.5%   6/106 Highest performing quartile

# S013a: Diagnostic activity levels - Imaging SCCG Monthly  2021 10 6,231          6,364         1,484,642   79/106 Interquartile range

# S013b: Diagnostic activity levels - Physiological measurement SCCG Monthly  2021 10 530              451            124,048       76/106 Interquartile range

# S013c: Diagnostic activity levels - Endoscopy SCCG Monthly  2021 10 586              575            122,571       74/106 Interquartile range

Improve cancer outcomes: early diagnosis and survival

S014a: Cancer - proportion of people that survive cancer for at least 1 year after diagnosis SCCG Annual (calendar)  2018 72.3% (blank)   74/97 Lowest performing quartile

S015a: Cancer - proportion of cancers diagnosed at stages 1 or 2 SCCG Annual (calendar)  2018 51.4% (blank)   73/79 Lowest performing quartile

Outpatient reform: avoidance of up to a third of outpatient appointments

S016a: Specialist Advice (including G&A) activity levels STS FT #N/A #N/A #N/A #N/A #N/A ###

S016b: Outpatient - patient initiated follow-up activity levels STS FT #N/A #N/A #N/A #N/A #N/A ###
Implementation of agreed waiting times ✓

0 S017a: Outpatient - % of all activity delivered remotely via telephone or video consultation STS FT Monthly  2021 10 >25% Met 29.3% 33.5% 22.3%   21/138 Highest performing quartile

S018a: UEC measures subject to agreement with government on CRS STS FT #N/A #N/A #N/A #N/A #N/A ### ✓
S019a: Ambulance handover delays greater than 30 minutes (as reported by Acute Trusts) STS FT #N/A #N/A #N/A #N/A #N/A ###

0 S020a: Ambulance response times (Category 1 incidents) NEAS Monthly  2021 10 00:12:54 00:11:25 00:16:23   02/11 Highest performing quartile

0 S020b: Ambulance response times (Category 2 incidents) NEAS Monthly  2021 10 01:35:36 01:05:29 01:56:13   05/11 Interquartile range

0 S020c: Ambulance response times (Category 3 incidents) NEAS Monthly  2021 10 07:01:33 04:53:30 07:47:15   05/11 Interquartile range

0 S020d: Ambulance response times (Category 4 incidents) NEAS Monthly  2021 10 04:21:48 03:56:46 08:01:16   02/11 Highest performing quartile

Maternal and children’s health

0 S021a: Maternity - % women on continuity of care pathway STS FT Monthly  2021 03 0.0% 0.0% 26.3%   98/122 Lowest performing quartile

S022a: Maternity - number of stillbirths per 1,000 total births SCCG Annual (calendar)  2019
 4.21 per 

1,000 

 3.33 per 

1,000 
  74/88 Lowest performing quartile

S023a: Maternity - number of neonatal deaths per 1,000 live births SCCG Annual (calendar)  2018
 2.9 per 

1,000 

 1.63 per 

1,000 
  72/80 Lowest performing quartile

Emergency care: on agreed trajectory for same day emergency care (SDEC) and integrated urgent care services (IUC)

S024a: Proportion of NHS 111 callers given a booked time slot with an Emergency Department
IUC Area - 

NE
Monthly  2021 10 58.6% 49.7%   18/35 Interquartile range

S025a: Percentage of zero-day length of stay admissions (as a proportion of total) admissions STS FT #N/A #N/A #N/A #N/A #N/A ###

1 S026a: Proportion of ED patients who turn up unheralded STS FT Monthly  2021 11 97.5% 96.1% 96.2%   73/138 Interquartile range

Mental Health ✓ ✓
S027a: Delivery of the mental health investment standard #N/A #N/A #N/A #N/A #N/A ### ✓

# S081a: IAPT access (total numbers accessing services) SCCG Quarterly  21-22 Q1 2,438 Not Met 1,875 317,355       59/106 Interquartile range ✓
1 S082a: IAPT recovery rate (%) SCCG Quarterly  21-22 Q1 50% Met 57.7% 50.4%   8/106 Highest performing quartile ✓
1 S083a: Estimated diagnosis rate for people with dementia SCCG Monthly  2021 09 66.7% Not Met 61.7% 63.9% 62.0%   62/106 Interquartile range ✓ ✓

S084a: Children and young people (ages 0-17) mental health services access (number with 1+ contact) SCCG Monthly  2021 09 5,040 616,870       42/106 Interquartile range

# S085a: People with severe mental illness receiving a full annual physical health check and follow up interventions SCCG Quarterly  21-22 Q2 1,102          156,690       43/106 Interquartile range ✓
# S086a: Inappropriate adult acute mental health Out of Area Placement (OAP) bed days (internal or external) CNTW FT Monthly  2021 09 75                745            58,895         17/57 Interquartile range ✓
1 S086b: Inappropriate adult acute mental health Out of Area Placement (OAP) bed days (external only) CNTW FT Monthly  2021 09 1                   1                 46.9              45/57 Lowest performing quartile ✓
4.8 S087a: Rate per 100,000 population of people in adult acute mental health beds with a length of stay over 60 days SCCG Monthly  2021 09

 4.8 per 

100,000 

 4.8 per 

100,000 

 8.4 per 

100,000 
  24/106 Highest performing quartile ✓

16.3S087b: Rate per 100,000 population of people in older adult acute mental health care with a length of stay over 90 days SCCG Monthly  2021 09
 14.6 per 

100,000 

 0 per 

100,000 

 8.5 per 

100,000 
  92/106 Lowest performing quartile ✓

0 S088a: Number of women accessing specialist community perinatal mental health services SCCG Monthly  2021 09 4.5% 3.5% 5.9%   89/106 Lowest performing quartile ✓
1 S089a: Waiting times for Urgent Referrals to Children and Young People's Eating Disorder services SCCG Quarterly  21-22 Q2 75.0% 62.6%   49/106 Interquartile range

1 S089b: Waiting times for Routine Referrals to Children and Young People Eating Disorder Services SCCG Quarterly  21-22 Q2 93.6% 64.8%   27/106 Highest performing quartile

Learning disability and autism: reducing inpatient rate and increasing learning disability physical health checks ✓ ✓ ✓
61 pS029a: Reliance on specialist inpatient care for adults with a learning disability and/or autism ICS Quarterly  21-22 Q2

 67 per 

1,000,000 
  

 44 per 

1,000,000 
  38/39 Lowest performing quartile ✓ ✓ ✓

S029b: Reliance on specialist inpatient care for children with a learning disability and/or autism #N/A #N/A #N/A #N/A #N/A ### ✓
S030a: Percentage of people aged 14+  on the GP learning disability register receiving an annual health check SCCG Quarterly  21-22 Q2 22.3% 21.7% 22.5%   48/106 Interquartile range ✓ ✓
People will get more control over their own health by rolling out NHS personalised care model across the country ✓ ✓
S031a: Number of personalised care interventions SCCG Quarterly  20-21 Q4 6,887          1,452,024   63/106 Interquartile range ✓ ✓
S032a: Personal Health Budgets SCCG Quarterly  21-22 Q2 880              80,148         26/105 Highest performing quartile ✓ ✓
S033a: Social Prescribing unique patient referrals SCCG Quarterly  21-22 Q2 3,901          660,218       54/106 Interquartile range ✓ ✓
Delivering safe, high quality care overall ✓

1 S034a: Summary Hospital-Level Mortality Indicator STS FT Monthly  2021 07 116.0% 108.4% (blank)   118/122 Lowest performing quartile

3 - GS035a: Overall CQC rating (provision of high-quality care) STS FT Monthly  2021 11 3 - Good 3 - Good (blank)   15/137 Highest performing quartile

S036a: NHS Staff Survey Safety culture theme score STS FT Annual (calendar)  2020 6.84/10 6.8/10   58/136 Interquartile range

S037a: Patient experience of GP services SCCG Annual (calendar)  2021 86.8% 83.0%   17/106 Highest performing quartile ✓
S038a: Potential under-reporting of patient safety incidents #N/A #N/A #N/A #N/A #N/A ###

0 S040a: Methicillin-resistant Staphylococcus aureus (MRSA) bacteraemia infections SCCG Monthly  2021 10 -               0 40   3/106 Highest performing quartile

6 S041a: Clostridium difficile infections SCCG Monthly  2021 10 6                   7                 1,220            29/106 Interquartile range

# S042a: E. coli blood stream infections SCCG Monthly  2021 10 18                21               3,044            44/106 Interquartile range

S043a: Venous thromboembolism (VTE) risk assessment #N/A #N/A #N/A #N/A #N/A ###

S044a: Antimicrobial resistance: appropriate prescribing of antibiotics in primary care SCCG Monthly  2021 09 <87.1% Not Met 94.1% 76.4%   95/106 Lowest performing quartile ✓
S044b: Antimicrobial resistance: appropriate prescribing of broad spectrum antibiotics in primary care SCCG Monthly  2021 09 <10% Met 0.1% 9.7%   33/106 Interquartile range ✓
Preventing ill health and reducing inequalities ✓
Screening and vaccination programmes meet base levels in the public health agreement or national goals ✓
S045a: COVID-19 - % adults vaccinated ICS Weekly  w/e 

12/09/2021
89.8% 88.9%   25/42 Interquartile range ✓

1 S046a: Population vaccination coverage - MMR for two doses (5 years old) to reach the optimal standard nationally (95%) SCCG Quarterly  21-22 Q1 >95% Met 96.8% 86.3%   1/106 Highest performing quartile ✓
1 S047a: Percentage of people aged 65 and over who received a flu vaccination SCCG Monthly  2021 10 68.3% 63.2%   17/106 Highest performing quartile ✓

S048a: Cancer - bowel screening coverage, aged 60–74, screened in last 30 months Monthly #N/A #N/A #N/A #N/A #N/A ### ✓
S049a: Cancer - breast screening coverage, females aged 50–70, screened in last 36 months Monthly #N/A #N/A #N/A #N/A #N/A ### ✓
S050a: Cancer - cervical screening coverage, females aged 25-64, attending screening within target period SCCG Quarterly  20-21 Q4 75.9% 70.9%   20/106 Highest performing quartile ✓
Improvements for people with conditions such as diabetes, CVD and obesity ✓ ✓
S051a: Number of people supported through the NHS Diabetes Prevention programme ICS Quarterly  21-22 Q2 25.7% 46.9%   36/42 Lowest performing quartile ✓ ✓
S052a: Diabetes patients that have achieved all the NICE recommended treatment targets (adults and children) SCCG

Annual (financial 

year)
 2019-20 41.5% 39.0%   26/106 Highest performing quartile ✓ ✓

S053a: Number of people with CVD treated for cardiac high risk conditions #N/A #N/A #N/A #N/A #N/A ###

S055a: General Practice Referrals to NHS Digital Weight Management Programme - Crude Rate/100,000 population SCCG Quarterly  21-22 Q2
32.8 per 

100,000

38.4 per 

100,000
  45/106 Interquartile range ✓ ✓

Reducing inequalities ✓
S056a: BAME and most deprived quintile proportions across service restoration& LTP metrics #N/A #N/A #N/A #N/A #N/A ### ✓
S057a: COVID-19 vaccination uptake for black and minority ethnic groups and the most deprived quintile compared to the 

national average
#N/A #N/A #N/A #N/A #N/A ### ✓

S058a: Proportions of patient activities with an ethnicity code #N/A #N/A #N/A #N/A #N/A ### ✓

Leadership

3 - GS059a: CQC well-led rating STS FT Monthly  2021 11 3 - Good 3 - Good (blank)   18/137 Highest performing quartile

S060a: Aggregate score for NHS Staff Survey questions that measure perception of leadership culture Annual (calendar) #N/A #N/A #N/A #N/A #N/A ###
People

People Promise

S061a: People promise index #N/A #N/A #N/A #N/A #N/A ###
Looking after our people ✓
S062a: NHS Staff Survey Health and wellbeing theme score - Health and well-being index STS FT

Annual (calendar 

year)
 2020 5.96/10 (blank)   94/133 Interquartile range

S063a: NHS Staff Survey Safe environment - Bullying and harassment theme score STS FT
Annual (calendar 

year)
 2020 8.2/10 (blank)   41/133 Interquartile range

S064a: Proportion of staff who report that in the last three months they have come to work despite not feeling well enough to 

perform their duties
STS FT

Annual (calendar 

year)
 2020 47.5% (blank)   85/133 Interquartile range

S065a: Percentage of staff who say they are satisfied or very satisfied with the opportunities for flexible working patterns STS FT
Annual (calendar 

year)
 2020 52.2% (blank)   113/133 Lowest performing quartile

S066a: % of jobs advertised as flexible #N/A #N/A #N/A #N/A #N/A ###

0 S067a: Leaver rate STS FT Monthly  2021 05 5.3% 5.2% 7.1%   7/134 Highest performing quartile

0 S068a: Sickness absence (working days lost to sickness) STS FT Monthly  2021 02 5.5% 5.4% 4.7%   117/137 Lowest performing quartile

S069a: NHS Staff Survey Staff engagement theme score STS FT
Annual (calendar 

year)
 2020 6.87/10 (blank)   110/133 Lowest performing quartile

1 S070a: Number of people working in the NHS who have had a flu vaccination STS FT Monthly  2021 10 28.4% 41.8%   96/107 Lowest performing quartile

Rank National Rank Banding* Trend - latest 12 data points

Key: Deterioration / Improvement

ATB Programme Alignment

System Oversight Framework 2021/22

Indicator Level Monitoring Desired Direction Latest Period
Target/ 

standard
Value

Same 

Period 

Previous 

Year

National 

value



9 achieved
Change from 

previous period

3 period 

continuous 

change

P1 P2 P3 P4 P5

Rank National Rank Banding* Trend - latest 12 data points

Key: Deterioration / Improvement

ATB Programme Alignment

System Oversight Framework 2021/22

Indicator Level Monitoring Desired Direction Latest Period
Target/ 

standard
Value

Same 

Period 

Previous 

Year

National 

value

S071a: Proportion of staff in senior leadership roles who are (a) from a BME background, (b) women #N/A #N/A #N/A #N/A #N/A ###

S072a: Proportion of staff who agree that their organisation acts fairly with regard to career progression / promotion, 

regardless of ethnic background, gender, religion, sexual orientation, disability or age
STS FT

Annual (calendar 

year)
 2020 88.8% (blank)   20/133 Highest performing quartile

0 S073a: Nursing vacancy rate STS FT Monthly  2021 10 3.0% 5.5% 9.7%   17/138 Highest performing quartile

S074a: Number of doctors working in general practice (WTE) #N/A #N/A #N/A #N/A #N/A ### ✓
S075a: Additional primary care WTE through ARRS #N/A #N/A #N/A #N/A #N/A ### ✓
S076a: Number of healthcare support workers employed by the NHS #N/A #N/A #N/A #N/A #N/A ### ✓
Finance and use of resources

The NHS will return to financial balance: NHS in overall financial balance each year

S077a: Performance against financial plan #N/A #N/A #N/A #N/A #N/A ###

S078a: Underlying financial position #N/A #N/A #N/A #N/A #N/A ###

S079a: Run rate expenditure #N/A #N/A #N/A #N/A #N/A ###

S080a: Overall trend in reported financial position #N/A #N/A #N/A #N/A #N/A ###
National Rank Banding: Lowest performing quartile -lowest 25%, Interquartile range = middle 50%, Highest performing quartile - highest 25%



Change from 

previous 

period

Change from 

previous 

period

3 period 

continuous 

change

Activity

Referral to Treatment (RTT)

18 Week Referral to Treatment Waiting Times - Admitted (adjusted) pathways SCCG YTD  2021/10 90% 65.2% 58.5%  gggggggggggg
18 Week Referral to Treatment Waiting Times - Non-admitted pathways SCCG YTD  2021/10 95% 91.3% 90.8%   gggggggggggg
18 Week Referral to Treatment Waiting Times - Incomplete pathways SCCG YTD  2021/10 92% 84.7% 69.2%   gggggggggggg
RTT waiting list SCCG Monthly  2021/11 TBC 27,354 17,977 
Number of 52+ week RTT waits SCCG Monthly  2021/11 TBC 255 460 
Urgent and emergency care

 % Patients admitted, transferred or discharged from A&E within four hours

All Types (YTD) STS FT YTD  2021/12 95% 82.4% 93.9%  2020/04  gggggggggggg
Type 1 (YTD) STS FT YTD  2021/12 95% 72.7% 91.1%  2020/04  gggggggggggg
Type 1 Adult  (YTD) STS FT YTD  2021/12 95% 66.9% 89.4%  2020/04  gggggggggggg
Type 1 Paediatic (YTD) STS FT YTD  2021/12 95% 91.8% 98.6%  2020/04  gggggggggggg
Type 2 (YTD) STS FT YTD  2021/12 95% 100.0% 99.2%  2020/04 gggggggggggg
Type 3 (YTD) STS FT YTD  2021/12 95% 98.3% 99.5%  2020/04 gggggggggggg
All Types (Month) STS FT Monthly  2021/12 95% 75.7% 89.2%  2020/04 gggggggggggg
Type 1 (Month) STS FT Monthly  2021/12 95% 63.4% 83.8%  2020/04 gggggggggggg
Type 1 Adult (Month) STS FT Monthly  2021/12 95% 57.5% 80.7%  2020/04 gggggggggggg
Type 1 Paediatric (Month) STS FT Monthly  2021/12 95% 86.3% 98.4%  2020/04 gggggggggggg
Trolley waits

No waits from decision to admit to admission (trolley waits) over 12 hours SCCG YTD  2021/11 0 0 0 gggggggggggg
Ambulance

NHS 111 referrals to SDEC (as an alternative to ED) SCCG Monthly  TBC

Diagnostics

Patients waiting six weeks or more for a diagnostic test SCCG YTD  2021/10 1% 38.6% 0.4%  gggggggggggg
Cancer waiting times

2 Week Wait SCCG YTD  2021/10 93% 88.5% 85.5%   gggggggggggg
2 Week Wait (Breast Symptoms) SCCG YTD  2021/10 93% 74.6% 51.5%  gggggggggggg
31 Day First Treatment SCCG YTD  2021/10 96% 96.4% 99.1%  gggggggggggg
31 Day Surgery SCCG YTD  2021/10 94% 94.0% 94.2%  gggggggggggg
31 Day Drugs SCCG YTD  2021/10 98% 99.2% 99.5%  gggggggggggg
31 Day Radiotherapy SCCG YTD  2021/10 94% 99.0% 94.9%  gggggggggggg
62 Day First Treatment SCCG YTD  2021/10 85% 81.3% 82.1%  gggggggggggg
62 Day Screening SCCG YTD  2021/10 90% 80.2% 64.3%  gggggggggggg
Learning disabilities and autism

Reliance on inpatient care for people with a learning disability and/or autism SCCG YTD  TBC

Learning disability registers and annual health checks delivered by GPs SCCG YTD  2021/11 665 778 728   gggggggggggg
Mixed sex accommodation

Number of patient breaches of Mixed Sex Accommodation SCCG YTD  0

Cancelled operations

Cancelled operations for non clinical reasons who were given a TCI date within 28 

days of the original appointment
STS FT YTD  2021/08 0 40

No urgent operation to be cancelled for a 2nd time STS FT YTD  0

Mental Health

% patients discharged from Mental Health wards receiving follow up within 7 days SCCG YTD 

2021/22 Better Care Fund Metrics
Change from 

previous 

period

Change from 

previous 

period

3 period 

continuous 

change
Arrow Key: 

Deterioration 

Delaying and reducing the need for care and support

Delaying dependency 

Long term support needs of older people (aged 65 and over) met by admission to 

residential and nursing care homes, per 100,000 population
Sun.LA Annual 

Reablement

Proportion of older people (65 and over) who were still at home 91 days after 

discharge from hospital into reablement/ rehabilitation services
Sun.LA Quarterly 

 Improving outcomes for people being discharged from hospital

Reducing length of stay in hospital

Percentage of inpatients who have been in hospital for 14 days or longer Sun.LA Monthly 
Percentage of inpatients who have been in hospital for 21 days or longer Sun.LA Monthly 
Improving the proportion of people discharged home or to their usual place of residence

Percentage of hospital inpatients who have been  discharged to usual place of 

residence
Sun.LA Monthly 

Unplanned hospitalisation

Reduce emergency admissions for all long-term conditions where optimum management can be achieved in the community

Unplanned hospitalisation for chronic ambulatory care sensitive conditions (2.3.i) Sun.LA Monthly 

Performance

 latest 12 data points

Desired 

Direction
Latest Period

Target/ 

standard
Value

Same 

Period 

Previous 

Year

Indicator Level
Monitoring 

Frequency

Desired 

Direction
Latest Period

Target/ 

standard
Value

Same 

Period 

Previous 

Year

Performance

 latest 12 data points

Trend

 latest 12 data points

2021/22 Priorities and Operational Standards

Indicator Level
Monitoring 

Frequency

Trend

 latest 12 data points
Arrow Key: Deterioration / Improvement
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CATEGORY OF PAPER  

Proposes specific action  

Provides assurance   

For information only  

 

GOVERNING BODY 
 

24th May 2022 

Report Title: 

 
Sunderland Better Care Fund Year End 

Submission for 2021/22 
 

Purpose of report 

 
To present the Better Care Fund year end technical submission for Sunderland for 2021/22 
for information. 
 

Key points 

Health and well-being boards (HWBs) are required to submit annual national better care 
fund (BCF) plans.   
 
BCF plans must be submitted that set out delivery against key national conditions.  For 
2021/22, there are four national conditions which are detailed in section 3.1. 
 
BCF plans comprise of a technical submission which includes metrics, detailed financial 
analysis and the national conditions.  A separate narrative is also required setting out the 
approach to integration, governance and other key lines of enquiry (KLOE). 
 
The BCF plan remains aligned to the scope of ATB and as such, the plan exceeds the 
minimum requirements of CCG and LA contributions (national condition 2 and 3) 
 
Trajectories were developed for discharge, ambulatory care sensitive emergency 
admissions, reablement and residential care.  Key members of ATB were engaged when 
developing the metrics e.g. discharge leads and ATB Senior Responsible Officer (SRO) 
 
The Sunderland BCF Plan was submitted and accepted by NHS England and a year end 
submission is required to outline progress towards delivery of the BCF in 2021/22. 
 
Sunderland continues to meet all national requirements of the BCF in terms of KLOEs and 
financial expectations as set out in this technical submission for 2021/22. 
 
Delivery of the key national metrics was always going to be a challenge due to the 
pressures in the system when the BCF was submitted in November'21.  All but one metric 
is not on track to deliver due to the very ambitious targets set by NHS England.  Although 
not on track to deliver, most did show an improvement on the baseline positions which is 
encouraging. 
 
Key successes and challenges around the delivery of the BCF and integrated working are 
highlighted in the submission.  The technical submission sets out the successes for 
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2021/22 around our surge arrangements and the system working during these challenging 
times to support patients, families and the workforce in Sunderland.   
 
The submissions also sets out the challenges around social care budget pressures and the 
impact of the COVID pandemic on families, customers and patients. 
 
 

Risks and issues 

 

Pressures in the system continue to impact on the delivery of key metrics around discharge 
and emergency admissions and this will be a key area within the 2022/23 BCF when 
released. 
 

Assurances  

 
The scope of the BCF remains aligned to ATB and assurances continue to be provided via 
governance processes in Sunderland. 
 

Recommendation/Action Required 

The Governing Body is asked to: 

• Receive the Better Care Fund year end technical submission for 2021/22 
 

Sponsor/approving directors   
David Chandler 
Chief Officer and Chief Finance Officer 

Report author 
Matt Thubron 
Head of Contracting and Performance  

Governance and Assurance 

Link to CCG corporate objectives  (please tick all that apply) 

CO1:Develop and support system transformation and  ensure a well-led organisation  

CO2:  Maintain financial control and performance   

CO3: Maintain and improve quality of CCG commissioned services  

CO4:Identify and deliver the CCG’s strategic priorities  

CO5: Covid-19 Response and Recovery  

Relevant legal/statutory issues 

Better Care Fund Policy Planning Framework 

Any potential/actual conflicts 
of interest associated with the 
paper? (please tick) 

Yes  No  N/A  

If yes, please specify  

Equality analysis completed 
(please tick)  

Yes  No  N/A  
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Quality impact assessment 
undertaken  
(please tick) 

Yes  No  N/A  

,  

Key implications 

Are additional resources 
required?   

 

No 

Has there been appropriate 
clinical engagement?  

Yes via All Together Better and relevant SRO and SRC 

Has there been/or does there 
need to be any patient and 
public involvement? 

N/A 

Is there an expected impact on 
patient outcomes/experience?  
If yes, has a quality impact 
assessment been undertaken? 

N/A 

Has there been member 
practice and/or other 
stakeholder engagement if 
needed?   

N/A 
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Governing Body 

Sunderland Better Care Fund Full Year Technical Submission 2021/22 
24th May 2022 

 
 
1.0 Purpose of the Report 
 
 To provide the Sunderland Health and Wellbeing Board with an update in 

relation to the 2021/22 annual Better Care Fund (BCF) submission for 
Sunderland. 

 
 

2.0 Background 
 
 Health and Wellbeing Boards (HWBs) are required nationally to provide 

regular technical submissions to NHS England and Improvement (NHS E/I) in 
relation to the BCF plans.  

 
 Following on from the previous year, NHS E/I required a final year end 

2021/22 technical submission for HWB areas to confirm that all national 
conditions have been met and a short set of statements outlining any 
challenges, areas of best practice and delivery against the nationally 
prescribed metrics. 

 
 In 2021/22, Sunderland City Council and Sunderland CCG agreed a section 

75 which set out the funding arrangements between the two parties which was 
aligned to the BCF in 2021/22.  The BCF and S75 were agreed by the 
Governing Body in December'21 and January'22 respectively. 

 
 As the year end submission was a technical submission, it was agreed that 

the Chief Officer and Chief Finance Officer for Sunderland CCG would sign off 
the submission for the deadline of Friday 27th May 2022. 

 
3.0 2021/22 BCF Technical Submission 
 
 

All national conditions have been met in 2021/22 and the required income and 
expenditure requirements were met in line with national requirements for 
Sunderland. 

 
 Year-end feedback has been provided which set out specific challenges 

facing Sunderland during 2021/22 and successes that have been achieved.  
The impact of the pandemic, managing increased system and policy change, 
workforce factors impacting available resource in Sunderland were highlighted 
as specific challenges as well as the local demographic factors against the 
need to manage budget pressures. 

  
 The joined-up system working in Sunderland has been a success with 

integrated records and sharing in place across the system and joint 
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commissioning of health and care led to increased good practice and a 
potential model for future delivery.  This included responsible short-term 
services and creation of alternative solutions to care situations across the 
system.   

 
The system approach to managing surge has been highlighted a key area of 
success and the impact on discharge which did show a significant 
improvement for medically optimised patients.   

  
Despite showing improvements against all nationally set metrics, all but one 
metric was achieved which was the percentage of patients discharged to their 
usual residence.  NHS England expected systems to submit very stretching 
and ambitious targets for 2021/22 and this technical submission sets out the 
current performance including the challenges and achievements for each 
metric.   
 
 

4.0 Recommendation 
 
  The Board is recommended to: 

• Receive the 2020/21 Sunderland BCF return for information 
 
 

  
 



Better Care Fund 2021-22 Year-end Template

1. Guidance

Overview

The Better Care Fund (BCF) reporting requirements are set out in the BCF Planning Requirements document 

for 2021-22, which supports the aims of the BCF Policy Framework and the BCF programme; jointly led and 

developed by the national partners Department of Health (DHSC), Department for Levelling Up, Hosusing and 

Communities, NHS England (NHSE), Local Government Association (LGA), working with the Association of 

The key purposes of BCF reporting are:

1) To confirm the status of continued compliance against the requirements of the fund (BCF)

2) To confirm actual income and expenditure in BCF plans at the end of the financial year

3) To provide information from local areas on challenges, achievements and support needs in progressing the 

4) To enable the use of this information for national partners to inform future direction and for local areas to 

BCF quarterly reporting is likely to be used by local areas, alongside any other information to help inform 

HWBs on progress on integration and the BCF.  It is also intended to inform BCF national partners as well as 

those responsible for delivering the BCF plans at a local level (including clinical commissioning groups, local 

BCF quarterly reports submitted by local areas are required to be signed off by HWBs as the accountable 

governance body for the BCF locally and these reports are therefore part of the official suite of HWB 

The BCF quarterly reports in aggregated form will be shared with local areas prior to publication in order to 

support the aforementioned purposes of BCF reporting. In relation to this, the BCF Team will make the 

aggregated BCF quarterly reporting information in entirety available to local areas in a closed forum on the 

Note on entering information into this template

Throughout the template, cells which are open for input have a yellow background and those that are pre-

populated have a grey background, as below:

Data needs inputting in the cell

Pre-populated cells

Note on viewing the sheets optimally

To more optimally view each of the sheets and in particular the drop down lists clearly on screen, please 

change the zoom level between 90% - 100%. Most drop downs are also available to view as lists within the 

The details of each sheet within the template are outlined below.

Checklist ( 2. Cover )

1. This section helps identify the sheets that have not been completed. All fields that appear as incomplete 

should be complete before sending to the BCF Team.

2. The checker column, which can be found on the individual sheets, updates automatically as questions are 

completed. It will appear 'Red' and contain the word 'No' if the information has not been completed. Once 

completed the checker column will change to 'Green' and contain the word 'Yes'

3. The 'sheet completed' cell will update when all 'checker' values for the sheet are green containing the word 'Yes

4. Once the checker column contains all cells marked 'Yes' the 'Incomplete Template' cell (below the title) will cha

5. Please ensure that all boxes on the checklist are green before submission.

2. Cover



1. The cover sheet provides essential information on the area for which the template is being completed, contact

2. Question completion tracks the number of questions that have been completed; when all the questions in 

each section of the template have been completed the cell will turn green. Only when all cells are green 

should the template be sent to:

england.bettercaresupport@nhs.net

3. Please note that in line with fair processing of personal data we request email addresses for individuals 

completing the reporting template in order to communicate with and resolve any issues arising during the 

reporting cycle. We remove these addresses from the supplied templates when they are collated and delete 

3. National Conditions

This section requires the Health & Wellbeing Board to confirm whether the four national conditions detailed 

in the Better Care Fund planning requirements for 2021-22 (link below) continue to be met through the 

delivery of your plan. Please confirm as at the time of completion.

https://www.england.nhs.uk/publication/better-care-fund-planning-requirements-2021-22/

This sheet sets out the four conditions and requires the Health & Wellbeing Board to confirm 'Yes' or 'No' 

that these continue to be met. Should 'No' be selected, please provide an explanation as to why the 

condition was not met within the quarter and how this is being addressed. Please note that where a National 

Condition is not being met, the HWB is expected to contact their Better Care Manager in the first instance.

In summary, the four national conditions are as below:

National condition 1: Plans to be jointly agreed

National condition 2: NHS contribution to adult social care is maintained in line with the uplift to CCG 

National condition 3: Agreement to invest in NHS commissioned out-of-hospital services

National condition 4: Plan for improving outcomes for people being discharged from hospital

4. Metrics

The BCF plan includes the following metrics: Unplanned hospitalisation for chronic ambulatory care sensitive 

conditions, Proportion of hospital stays that are 14 days or over, Proportion of hospital stays that are 14 days 

or over, Proportion of discharges to a person's usual place of residence, Residential Admissions and 

This section captures a confidence assessment on achieving the plans for each of the BCF metrics.

A brief commentary is requested for each metric outlining the challenges faced in achieving the metric plans, 

any support needs and successes that have been achieved.

The BCF Team publish data from the Secondary Uses Service (SUS) dataset for Long length of stay (14 and 21 

days) and Dischaege to usual place of residence at a local authority level to assist systems in understanding 

The metris worksheet seeks a best estimate of confidence on progress against the achievement of BCF 

metric plans and the related narrative information and it is advised that:

- In making the confidence assessment on progress, please utilise the available published metric data (which 

should be typically available for 2 of the 3 months) in conjunction with the interim/proxy metric information 

for the third month (which is eventually the source of the published data once agreed and validated) to 

 - In providing the narrative on Challenges and Support needs, and Achievements, most areas have a 

sufficiently good perspective on these themes by the end of the quarter and the unavailability of published 

metric data for one of the three months of the quarter is not expected to hinder the ability to provide this 

useful information. Please also reflect on the metric performance trend when compared to the quarter from 

the previous year - emphasising any improvement or deterioration observed or anticipated and any 

Please note that the metrics themselves will be referenced (and reported as required) as per the standard 

5. Income and Expenditure

The Better Care Fund 2021-22 pool constitutes mandatory funding sources and any voluntary additional 

pooling from LAs (Local Authorities) and CCGs. The mandatory funding sources are the DFG (Disabled 

Facilities Grant), the improved Better Care Fund (iBCF) grant, and the minimum CCG contribution. A large 

mailto:england.bettercaresupport@nhs.net
mailto:england.bettercaresupport@nhs.net
mailto:england.bettercaresupport@nhs.net
mailto:england.bettercaresupport@nhs.net
https://www.england.nhs.uk/publication/better-care-fund-planning-requirements-2021-22/


Income section:

 - Please confirm the total HWB level actual BCF pooled income for 2021-22 by reporting any changes to the 

planned additional contributions by LAs and CCGs as was reported on the BCF planning template. 

 - The template will automatically pre populate the planned expenditure in 2021-22 from BCF plans, including 

additional contributions.

 - If the amount of additional pooled funding placed intothe area's section 75 agreement is different to the 

amount in the plan, you should select 'Yes'. You will then be able to enter a revised figure.  Please enter the 

 - Please provide any comments that may be useful for local context for the reported actual income in 20121-

Expenditure section:

 - Please select from the drop down box to indicate whether the actual expenditure in you BCF section 75 is 

different to the planned amount. 

 - If you select 'Yes', the boxes to record actual spend, and expanatory comments will unlock. 

 - You can then enter the total, HWB level, actual BCF expenditure for 2021-22 in the yellow box provided 

and also enter a short commentary on the reasons for the change.

 - Please provide any comments that may be useful for local context for the reported actual expenditure in 

6. Year End Feedback

This section provides an opportunity to provide feedback on delivering the BCF in 2021-22 through a set of 

survey questions

The purpose of this survey is to provide an opportunity for local areas to consider the impact of BCF and to 

provide the BCF national partners a view on the impact across the country. There are a total of 9 questions. 

Part 1 - Delivery of the Better Care Fund

There are a total of 3 questions in this section. Each is set out as a statement, for which you are asked to 

select one of the following responses:

 - Strongly Agree

 - Agree

 - Neither Agree Nor Disagree

 - Disagree

 - Strongly Disagree

The questions are:

1. The overall delivery of the BCF has improved joint working between health and social care in our locality

2. Our BCF schemes were implemented as planned in 2021-22

3. The delivery of our BCF plan in 2021-22 had a positive impact on the integration of health and social care 

Part 2 - Successes and Challenges

This part of the survey utilises the SCIE (Social Care Institue for Excellence) Integration Logic Model published 

on this link below to capture two key challenges and successes against the 'Enablers for integration' 

Please highlight:

8. Two key successes observed toward driving the enablers for integration (expressed in SCIE’s logic model) 
9. Two key challenges observed toward driving the enablers for integration (expressed in SCIE’s logic model) 

For each success and challenge, please select the most relevant enabler from the SCIE logic model and 

provide a narrative describing the issues, and how you have made progress locally. 

SCIE - Integrated care Logic Model

1. Local contextual factors (e.g. financial health, funding arrangements, demographics, urban vs rurual 

https://www.scie.org.uk/integrated-health-social-care/measuring-progress/logic-model


2. Strong, system-wide governance and systems leadership

3. Integrated electronic records and sharing across the system with service users

4. Empowering users to have choice and control through an asset based approach, shared decision making 

5. Integrated workforce: joint approach to training and upskilling of workforce

6. Good quality and sustainable provider market that can meet demand

7. Joined-up regulatory approach

8. Pooled or aligned resources

9. Joint commissioning of health and social care

7. ASC fee rates

This section collects data on average fees paid by the local authority for social care. 

Specific guidance on individual questions can be found on the relevant tab.
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Please Note:

Checklist

Complete:

Yes

Yes

Yes

Yes

Yes

Yes

Please indicate who is signing off the report for submission on behalf of the HWB (delegated authority is also accepted):

Yes

Yes

Yes

Job Title:

Name:

Chief Officer and Chief Finance Officer

David Chandler

Has this report been signed off by (or on behalf of) the HWB at the time of 

submission?

If no, please indicate when the report is expected to be signed off:

Better Care Fund 2021-22 Year-end Template

2. Cover

Matt Thubron

matt.thubron@nhs.net

01915128488

Health and Wellbeing Board:

Completed by:

E-mail:

Contact number:

- The BCF end of year reports are categorised as 'Management Information' and data from them will published in an aggregated form on the NHSE website. Narrative 

sections of the reports will not be published. However as with all information collected and stored by public bodies, all BCF information including any narrative is subject 

to Freedom of Information requests.

- At a local level it is for the HWB to decide what information it needs to publish as part of wider local government reporting and transparency requirements. Until BCF 

information is published, recipients of BCF reporting information (including recipients who access any information placed on the BCE) are prohibited from making this 

information available on any public domain or providing this information for the purposes of journalism or research without prior consent from the HWB (where it 

concerns a single HWB) or the BCF national partners for the aggregated information.

- All information, including that provided on local authority fee rates, will be supplied to BCF partners to inform policy development.

- This template is password protected to ensure data integrity and accurate aggregation of collected information. A resubmission may be required if this is breached.

Sunderland



Complete:

2. Cover Yes

3. National Conditions Yes

4. Metrics Yes

5. Income and Expenditure actual Yes

6. Year-End Feedback Yes

7. ASC fee rates Yes

^^ Link back to top

<< Link to the Guidance sheet

Question Completion - when all questions have been answered and the validation boxes below have turned green you should send the 

template to england.bettercarefundteam@nhs.net saving the file as 'Name HWB' for example 'County Durham HWB'

Complete



Selected Health and Wellbeing Board:

Checklist

National Condition Confirmation

If the answer is "No" please provide an explanation as to why the condition was not met in 2021-

22:
Complete:

1) A Plan has been agreed for the Health and Wellbeing 

Board area that includes all mandatory funding and this is 

included in a pooled fund governed under section 75 of 

the NHS Act 2006?

(This should include engagement with district councils on 

use of  Disabled Facilities Grant in two tier areas)

Yes

Yes

2) Planned contribution to social care from the CCG 

minimum contribution is agreed in line with the BCF 

policy?

Yes

Yes

3) Agreement to invest in NHS commissioned out of 

hospital services?

Yes
Yes

4) Plan for improving outcomes for people being 

discharged from hospital

Yes
Yes

Better Care Fund 2021-22 Year-end Template

3. National Conditions

Sunderland

Confirmation of Nation Conditions



Selected Health and Wellbeing Board:

Achievements Please describe any achievements, impact observed or lessons learnt when considering improvements being pursued for the respective metrics

Metric Definition Assessment of progress 

against the metric plan for 

the reporting period

Challenges and any Support Needs Achievements

Avoidable 

admissions

Unplanned hospitalisation for chronic 

ambulatory care sensitive conditions

(NHS Outcome Framework indicator  

2.3i)
Not on track to meet target

Increased urgent care demand into ED as a 

result of system wide pressures and same 

day access.  Increased acuity of patients and 

increased ambulance arrivals impact on 

conversion to admission and same day 

Co- location of the Urgent Care centre next 

to the Emergency Department

Introducing  Same day Overspill Primary care 

clinics on top of our extended Primary Care 

arrangements

14 days or 

more

(Q3)

14 days or 

more

(Q4)

21 days or 

more

(Q3)

21 days or 

more

(Q4)

10.1% 10.7% 5.3% 5.8%

Discharge to 

normal place of 

residence

Percentage of people who are 

discharged from acute hospital to 

their normal place of residence

On track to meet target

Increased complexity of patients and 

conversion to admission impacting on flow in 

the hospital and out to the community.

Performance increased to 89% throughout 

the winter period and up to 90.1% in 

March'22.  Maintained good performance 

over a very challenging period. Discharging 

patients from hospital to assess their 

Res Admissions*

Rate of permanent admissions to 

residential care per 100,000 

population (65+) 

Not on track to meet target Provisional rate 1070 slightly over target.  A 

direct impact of Covid and changes to 

national hospital discharge policy has seen 

more people discharged from hospital with 

much higher levels of need requiring 24 hour 

Expanded use of DP and PHB 

Implementation of hosital discharge grant. 

Increased availability of short term 

community support and short term bed 

based services.

Reablement

Proportion of older people (65 and 

over) who were still at home 91 days 

after discharge from hospital into 

reablement / rehabilitation services

Not on track to meet target Actual for 21/22 was 67.4% compared to 

61.4% in 20/21.  This was due to a 

combination of factors incuding the hospital 

discharge policy whcih has seen people being 

discharged who are more frail and having 

The plan in 20/21 was to imrpove the actual 

numbers of people accessing reablement 

and increase the % of people remaining at 

home after 91 days whicha has been 

acheived this year.  

* In the absense of 2021-22 population estimates (due to the devolution of North Northamptonshire and West Northamptonshire), the denominator for the Residential Admissions metric is based on 2020-21 estimates

Sunderland

Better Care Fund 2021-22 Year-end Template

1,190.0

89.7%

For information - Your planned 

performance as reported in 2021-22 

planning

Increased complexity of patients and 

conversion to admission impacting on flow in 

the hospital and out to the community.

Discharging patients from hospital to assess 

their strengths and identify care and support 

requirements, increasing the number of 

community step down and step up beds , 

working closely with partners to improve the 

4. Metrics

Challenges and 

Support Needs

Please describe any challenges faced in meeting the planned target, and please highlight any support that may facilitate or ease the achievements of metric plans

National data may like be unavailable at the time of reporting. As such, please utilise data that may only be available system-wide and other local intelligence.

1,068

70.4%

Proportion of inpatients resident for:

     i) 14 days or more

     ii) 21 days or more

Length of Stay

Not on track to meet target
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Yes
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Selected Health and Wellbeing Board:

Income

Disabled Facilities Grant £4,055,399

Improved Better Care Fund £18,134,423

CCG Minimum Fund £26,089,222

Minimum Sub Total £48,279,044 Checklist

Complete:

CCG Additional Funding £130,147,216

Do you wish to change your 

additional actual CCG funding? Yes 142590288 Yes

LA Additional Funding £67,209,027

Do you wish to change your 

additional actual LA funding? Yes £67,679,593 Yes

Additional Sub Total £197,356,243 £210,269,881

Planned 21-22 Actual 21-22

Total BCF Pooled Fund £245,635,287 £258,548,925

Yes

Expenditure

2021-22

Plan £245,635,287

Yes

Actual £258,658,104 Yes

Yes

Please provide any comments that may be 

useful for local context where there is a 

difference between planned and actual income 

for 2021-22

LA additional funding of £470,566 due to increased spend

CCG additional funding £8,828,408 in relation to Hospital Discahrge Programme and £2,043,073 in 

relation to investments in Mental Health

Do you wish to change your actual BCF expenditure? Yes

Please provide any comments that may be 

useful for local context where there is a 

difference between the planned and actual 

expenditure for 2021-22

DFG underspend £894,253 to be carried forward to 22/23 due to COVID pressures during 21/22.

CCG overspend of £1,003,433 in the main relating to additional costs of community packages of care

ActualPlanned

Better Care Fund 2021-22 Year-end Template

5. Income and Expenditure actual

Sunderland

2021-22
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6. Year-End Feedback

Selected Health and Wellbeing Board: Sunderland

Statement: Response: Comments: Please detail any further supporting information for each response

1. The overall delivery of the BCF has improved joint working 

between health and social care in our locality

Agree

The BCF arrangements in Sunderland continued to provide a useful touch point to maintain 

the strong ethos of partnership working in the City.

2. Our BCF schemes were implemented as planned in 2021-22

Neither agree nor disagree

Whilst continuing to work with planned schemes, these have been impacted by Covid and 

the D2A guidance issued.  This has meant that some of the implementations were amended 

in order to meet presenting need throughout the pandemic.  Now as we recover this has 

presented increasing opportunties to futher refine these plans for improved outcomes.  This 

3. The delivery of our BCF plan in 2021-22 had a positive impact 

on the integration of health and social care in our locality

Agree

The BCF plan has continued to support our local integration particularly during a period 

where integration and the maturity of that integration was key.  Ther have been further 

developments and enhancement in health and social care integration not least through IDT, 

shared care records and delivery of funding arrangements.

4. Outline two key successes observed toward driving the enablers 

for integration (expressed in SCIE's logical model) in 2021-22

SCIE Logic Model Enablers, Response 

category:

Success 1

2. Strong, system-wide governance 

and systems leadership

Success 2

9. Joint commissioning of health and 

social care

5. Outline two key challenges observed toward driving the 

enablers for integration (expressed in SCIE's logical model) in 2021-

22

SCIE Logic Model Enablers, Response 

category:

The purpose of this survey is to provide an opportunity for local areas to consider and give feedback on the impact of the BCF. Covid-19 had a significant impact on services and schemes delivered on the ground which may have 

changed the context.  However, national BCF partners would value and appreciate local area feedback to understand views and reflections of the progress and challenges faced during 2021-22 

There is a total of 5 questions. These are set out below.

Part 1: Delivery of the Better Care Fund

Please use the below form to indicate to what extent you agree with the following statements and then detail any further supporting information in the corresponding comment boxes.

Part 2: Successes and Challenges

Please select two Enablers from the SCIE Logic model which you have observed demonstrable success in progressing and two Enablers which you have experienced a relatively greater degree of 

challenge in progressing.

Please provide a brief description alongside.

Response - Please detail your greatest successes

System wide surge group in place with Senior Leadership Group established to support the system at time of significant 

pressure.  Continued focus on flow and discharge to support the system and workforce.  The strong system wide governance, 

leadership and commitment to improve led to a significant improvement in the number of medically optimised patients 

discharged by 5pm and reduced delays for parthway 2 and 3 discharges, over delivering against a target set by NHS England.

Innovation in the Commissioning arena to met changing and increasing demand over the Covid period.  This has led to 

increased good practice and a potential model for future delivery.  Includes responsive short term services, creation of AT 

and alternative solutions to care situations across the system.

Response - Please detail your greatest challenges



Challenge 1

1. Local contextual factors (e.g. 

financial health, funding 

arrangements, demographics, urban 

vs rural factors)

Challenge 2

4. Empowering users to have choice 

and control through an asset based 

approach, shared decision making 

and co-production

Footnotes:

Question 4 and 5 are should be assigned to one of the following categories:

1. Local contextual factors (e.g. financial health, funding arrangements, demographics, urban vs rural factors)

2. Strong, system-wide governance and systems leadership

3. Integrated electronic records and sharing across the system with service users

4. Empowering users to have choice and control through an asset based approach, shared decision making and co-production

5. Integrated workforce: joint approach to training and upskilling of workforce

6. Good quality and sustainable provider market that can meet demand

7. Joined-up regulatory approach

8. Pooled or aligned resources

9. Joint commissioning of health and social care

Other

The impact of the pandemic on customers, families and systems as well as changes in policy initially has changed the dynamic 

around choice, control and an asset based approach due to illness, self isolation etc.  This has now eased and is being further 

developed acorss agencies and with families

Impact of the pandemic, managing increased system and policy change, workforce factors inpacting available resource within 

the Health and Social Care Market, changing demand as a result of pandemic and  local dempograhic factors against the need 

to manage budget pressures.



Checklist

Complete:

Yes

Yes

Yes

Yes

Yes



Yes

Yes
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7. ASC fee rates

Selected Health and Wellbeing Board: Sunderland

Given the introduction of the Market Sustainability and Fair Cost of Care Fund in 2022-23, we are exploring where best to collect this data in future, but have chosen to collect 2021-22 data through the iBCF for consistency 

with previous years.

The iBCF fee rate collection gives us better and more timely insight into the fee rates paid to external care providers, which is a key part of social care reform.

These questions cover average fees paid by your local authority (gross of client contributions/user charges) to external care providers for your local authority's eligible clients. The averages will likely 

need to be calculated from records of payments paid to social care providers and the number of client weeks they relate to, unless you already have suitable management information.

We are interested ONLY in the average fees actually received by external care providers for your local authority's eligible supported clients (gross of client contributions/user charges), reflecting what 

your local authority is able to afford.

In 2020-21, areas were asked to provide actual average rates (excluding whole market support such as the Infection Control Fund but otherwise, including additional funding to cover cost pressures related to management 

of the COVID-19 pandemic), as well as a ‘counterfactual’ rate that would have been paid had the pandemic not occurred. This counterfactual calculation was intended to provide data on the long term costs of providing 

care to inform policymaking. In 2021-22, areas are only asked to provide the actual rate paid to providers (not the counterfactual), subject to than the exclusions set out below.

Specifically the averages SHOULD therefore:

- EXCLUDE/BE NET OF any amounts that you usually include in reported fee rates but are not paid to care providers e.g. your local authority's own staff costs in managing the commissioning of places.

- EXCLUDE/BE NET OF any amounts that are paid from sources other than eligible local authority funding and client contributions/user charges, i.e. you should EXCLUDE third party top-ups, NHS Funded 

Nursing Care and full cost paying clients.

- EXCLUDE/BE NET OF whole-market COVID-19 support such as Infection Control Fund payments.

- INCLUDE/BE GROSS OF client contributions /user charges.

- INCLUDE fees paid under spot and block contracts, fees paid under a dynamic purchasing system, payments for travel time in home care, any allowances for external provider staff training, fees directly 

commissioned by your local authority and fees commissioned by your local authority as part of a Managed Personal Budget.

- EXCLUDE care packages which are part funded by Continuing Health Care funding.

If you only have average fees at a more detailed breakdown level than the three service types of home care, 65+ residential and 65+ nursing requested below (e.g. you have the more detailed categories 

of 65+ residential without dementia, 65+ residential with dementia) please calculate for each of the three service types an average weighted by the proportion of clients that receive each detailed

category: 1. Take the number of clients receiving the service for each detailed category.

2. Divide the number of clients receiving the service for each detailed category (e.g. age 65+ residential without dementia, age 65+ residential with dementia) by the total number of clients receiving the 

relevant service (e.g. age 65+ residential).

3. Multiply the resultant proportions from Step 2 by the corresponding fee paid for each detailed category.

4. For each service type, sum the resultant detailed category figures from Step 3.

Please leave any missing data cells as blank e.g. do not attempt to enter '0' or 'N/A'.



For information - your 2020-

21 fee as reported in 2020-21 

end of year reporting *

Average 2020/21 fee. If you 

have newer/better data than 

End of year 2020/21, enter it 

below and explain why it 

differs in the comments. 

Otherwise enter the end of 

year 2020-21 value

What was your actual average 

fee rate per actual user for 

2021/22?

Implied Uplift: Actual 2021/22 

rates compared to 2020/21 

rates

1. Please provide the average amount that you paid to external 

providers for home care, calculated on a consistent basis.

(£ per contact hour, following the exclusions as in the 

instructions above)

£16.21

£14.96 £15.48

3.5%

2. Please provide the average amount that you paid for external 

provider care homes without nursing for clients aged 65+, 

calculated on a consistent basis.

(£ per client per week, following the exclusions as in the 

instructions above)

£719.60

£666.79 £686.79

3.0%

3. Please provide the average amount that you paid for external 

provider care homes with nursing for clients aged 65+, 

calculated on a consistent basis.

(£ per client per week, following the exclusions in the 

instructions above)

£727.28

£673.91 £694.13

3.0%

4. Please provide additional commentary if your 2020-21 fee is 

different from that reported in your 2020-21 end of year report.

Please do not use more than 250 characters.

14 characters remaining

Footnotes:

*** Both North Northamptonshire & West Northamptonshire will pull the same last year figures as reported by the former Northamptonshire 

County Council.

**  For column F, please calculate your fee rate as the expenditure during the year divided by the number of actual client weeks during the year. This will 

pick up any support that you have provided in terms of occupancy guarantees.

(Occupancy guarantees should result in a higher rate per actual user.)

* ".." in the column C lookup means that no 2020-21 fee was reported by your council in the 2020-21 EoY report

The 1st column 20/21 rates include 10% COVID-19 uplift paid to Care Homes to end of Dec 

20 and reducing to 5% in Jan 21 with 0% from Feb 21 onwards. Home Care providers were 

paid 10% uplift to end of Jan 21 with 0% from Feb 21 onwards. 
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Item: 8.3 

 
CATEGORY OF PAPER  

Proposes specific action  

Provides assurance   

For information only  

 
Governing Body  

 
24 May 2022 

Report Title: 
 

Finance Report Year ended 2021/22 
 

Purpose of report 

 
The purpose of this report is to present to the Governing Body a summary of the financial position 
of the CCG for the year ended 2021/22. 
 
In addition, the report provides assurance on the delivery of the CCGs productivity plan for 
2021/22. 
 

Key points 

 
The finance paper provides assurance to the Governing Body on the achievement of statutory 
financial duties in 2021/22. 

 

Risks and issues 

 
The key issues are to ensure: 
 

• the CCG meets all its financial duties for 2021/22; and 

• the Governing Body are up to date with recent NHSE/I financial management regime changes 
which impact CCG finances  

 
Risks to delivery are documented within the report. 
 

Assurances  

 
The report provides assurance that the CCG has achieved its financial duties as described in 
recent NHS England and Improvement guidance related to CCGs financial management 
arrangements for the 2021/22 financial year.   
 
The report provides assurance that the CCG has achieved the Mental Health Investment Standard 
(MHIS) requirements for 2021/22. 
 

Recommendation/Action Required 

 
The Governing Body is asked to note the finance update. 
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Sponsor/approving director: 
David Chandler, Chief Officer and Chief Finance 
Officer 

Report author: 
 
Mark Speer, Head of Finance 
 

Reviewed by: Tarryn Lake, Associate Director of Finance 

Governance and Assurance 

Link to Sunderland CCG corporate objectives (please tick all that apply) 

CO1: Develop and support system transformation and ensure a well-led organisation 
 

CO2:  Maintain financial control and performance   

CO3:  Maintain and improve the quality and safety of CCG commissioned services  

CO4: Identify and deliver the CCG’s strategic priorities  

CO5: Covid-19 Response and Recovery  

Relevant legal/statutory issues  

N/A 

Any potential/actual conflicts 
of interest associated with the 
paper? (please tick) 

Yes  No  N/A  

N/A 

Equality analysis completed 
(please tick)  

Yes  No  N/A  

Quality impact assessment 
undertaken  
(please tick) 

Yes  No  N/A  

N/A 

Key implications 

Are additional resources 
required?   

 
None 

Has there been appropriate 
clinical engagement?  

N/A 

Has there been/or does there 
need to be any patient and 
public involvement? 

 
N/A 

Is there an expected impact on 
patient outcomes/experience?  
If yes, has a quality impact 
assessment been undertaken? 

 
N/A 

 

Has there been member 
practice and/or other 
stakeholder engagement if 
needed?   

 
N/A 
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Governing Body 
Finance Report for the period to 31st March 2022 

(Month 12) 
 

1. Purpose of Report 
 
The purpose of this report is to present to the Governing Body a summary of the 
financial position and year-end position of the CCG for the year ended 2021/22. 
 
In addition, the report incorporates assurance on the delivery of the CCGs 
productivity plans for 2021/22. 
 
 

2. Overview of NHS England and Improvement Guidance on CCG Financial 
Management in 2021/22 
 
H1 - 1st April 2021 to 31st September 2021 
 
The guidance on finance and contracting arrangements for H1 2021/22 (1st April 
2021 to 30th September 2021) was published on 25th March 2021 and 
subsequent financial envelopes for this period were released.  Detail on the H1 
arrangements has been included in previous reports the committee and is 
included in appendix 2 for information.    
 
H2 - 1st October 2021 to 31st March 2022 
 
 The guidance on finance and contracting arrangements for H2 2021/22 (1st 
October 2021 to 31st March 2022) was published on 30th September 2021 and 
subsequent financial envelopes for this period were released. 
 

 The Key points included within the guidance are: 
 

• Continues to be based on system level planning and delivery, with 
requirement to continue collaboration at an ICP level.   
 

• Funding envelopes have been rolled forward from H1 (including 
Foundation Trust top ups and COVID Funding) and adjusted for:  

o Additional growth including funding for the provider pay award for 
2021/22 and funding for the backpay to staff in provider 
organisations.  There is no additional funding for CCG staff 
backpay.   
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o Additional capacity funding to take into account increased levels of 
non-elective activity which for our ICP is £4.2m.  This is expected to 
cover the entirety of the UEC pathway, and it has been agreed to 
allocate this to the Local A&E Delivery Boards to determine the 
allocation across the system. There is also further specific funding 
for 999 and 111 and primary care.  

o A reduction in COVID system funding of £2m.   
o An efficiency requirement reflecting our distance from an adjusted 

original FIT (Financial Improvement Trajectory). For Central ICP the 
FIT is 1.14% which has translated into an efficiency of £2.8m.   

 

• There are a few funding streams which we will continue to receive outside 
of the announced allocations as follows:   

o Funding to support elective activity recovery in H2 which has now 
been split into two funding streams.  

▪ Elective Recovery Fund (ERF) to incentivise systems to 
increase elective activity above baseline levels based on 
2019/20 activity levels.  

▪ Targeted Investment Fund for targeted investments in return 
for specific delivery commitments in relation to elective care 
recovery.  For NENC ICS there is c£39m of capital with an 
element flexible between capital and revenue (c£11m). A 
process is being undertaken in the NENC Provider 
Collaborative to identify schemes against this funding which 
will require system approval.   

o Additional CCG programme funding and service development 
funding (SDF) to enable delivery of Long-Term Plan (LTP) priorities.  

o The Hospital Discharge Programme will continue to operate over 
H2, but confirmation has been provided that it will not continue into 
2022/23. Any future costs beyond 1st April 2022 (including 
packages started in March 2022) will need to be funded from ICB 
and Local Authority envelopes.    

 
The financial envelopes in H2 announced for delegated general practice services 
take into account the nationally agreed funding for general practice set out in July 
2021 covering GP contract uplifts, Care Home Premium, Investment and Impact 
Fund, ARRS and new QOF indicators.  NHSE/I has set out further funding in 
relation to improving access and supporting general practice in H2 for which 
schemes are currently being developed.  
 
The application of system funding and efficiencies was agreed in the Governing 
Body in Common meeting in early November 2021 along with an updated 
memorandum of understanding covering the H2 period.  The ICS will be 
expected to produce a balanced plan for the H2 period, and it is expected further 
discussions may be required on how this can be achieved across the ICPs.  
 
Please note that the CCG has participated in the H2 planning submission in line 
with national timelines, and in line with national expectations.  The reported 
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financial position contained within this report is based on the H1 reported month 
6 outturn, and H2 plan submission.  NHSE/I have confirmed that CCG financial 
performance will now be measured on the full 2021/22 financial year. 
 
2022/2023 Planning 

 
The 2022/23 operational priorities and financial framework published 24th 
December 2021, and various detailed technical guidance has been received 
throughout January and February.   
  
The key principles of the framework are:  

• requirement to support system collaboration  

• provides direction as to establishing the future allocations approach  

• Allows for the local determination of funding flows to support local service 
decisions within a simplified payments system 

 
The 2022/23 ICB programme allocations are based on 2021/22 H2 system 
envelopes (H2 x 2) adjusted for:  

• Baseline normalising adjustments e.g. normalise back pay for pay award 
funded in the 2021/22 H2 period 

• Adjustment for net growth to uplift for activity, inflation and 1.1% general 
efficiency  

• Convergence adjustment towards fair share allocations (will replace pace 
of change and FIT). The scale of the adjustment is dependent on the 
individual system’s distance from target fair share. NENC ICB is currently 
deemed to be 6.5% over funded from target fair share allocations which 
has resulted in a reduction in funding of £62m in 2022/23   

 
Additional funding is being allocated to support elective recovery and COVID-19 
in 2022/23.  As previously reported COVID-19 funding in 2022/23 has been 
reduced from 2021/22 levels with the reduction in funding being transferred to the 
elective recovery fund.  
 
Work is on-going across CCG finance and contracting teams and within the 
Central ICP to review the affordability of the financial envelopes available 
alongside the planning requirements.  A Governing Body in Common has met in 
early April 2022 and approved financial plans for 2022/23 across the Central ICP.  
The CCG Governing Body has approved detailed CCG Budgets on the 26th April 
2022. 
 
 

3. Summary Financial Performance 
 
The summary financial performance for the CCG against key financial 
performance indicators (KPI’s) is outlined below. The CCG is currently delivering 
against all financial KPI’s. Further detailed information is provided within this 
report on the performance against each KPI. 
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Reporting Area Key Performance Indicator Target Forecast 

Achievement

RAG RAG Colour

2021/22 Target 

£000's

2021/22 Outturn 

£000's

Forecast Performance against 2021/22 in-year allocation - (surplus) / deficit (570) (3,664) ↑ Green

Forecast Performance against cumulative surplus allocation - (surplus) / deficit (20,779) (23,873) ↑ Green

Running costs to remain within allocation 5,478 4,565 ↑ Green

Achievement of productivity targets 3,460 3,460 → Green

Period End Target Period End Position

Cash balance in bank account at period end <£500k £105k → Green

Better payment practice code average achievement >95% 99.77% → Green

Aged debts > £50k and > 90 days old 0 0 → Green

2021/22 Target 

£000's

2021/22 Outturn 

£000's

Headroom for mitigation of financial risks Greater than zero Greater than zero → Green

RAG Rating Key

↑ performance is on target and improving

→ performance is on target and has remained steady

↓ performance in on target and has declined

↑ performance is close to target and improving

→ performance is close to target and has remained steady 

↓ performance is close to target and declining 

↑ performance is off target but improving

→ performance is off target and has remained steady 

↓ performance is off target and declining

2021/22 

Income & 

Expenditure

Income & 

Expenditure

Statement of 

Financial 

Position

Financial Risks 

& Mitigation 

 
 Table 1: Financial KPIs 

 
NHSE has confirmed to CCGs that the cumulative surplus brought forward does 
not include surpluses delivered in 2020/21 due to the temporary financial regime 
being in place for this period.   As such the cumulative surplus carried over into 
2021/22 is the closing surplus for 2019/20.  
 
Please note that specific performance measurement for RAG rating of KPI 
indicators can be viewed in Appendix 1. 
 
 

4. 2021/22 Income and Expenditure 
 
 NHSE/I have now confirmed that CCG financial performance will be measured 
on the full 2021/22 financial year, thereby moving away from the separate H1 and 
H2 reporting periods.  For completeness, please note that the CCG achieved its 
H1 planned position of reporting a £570k surplus position. 
 
 The CCG is reporting a full year surplus of £3,664k which is £3,094k ahead of 
the original plan submitted to NHSE/I.  A £3,000k revised position had been 
agreed previously between the CCG and NHSE/I regional team.  Please note 
that NHSE/I have provided confirmation that 2021/22 surpluses (or deficits) will 
be retained into future financial years. NHSE/I have confirmed the £20,209k 
brought forward cumulative surplus for Sunderland CCG. 
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COVID/ Non COVID 

Expenditure

Non-ISFE - Main Category  (for COVID 19 

Model)

Year to Date

 NHSE/I 

Expenditure 

Plan

(£000's)

Year to Date

 Outturn

(£000's)

Year to Date 

Outturn

Variance

(£000's)

Non COVID Expenditure Acute Services (ISFE) 273,924 274,349 425

Community Health Services (ISFE) 42,001 41,990 -11

Continuing Care  Services (ISFE) 34,268 35,373 1,105

Mental Health Services (ISFE) 76,662 76,577 -86

Prescribing 51,653 50,360 -1,293

Primary Care Co-Commissioning (ISFE) 48,371 48,383 11

Primary Care Services (excl. Prescribing) 13,496 12,468 -1,028

Other Programme Services  (ISFE) 23,633 23,724 92

Running Costs (ISFE) 5,478 4,565 -913

Non COVID Expenditure Total 569,487 567,789 -1,698

COVID Expenditure Acute Services (ISFE) 37 37 0

Community Health Services (ISFE) 721 721 -0

Continuing Care  Services (ISFE) 50 50 0

Mental Health Services (ISFE) 0 0 0

Primary Care Co-Commissioning (ISFE) 815 815 0

Primary Care Services (excl. Prescribing) 0 0 0

Other Programme Services  (ISFE) 3,279 1,829 -1,450

Running Costs (ISFE) 0 0 0

COVID Expenditure Total 4,902 3,452 -1,450

Covid Hospital Discharge 

Expenditure

Community Health Services (ISFE) 1,422 1,417 -5

Continuing Care  Services (ISFE) 5,471 5,530 60

Covid Hospital Discharge Expenditure Total 6,893 6,948 55

Out of Envelope - Non 

COVID Expenditure - ERF

Acute Services (ISFE) 415 415 0

Out of Envelope - Non COVID Expenditure - ERF Total 415 415 0

Total COVID and Non COVID Expenditure 581,697 578,603 -3,094

2021/22 H1 Planned Surplus 570 0 -570

Total Position (Pre Cumulative Surplus) 582,267 578,603 -3,664

Prior year surpluses 20,209 0 -20,209

Total Position (Post Cumulative Surplus) 602,476 578,603 -23,873  
Table 2: CCG Financial Position  

 
Forecast Variance Explanations: 
 
Non COVID-19 Expenditure: 
 
Acute Services are reporting an overspend of £425k which in the main reflects 
additional spend in relation to non-contracted activity which increased from 
2020/21 levels of which planned budgets were based upon.  This is mainly linked 
to 2020/21 activity being unusually low due to national lockdowns and restriction 
of movements linked to the COVID pandemic.   
 
The Continuing Care reporting area is reporting an overspend of £1,105k.  This is 
an area of concern within the CCGs financial position in 2021/22 and recurrently.  
This is linked to the potential long-term impact of the COVID pandemic.  The ATB 
under programme 5 will be considering the full year and recurrent forecast for 
packages of care and any mitigating actions which can be put in place to manage 
financial risk.  When comparing the month 11 forecast to draft 2022/23 financial 
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planning estimates this shows that the current underlying financial pressure is 
£584k before future growth estimates and impacts of the ending of the Hospital 
Discharge Impact are factored into the 2022/23 forecasts. 
 
Prescribing remains an area of high volatility.  The current prescribing position is 
based on December 2021 actual data which suggests an underspend against 
plan of £1,293k, however it should be noted that a significant financial pressure 
remains against the underlying recurrent budget which the CCG had in place 
prior to the pandemic (adjusted for inflation).  There is significant work ongoing 
across the system to reduce inappropriate overprescribing in order to achieve 
best value from our medicines spend and to identify and achieve efficiencies.  
Where required additional resources are being deployed into this area to support 
financial recovery.   
 
Within the Primary Care services reporting line, a £1,028k underspend is being 
reported.  The biggest single item of £493k is the reversal of the previously held 
provision from the CCGs balance sheet in relation to potential provider 
sustainability issues as this is no longer required. The other key variances are 
£196k reduction in oxygen expenditure based on current information received on 
usage, in addition a £109k forecast underspend against out of hours services and 
£53k of underspends within the Medicines Optimisation team and related shared 
care reporting, with the remainder due to a combination of minor movements 
against the plan figure. 
 
Contained within the Other Programme Services reporting area is a non recurrent 
financial benefit in relation to NHSPS following the conclusion of negotiations 
between the CCG and NHSPS finance teams.  This has resulted in £1,397k 
benefit to the CCGs financial position in 2021/22.  This has been used to fund 
additional non recurrent spending plans with a significant element being directed 
to support the voluntary sector.   
 

 Delegated General Practice Budgets: 
 
Delegated general practice budgets are reported within the overall position of the 
CCG in line with the nature of the expenditure being incurred.  To ensure clarity 
and transparency on the financial position of the ring-fenced delegated general 
practice budget the memorandum account has been provided below for 
information.       
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COVID/ Non COVID 

Expenditure

Category Year to Date  

NHSE/I 

Expenditure 

Plan

(£000s)

Year to 

Date 

Outturn

(£000s)

Year to Date 

Outturn 

Variance

(£000s)

Non COVID Expenditure General Practice - GMS 23,969 24,055 86

General Practice - PMS 3,262 3,350 87

Other List-Based Services (APMS incl.) 2,376 2,189 -187

QOF 5,087 4,591 -496

Quality Premium 2,243 2,243 -0

Enhanced services 719 548 -170

Premises cost reimbursements 3,222 3,107 -115

Dispensing/Prescribing Drs 235 234 -1

Other - GP Services (including Career Start) 1,828 1,687 -141

PC Networks 5,430 6,377 947

Non COVID Expenditure Total 48,371 48,383 11

COVID Expenditure Enhanced services 141 141 -0

Other GP Services 674 674 0

COVID Expenditure Total 815 815 0

Total COVID and Non COVID Expenditure 49,186 49,198 11  
Table 3: Delegated Co-Commissioning Financial Position  

 
The CCG reported a minor overspend of £11k within Delegated Co-
Commissioning for 2021/22. 
 

 Running Costs: 
 
 Running costs is reporting a £913k underspend for the financial year.  This is 
ahead of the Governing Body commitment to set an annual £500k underspend 
for running costs against the recurrent allocation, with the remaining £413k in 
part due to additional NHSE/I allocations of £268k to fund the 6.3% pension uplift 
in line with NHSE/I guidance and previous financial years, along with several 
other small underspends.  Note the budget included in the CCG plan reflects the 
recurrent allocation announced by NHS England. 
 
COVID Expenditure:  
 
In relation to Covid £1,450k of the available resource was not required and has 
contributed to the CCG surplus position agreed at month 9.   
 
Out of Envelope Expenditure: 
 
The CCG incurred £6,948k of cost in relation to the separately funded national 
Hospital Discharge Programme.  The CCG received annual allocations of 
£6,893k, this has resulted in an overspend of £55k which forms part of the CCG's 
overall position.   
 
The CCG is also reporting spend of £415k against the Elective Recovery Fund 
(ERF) which is designed to support the reduction of elective waiting lists, for 
which additional allocations have been received in line with costs.   
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ATB and Better Care Fund:  
 
The financial summary below highlights the final ATB financial position for the 
financial year ending 31st March 2021/22. 
 
Scheme of 

Delegation 

Decision Making

ATB Programme Year to Date

 NHSE/I 

Expenditure 

Plan

(£000's)

Year to 

Date

Outturn 

(£000's)

Year to Date

Outturn 

Variance

(£000's)

Non-Covid Spend

General Practice 55,990 54,434 -1,556

Mental Health, Learning Disabilities and 

Autism

69,378 69,685 307

Enhanced Primary and Community Care 37,567 37,163 -404

Intermediate and Urgent Care 13,510 13,244 -265

Integrated Health and Social Care 39,396 40,708 1,312

215,841 215,234 -607

Covid Spend - Hospital Discharge

CCG Integrated Health and Social Care 6,893 6,948 55

222,734 222,182 -552

ATB

Non Covid Position (as at 31st March 2022)

Overall position (as at 31st March 2022)  
Table 4: ATB and BCF Financial Position  

 
The main reasons for variance are summarised below: 

• General Practice – Underspends in relation to the prescribing budget 

• Mental Health, Learning Disabilities and Autism – Overspends are linked 
to Section 117 packages of care 

• Enhanced Primary and Community Care – Underspend in relation to home 
Oxygen Service 

• Intermediate and Urgent Care – Underspend in relation to the Out of 
Hours Services 

• Integrated Health and Social Care – Overspend in relation to Packages of 
Care 

 
 

5. Financial Risks and Mitigations 
 

The CCG has successfully managed and mitigated financial risks in 2021/22 
leading to achievement of its financial duties. 

 
 
6. Productivity Plan Delivery 
 

As part of the H1 and H2 plans the CCG identified £3,460k (£1,264k H1 and 
£2,196k H2) of productivity requirements for 2021/22 in relation to prescribing 
expenditure and the efficiency applied to FT Block Contracts.   
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SDG met on the 15th March 2022 to gain assurance from the ATB on 
development and delivery of the prescribing plans. 
 
Assurance was provided on the development of the 2022/23 financial efficiency 
plan and additional system wide initiatives to address the underlying overspend 
in prescribing expenditure. SDG received detailed financial delivery information 
for the December 2021 reporting period.  Available information is limited at this 
point in the financial year (information provided to the CCG, in relation to 
prescribing, always has a time delay of 2 months) and as such the CCG (and 
ATB) are currently reporting expected achievement of the target based on 
activities currently being undertaken.  This is being assisted by a tracking tool 
developed by the medicines optimisation team which will monitor efficiencies, 
pressures and price changes at a detailed level.   
 
 

7. Statement of Financial Position 
 

Summary Statement of Financial Position:  
 
A copy of the summary Statement of Financial Position (SoFP) as at 31st March 
2022 shows current assets of £794k and current liabilities of £37,134k. 
 

Mar-22 Feb-22 Movement

£000's £000's £000's

Current Assets Trade and other Receivables 461 631 (170)

Prepayments & Accrued Income 228 1,465 (1,237)

Cash and cash equivalents 105 178 (73)

Total Current Assets 794 2,274 (1,480)

Total Assets 794 2,274 (1,480)

Current Liabilities Trade and other payables (10,785) (2,132) (8,653)

Accruals (26,349) (51,134) 24,785

Total Current Liabilities (37,134) (53,266) 16,132

Non-Current Assets plus/less Net Current Assets/Liabilities (36,340) (50,992) 14,652

TOTAL ASSETS EMPLOYED (36,340) (50,992) 14,652

Financed by Taxpayers Equity

Capital & Reserves General Fund (36,340) (50,992) 14,652

TOTAL TAXPAYERS EQUITY (36,340) (50,992) 14,652    
Table 5: CCG Summary Statement of Financial Position 

 
Better Payment Practice Code (BPPC): 

 
BPPC is effectively the target to pay 95% of NHS and non-NHS trade creditors 
within 30 calendar days of receipt of goods or valid invoice (whichever is later) 
unless other payment terms have been agreed. The target for the month of 
March was achieved.  The BPPC year to date performance is outlined below:  
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Better Payment Practice Code - 30 Days NUMBER £000's

Non-NHS

Total Non-NHS Trade Invoices Paid in the Year 7,778 159,126

Total Non-NHS Trade Invoices Paid Within 30 Day Target 7,739 158,672

Percentage of Non-NHS Trade Invoices Paid Within 30 Day Target 99.50% 99.71%

NHS 

Total NHS Trade Invoices Paid in the Year 833 362,846

Total NHS Trade Invoices Paid Within 30 Day Target 832 362,770

Percentage of NHS Trade Invoices Paid Within 30 Day Target 99.88% 99.98%

Average BPPC Achievement 99.77%  
Table 6: CCG BPPC Performance 

 
Cash Management: 

 
The CCG is expected by NHS England to proactively manage the cash it draws 
down each month and the amount it spends.  The target is to have no more than 
1.25% of the monthly drawdown of cash left in the main bank account each 
month.  This typically equates to circa £500k for the CCG.  This target was 
achieved in March 2022, with £105k left in the bank at the end of the month.  

 
Aged Debts:  
 
The CCG monitors aged debts monthly to ensure prompt recovery of all 
outstanding debts and avoidance of debt write offs.  The current target is to have 
no outstanding debts over 90 days old and above £50k in value.  This target was 
achieved in March with no aged debts over 90 days old and above £50k in value 
outstanding. 
 

 
8. Recommendations:  
 
 The Governing Body is asked to note the finance update. 

 
  David Chandler 
  Chief Officer / Chief Finance Officer   
  Sunderland CCG 
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Appendix 1 - Performance Measurement Thresholds for KPIs: 
 
RAG Rating Performance Measurement Thresholds

Reporting Area Key Performance Indicator Green Blue Red Status of 

Indicator

Forecast performance against 2020/21 core allocation Forecast 

expenditure less 

than or within 

0.1% of plan. 

Forecast expenditure 

greater than plan by 

more than 0.1% but 

less than 0.5%.

Forecast 

expenditure greater 

than plan by more 

than 0.5%.

NHS England 

national 

assurance 

indicator.

Forecast to achieve revised planned surplus Forecast surplus 

greater than or 

within 0.1% of 

plan. 

Forecast surplus less 

than plan by more 

than 0.1% but less 

than 0.5%.

Forecast surplus less 

than plan by more 

than 0.5%.

NHS England 

national 

assurance 

indicator.

Running costs to remain within allocation Running costs 

forecast equal to 

or less than 

allocation.

not applicable. Running costs 

forecast above 

allocation.

NHS England 

national 

assurance 

indicator.

Achievement of productivity targets Forecast 

productivity 

achievement 

greater than 95% 

of plan.

Forecast productivity 

achievement less 

than 95% but greater 

than 75% of plan.

Forecast 

productivity 

achievement below 

75% of plan.

NHS England 

national 

assurance 

indicator.

Cash balance in bank account at period end Cash balance less 

than £500k at 

period end.

Cash balance greater 

than £500k but less 

than £600k at period 

end. 

Cash balance greater 

than £600k at period 

end.

NHS England 

national 

assurance 

indicator.

Better payment practice code average achievement BPPC average 

achievement 

greater than 95%.

BPPC average 

achievement greater 

than 75% but less 

than 95%.

BPPC average 

achievement less 

than 75%.

Local CCG 

indicator. 

Aged debts > £50k and > 90 days old No aged debts 

greater than £50k 

and older than 90 

days. 

Number of aged 

debts greater than 

£50k and older than 

50 days  not greater 

than two in total.

Number of aged 

debts greater than 

£50k and older than 

50 days greater than 

two in total.

Local CCG 

indicator. 

Financial Risks & 

Mitigation 

Headroom for mitigation of financial risks Mitigations are 

greater than or 

equal to risks 

identified.

Risks not fully 

mitigated and, if they 

were to materialise, 

the CCG would not be 

in deficit or would be 

in deficit up to 1% of 

allocations.

Risks not fully 

mitigated and, if 

they were to 

materialise, the CCG 

would be in deficit 

greater than the 1% 

of allocation

NHS England 

national 

assurance 

indicator.

Statement of 

Financial Position

Rating Measurement

2021/22 

Income & Expenditure
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Appendix 2 – H1 Financial Framework  

 
The interim financial arrangements for H1 are based on the arrangements put in 
place for the final six months of 2020/21 (H2 2020/21).  The key points included 
within the guidance and the subsequent financial envelopes released for the 
period are: 
 

• Announced allocations covered the period 1st April 2021 to 30th September 
2021 period (H1), with the exception of Mental Health which has received 
confirmation of full year allocations with a requirement for systems to deploy 
full year resources in this area.  
 

• The emphasis has continued on system level planning and delivery with 
arrangements including a requirement to continue collaboration at an ICP 
level.   

  

• System funding envelopes are made up of adjusted CCG allocations, growth 
funding, system top-up and COVID-19 fixed allocation based on the H2 
2020/21 period (1st October 2020 to 31st March 2021).  The application of 
COVID-19 and growth funding continue to be discussed with partners across 
the ICP to collectively agree priorities.  

 

• All systems will be expected to report a balanced financial position in H1 
2021/22. This applies at ICP and ICS level. In the North East and North 
Cumbria ICS the submitted plan for H1 is forecasting a balanced financial 
position however, during the planning exercise it was agreed that Tees 
Valley, Central and North ICP would plan for a surplus control total to offset 
pressures in North Cumbria ICP.  Central ICP has therefore submitted an 
agreed planned surplus of £2m for the H1 period.  
 

• CCG block payment arrangements with NHS Foundation Trusts remain in 
place for the H1 period, and signed contracts are not required for this period. 
The block contract values were uplifted by 0.5%, and local areas can 
collectively agree variations to the values.  

 

• Through H1 systems have access to the following additional funding:  
 

o An Elective Recovery Fund to incentivise systems to increase elective 
activity over the H1 period whereby additional funding will be allocated 
to ICS areas who over perform against the set baseline.  The exact 
details of how this will operate along with projections for the North East 
and North Cumbria ICS are currently being considered.  
 

o Additional CCG programme funding and service development funding 
(SDF) to enable delivery of Long-Term Plan (LTP) priorities.  
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• CCGs are advised to set aside a contingency of up to 0.5% of their allocation 
to support risks although it is allowable not to include this. 
 

• Systems were informed to not include any pay award costs within financial 
plans or forecasts over and above 1% that has been included within 
allocations and contact values with providers and that any excess granted for 
pay award would be supported with funding at a later date. 
 

 As in H2 2020/21, the majority of costs need to be managed within the confirmed 
system envelope, however certain services/costs will continue to be funded 
outside of system funding including specialised high-cost drugs and devices and 
specific COVID-19 services e.g. testing/vaccination.  The Hospital Discharge 
Programme will continue to operate over H1, with new or additional care needs 
being funded on discharge from hospital for up to 6 weeks for Q1 and up to 4 
weeks for Q2.  NENC ICS has been allocated a cap of £24.2m for HDP in H1.  
Any overspends against this cap will need to be met locally by systems and any 
underspends will be retained nationally.  From an initial review of expected HDP 
expenditure across NENC ICS against the cap it is expected that the funding 
available will be sufficient to cover requirements for H1. The forecast for HDP in 
H1 is being closely monitored by Chief Finance Officers across NENC ICS.   

 
 In addition, systems will receive further allocations of Service Development 
Funding (SDF) including significant amounts for primary care, ageing well, mental 
health, cancer and maternity.  There is also additional Spending Review funding, 
including the £500m previously announced for mental health and £1bn elective 
recovery funding.  As at the time of writing £84k has been allocated to the CCG 
for ERF performance to the end of September and £8,446k to STSFT.  This 
funding will be used to further support waiting list pressure areas. 
 
 The financial envelopes announced for delegated general practice services in H1 
in 2021/22 consider the nationally agreed contract inflation rates for GMS and 
PMS as well as additional commitments made as part of the PCN DES such as 
increases to the Additional Roles Reimbursement Scheme (ARRS) and PCN 
Care Home payments. 
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CATEGORY OF PAPER  

Proposes specific action  

Provides assurance   

For information only  

 
GOVERNING BODY MEETING 

24 May 2022 

Report Title: 
 

2021/22 Annual Accounts 
 

Purpose of report 

 
The purpose of this report is to gain approval of the Annual Accounts for 2021/22 from Governing 
Body for formal adoption.  
 

Key points 

 
The key point is to ensure the CCG has met all its financial duties for 2021/22.  
 

Risks and issues 

 
Risks and issues are documented within the report as appropriate. The CCG has reported full 
achievement of all statutory financial duties and as such has mitigated financial risks for 2021/22.  
 

Assurances  

 
The report provides assurance that the financial outturn for the year 2021/22 has achieved all 
statutory financial duties.  
  

Recommendation/Action Required 

 
Members are asked to: 
 

• Approve the Annual Accounts for 2021/22 for adoption following scrutiny at, and 
recommendation from, the Audit and Risk Committee.  
 

• Authorise the Accountable Officer and Chief Finance Officer to sign the relevant certificates 
relating to the Annual Accounts.  
 

• Authorise the Accountable Officer and Chair of the Audit and Risk Committee to approve 
reasonable adjustments to the Annual Accounts in respect of any revised guidance issued 
from NHS England prior to the final submission date. 

 

Sponsor/approving director: 
David Chandler, Chief Officer and Chief Finance 
Officer  



 
 
 

Reviewed by: Tarryn Lake, Associate Director of Finance  

Report author: Mark Speer, Head of Finance 

Governance and Assurance 
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CO1: Develop and support system transformation and ensure a well-led organisation  

CO2:  Maintain financial control and performance  

CO3: Maintain and improve the quality and safety of CCG commissioned services  

CO4: Identify and deliver the CCG’s strategic priorities      

CO5: Covid-19 Response and Recovery  

Relevant legal/statutory issues 

Health and Social Care Act 2012 
Government Financial Reporting Manual (FReM) 
Department of Health Group Accounting Manual 2021-22 (GAM) 

Any potential/actual conflicts 
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Equality analysis completed 
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undertaken  
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Key implications 

Are additional resources 
required?   
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Is there an expected impact on 
patient outcomes/experience?  
If yes, has a quality impact 
assessment been undertaken? 

Not applicable  
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practice and/or other 
stakeholder engagement if 
needed?   

Not applicable 
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Governing Body  
Approval of Annual Accounts 2021/22 

 
1. Purpose of Report  

 
The purpose of this report is to provide an opportunity for members of the 
Governing Body to examine and approve the Annual Accounts for the year ended 
31st March 2022 for NHS Sunderland CCG for adoption.  
 
 

2. Background Information 
 

All NHS Bodies including Clinical Commissioning Groups have to submit their 
Annual Accounts to NHS England in accordance with a predetermined timetable. 
Annual Accounts attached to this report were completed in accordance with the 
timetable and were submitted in an unaudited form for verification ahead of the 
April 2022 deadline.  
 
NHS Sunderland CCG’s External Auditors have now substantively concluded 
their formal audit of the Annual Accounts and have indicated that they will be 
issuing an unqualified audit opinion on the Accounts and associated information, 
however testing will continue to run until mid June 2022 to align to the extended 
audit window. Once the Accounts are adopted and approved by the Governing 
Body the Auditors will formally provide their opinion.   
 
NHS England has set the final submission date for the 2021/22 Annual Accounts 
on the 22nd June 2022 and as such it is possible that further national guidance 
may be issued by NHS England which results in amendments required in the 
accounts after approval of the accounts by the Governing Body.  As such, 
approval is being sought to authorise the Chair of the Audit and Risk Committee 
and the Accountable Officer to approve reasonable adjustments to the Annual 
Accounts resulting in revised guidance from NHS England.  
 
 

3. Accounting Policies / Key Estimates  
 

The Accounts for the CCG are in a prescribed format determined by the 
Department of Health’s Group Accounting Manual (GAM). In producing the 
Accounts, the CCG has adopted policies in line with guidance provided by NHS 
England.  
 
Key estimates contained within the Accounts relate to prescribing liabilities yet to 
be billed. In preparing these estimates, advice provided by appropriate internal 
and external ‘experts’ has been taken into account as well as information 



provided centrally by NHS England. Assurance can be provided that these 
policies and key accounting estimates are relevant to the CCG’s local 
circumstances and that they have been appropriately and consistently applied.    
 
The main accounting statements are the Statement of Comprehensive Net 
Expenditure (SoCNE) for the year ended 31st March 2022; a Statement of 
Financial Position (SoFP) as at 31st March 2022; a Statement of Changes in 
Taxpayers Equity (SoCITE) for the year ended 31st March 2022; and a Statement 
of Cash Flows (SoCF) for the year ended 31st March 2022. 
 
In addition, and in accordance with the annual reporting guidance, a number of 
notes illustrating further detailed information have to be shown as part of the 
annual accounts information. These notes are an integral part of the Annual 
Accounts and are subject to the same degree of audit scrutiny as the main 
accounting statements.  

 
 
4. Going Concern 

 
It is important to note that the Annual Accounts include a note regarding going 
concern as part of the Accounting Policies (Note 1). The note states:  
 
These accounts have been prepared on the going concern basis. The Health and 
Social Care Bill was introduced into the House of Commons on 6th July 2021.  
The Bill allows for the establishment of Integrated Care Boards (ICB) across 
England and clinical commissioning groups (CCG) are expected to be abolished 
on 30th June 2022.  ICBs will take on the commissioning functions of CCGs.  The 
Bill passed on 28th April 2022 and the CCG functions, assets and liabilities will 
therefore transfer to an ICB.  Public sector bodies are assumed to be going 
concerns where the continuation of the provision of a service in the future is 
anticipated, as evidenced by inclusion of financial provision for that service in 
published documents. 

 
 
5. Highlights from the Accounts 

 
Contained within the Annual Accounts is the following key information for 
members to note:  
 

• Note 17 contained within the supporting information details the CCG’s 
performance against its financial performance targets. CCGs have a 
number of statutory financial duties, which form part of the overall 
performance management arrangements. The three financial performance 
targets applicable to the CCG are as follows:  

 
o Expenditure not to exceed income. Note 17 states that the CCG 

charged £579,386k against its total income of £583,047k. Note that 
this includes miscellaneous income received by the CCG of £780k 
as well as resource received from NHS England which is in line with 



the GAM requirements. This clearly demonstrates achievement of 
this particular duty. 
 

o Revenue resource use does not exceed the amount specified in 
Directions. Note 17 identifies that the CCG charged £578,605k in 
total (net of miscellaneous income) against its final in year resource 
limit of £582,267k clearly meeting this duty. 

 
o Revenue Administration Resource use does not exceed the amount 

specified in Directions. Note 17 identifies that the CCG charged 
£4,565k against its final resource limit for Administration Spend of 
£5,478k. This produces a £913k underspend, clearly demonstrating 
achievement of this particular duty. 

 

• Note 4 outlines the CCGs operating expenses within the financial year.  
The key point from this note is that expenditure has increased by £25,437k 
from 2020/21.  The main elements of this increase was due to £15,420k 
relating to growth in Foundation Trust expenditure (national inflation, 
distribution of system funds from within the Central ICP, and growth in 
mental health expenditure), £11,706k growth in the Purchase of 
Healthcare from non-NHS bodies (linked mainly to the reintroduction of 
local CCG commissioning of independent sector activity, growth in 
packages of care, and growth in mental health expenditure), and a 
reduction of £2,400k in prescribing expenditure (linked in part to the work 
undertaken by the Medicines Optimisation team and the All Together 
Better via the Medicines Optimisation group).  
 

• Note 6 records the CCGs achievements regarding the Better Payment 
Practice Code. It can be identified from the note that the CCG was able to 
pay 99.77% of its Non-NHS trade creditors within 30 days of receipt of 
goods or agreed credit terms.  

 
 The main accounting statements and associated notes have been subject to 
detailed scrutiny at the Final Accounts and Annual Report Review Meeting to 
which members of Governing Body and Audit and Risk Committee were invited. 
In addition, personal briefings have been provided to the Accountable Officer and 
Clinical Chair of the CCG.  
 
 

6. Recommendation  
 

Members are asked to:  
 

• Approve the Annual Accounts for 2021/22 for adoption following scrutiny 
at, and recommendation from, the Audit and Risk Committee.  
 

• Authorise the Accountable Officer and Chief Finance Officer to sign all 
relevant certificates relating to the Annual Accounts.  



 

• Authorise the Accountable Officer and Chair of the Audit and Risk 
Committee to approve reasonable adjustments to the Annual Accounts in 
respect of any revised guidance issued from NHS England prior to the 
final submission date. 

 
 
 Mark Speer  
 Head of Finance 
 Sunderland CCG 
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Statement of Comprehensive Net Expenditure for the year ended

31 March 2022

2021-22 2020-21

Note £'000 £'000

Income from sale of goods and services 2 (490) (476)

Other operating income 2 (290) (68)

Total operating income (780) (544)

Staff costs 3 6,386 7,208

Purchase of goods and services 4 573,335 547,401

Provision expense 4 (493) 0

Other operating expenditure 4 157 161

Total operating expenditure 579,385 554,769

Comprehensive expenditure for the year 578,605 554,226
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NHS Sunderland CCG - Annual Accounts 2021-22

Statement of Financial Position as at

31 March 2022

31/03/2022 31/03/2021

Note £'000 £'000

Current assets

Trade and other receivables 8 690 2,656

Cash and cash equivalents 9 105 231

Total current assets 795 2,887

Total assets 795 2,887

Current liabilities

Trade and other payables 10 (37,136) (39,871)

Provisions 11 0 (493)

Total current liabilities (37,136) (40,364)

Current Assets less Current Liabilities (36,341) (37,477)

Assets less Liabilities (36,341) (37,477)

Financed by Taxpayers’ Equity

General fund (36,341) (37,477)

Total Taxpayers' Equity: (36,341) (37,477)

The notes on pages 5 to 24 form part of this statement

Neil O’Brien

Accountable Officer

24 May 2022

The financial statements on pages 1 to 4 were approved by the Governing Body on 24 May 2022 and signed on its 

behalf by:
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NHS Sunderland CCG - Annual Accounts 2021-22

Statement of Changes In Taxpayers' Equity for the year ended

31 March 2022

General fund

Total 

reserves

£'000 £'000

Changes in taxpayers’ equity for 2021-22

Balance at 01 April 2021 (37,477) (37,477)

Changes in NHS Clinical Commissioning Group taxpayers’ equity for 2021-22

Net operating expenditure for the financial year (578,605) (578,605)

Net recognised CCG expenditure for the financial  year (578,605) (578,605)

Net Parliamentary funding 579,741 579,741

Balance at 31 March 2022 (36,341) (36,341)

General fund Total reserves

£'000 £'000

Changes in taxpayers’ equity for 2020-21

Balance at 01 April 2020 (35,119) (35,119)

Changes in NHS Clinical Commissioning Group taxpayers’ equity for 2020-21

Net operating costs for the financial year (554,225) (554,225)

Net recognised CCG expenditure for the financial  year (554,225) (554,225)

Net Parliamentary funding 551,867 551,867

Balance at 31 March 2021 (37,477) (37,477)
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Statement of Cash Flows for the year ended

31 March 2022

31/03/2022 31/03/2021

Note £'000 £'000

Cash flows from operating activities

Net operating expenditure for the financial year (578,605) (554,226)

(Increase)/decrease in trade & other receivables 8 1,968 258

Increase/(decrease) in trade & other payables 10 (2,737) 2,178

Increase/(decrease) in provisions 11 (493) 0

Net cash outflow from operating activities (579,867) (551,790)

Net cash outflow before financing (579,867) (551,790)

Cash flows from financing activities

Net funding received 579,741 551,868

Net cash inflow from financing activities 579,741 551,868

Net increase / (decrease) in cash & cash equivalents 9 (126) 78

Cash & cash equivalents at the beginning of the financial year 231 153

Cash & cash equivalents at the end of the financial year 105 231

4



NHS Sunderland CCG - Annual Accounts 2021-22

Notes to the financial statements

1 Accounting Policies

NHS England has directed that the financial statements of clinical commissioning groups shall meet the accounting requirements of the Group Accounting 

Manual issued by the Department of Health and Social Care. Consequently, the following financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the  

Group Accounting Manual 2021-22 issued by the Department of Health and Social Care. The accounting policies contained in the Group Accounting 

Manual follow International Financial Reporting Standards to the extent that they are meaningful and appropriate to clinical commissioning groups, as 

determined by HM Treasury, which is advised by the Financial Reporting Advisory Board.  Where the Group Accounting Manual permits a choice of 

accounting policy, the accounting policy which is judged to be most appropriate to the particular circumstances of the clinical commissioning group for the 

purpose of giving a true and fair view has been selected. The particular policies adopted by the clinical commissioning group are described below. They 

have been applied consistently in dealing with items considered material in relation to the accounts.

1.1 Going Concern

These accounts have been prepared on a going concern basis.

The Health and Social Care Bill was introduced into the House of Commons on 6 July 2021.  The Bill allows for the establishment of Integrated Care 

Boards (ICB) across England and clinical commissioning groups (CCG) will be abolished on 30th June 2022.  ICBs will take on the commissioning 

functions of CCGs.  The Bill passed on 28th April 2022 and the CCG functions, assets and liabilities will therefore transfer to an ICB. 

Public sector bodies are assumed to be going concerns where the continuation of the provision of a service in the future is anticipated, as evidenced by 

inclusion of financial provision for that service in published documents.

Where a clinical commissioning group ceases to exist, it considers whether or not its services will continue to be provided (using the same assets, by 

another public sector entity) in determining whether to use the concept of going concern for the final set of financial statements.  If services will continue to 

be provided the financial statements are prepared on the going concern basis. The statement of financial postion has therefore been drawn up at 31 

March 2022 on a going concern basis.

1.2  Accounting Convention

These accounts have been prepared under the historical cost convention modified to account for the revaluation of property, plant and equipment, 

intangible assets, inventories and certain financial assets and financial liabilities.

1.3 Joint arrangements

Arrangements over which the clinical commissioning group has joint control with one or more other entities are classified as joint arrangements. Joint 

control is the contractually agreed sharing of control of an arrangement. A joint arrangement is either a joint operation or a joint venture.

A joint operation exists where the parties that have joint control have rights to the assets and obligations for the liabilities relating to the arrangement. 

Where the clinical commissioning group is a joint operator it recognises its share of, assets, liabilities, income and expenses in its own accounts.

The clinical commissioning group has entered into two pooled budget arrangements with Sunderland City Council in accordance with section 75 of the 

NHS Act 2006. The first arrangement funds are pooled for the Better Care Fund, and in the second arrangement funds are pooled in relation to Childrens 

Preventative Care. Note 15 provides details of the income and expenditure.

The pool is hosted by Sunderland City Council. The clinical commissioning group accounts for its share of the assets, liabilities, income and expenditure 

arising from the activities of the pooled budget, identified in accordance with the pooled budget agreement

1.4 Operating Segments

Income and expenditure are analysed in the Operating Segments note and are reported in line with management information used within the clinical 

commissioning group.

1.5  Revenue

In the application of IFRS 15 a number of practical expedients offered in the Standard have been employed. These are as follows:

• As per paragraph 121 of the Standard the clinical commissioning group will not disclose information regarding performance obligations part of a contract

that has an original expected duration of one year or less.

• The clinical commissioning group is to similarly not disclose information where revenue is recognised in line with the practical expedient offered in 

paragraph B16 of the Standard where the right to consideration corresponds directly with value of the performance completed to date.

• The FReM has mandated the exercise of the practical expedient offered in C7(a) of the Standard that requires the clinical commissioning group to reflect

the aggregate effect of all contracts modified before the date of initial application.

The main source of funding for the Clinical Commissioning Group is from NHS England. This is drawn down and credited to the general fund. Funding is 

recognised in the period in which it is received.

The clinical commissioning group receives revenue in respect of jointly commissioned services.  Details are included in note 2.

Revenue in respect of services provided is recognised when (or as) performance obligations are satisfied by transferring promised services to the 

customer, and is measured at the amount of the transaction price allocated to that performance obligation.

Where income is received for a specific performance obligation that is to be satisfied in the following year, that income is deferred.

Payment terms are standard reflecting cross government principles.

The value of the benefit received when the clinical commissioning group accesses funds from the Government’s apprenticeship service are recognised as 

income in accordance with IAS 20, Accounting for Government Grants. Where these funds are paid directly to an accredited training provider, non-cash 

income and a corresponding non-cash training expense are recognised, both equal to the cost of the training funded.

1.6 Employee Benefits

1.6.1 Short-term Employee Benefits

Salaries, wages and employment-related payments, including payments arising from the apprenticeship levy, are recognised in the period in which the 

service is received from employees, including bonuses earned but not yet taken.
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NHS Sunderland CCG - Annual Accounts 2021-22

Notes to the financial statements

1.6.2 Retirement Benefit Costs

Past and present employees are covered by the provisions of the NHS Pensions Schemes. These schemes are unfunded, defined benefit schemes that 

cover NHS employers, General Practices and other bodies allowed under the direction of the Secretary of State in England and Wales. The schemes are 

not designed to be run in a way that would enable NHS bodies to identify their share of the underlying scheme assets and liabilities. Therefore, the 

schemes are accounted for as if they were a defined contribution scheme; the cost recognised in these accounts represents the contributions payable for 

the year. Details of the benefits payable under these provisions can be found on the NHS Pensions website at www.nhsbsa.nhs.uk/pensions. 

For early retirements other than those due to ill health the additional pension liabilities are not funded by the scheme. The full amount of the liability for the 

additional costs is charged to expenditure at the time the clinical commissioning group commits itself to the retirement, regardless of the method of 

payment.

The schemes are subject to a full actuarial valuation every four years and an accounting valuation every year.

1.7 Grants Payable

Where grant funding is not intended to be directly related to activity undertaken by a grant recipient in a specific period, the clinical commissioning group 

recognises the expenditure in the period in which the grant is paid. All other grants are accounted for on an accruals basis.

1.8 Leases

Leases are classified as finance leases when substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership are transferred to the lessee. All other leases are 

classified as operating leases.

1.8.1 The Clinical Commissioning Group as Lessee

Property, plant and equipment held under finance leases are initially recognised, at the inception of the lease, at fair value or, if lower, at the present value 

of the minimum lease payments, with a matching liability for the lease obligation to the lessor. Lease payments are apportioned between finance charges 

and reduction of the lease obligation so as to achieve a constant rate on interest on the remaining balance of the liability. Finance charges are recognised 

in calculating the clinical commissioning group’s surplus/deficit.

Operating lease payments are recognised as an expense on a straight-line basis over the lease term. Lease incentives are recognised initially as a liability 

and subsequently as a reduction of rentals on a straight-line basis over the lease term.

Contingent rentals are recognised as an expense in the period in which they are incurred.

Where a lease is for land and buildings, the land and building components are separated and individually assessed as to whether they are operating or 

finance leases.

1.9 Cash & Cash Equivalents

Cash is cash in hand and deposits with any financial institution repayable without penalty on notice of not more than 24 hours. Cash balances are recorded 

at current value. 

1.10 Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the clinical commissioning group has a present legal or constructive obligation as a result of a past event, it is probable 

that the clinical commissioning group will be required to settle the obligation, and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation. The 

amount recognised as a provision is the best estimate of the expenditure required to settle the obligation at the end of the reporting period, taking into 

account the risks and uncertainties. Where a provision is measured using the cash flows estimated to settle the obligation, its carrying amount is the 

present value of those cash flows using HM Treasury’s discount rate as follows:

All general provisions are subject to four separate discount rates according to the expected timing of cashflows from the Statement of Financial Position 

date:

• A nominal short-term rate of 0.47% (2020-21: 0.02%) for inflation adjusted expected cash flows up to and including 5 years from Statement of Financial 

Position date.

• A nominal medium-term rate of 0.70% (2020-21: 0.18%) for inflation adjusted expected cash flows over 5 years up to and including 10 years from the 

Statement of Financial Position date.

• A nominal long-term rate of 0.95% (2020-21 1.99%) for inflation adjusted expected cash flows over 10 years and up to and including 40 years from the 

Statement of Financial Position date.

• A nominal very long-term rate of 0.66% (2020-21: 1.99%) for inflation adjusted expected cash flows exceeding 40 years from the Statement of Financial 

Position date.

When some or all of the economic benefits required to settle a provision are expected to be recovered from a third party, the receivable is recognised as 

an asset if it is virtually certain that reimbursements will be received and the amount of the receivable can be measured reliably.

A restructuring provision is recognised when the clinical commissioning group has developed a detailed formal plan for the restructuring and has raised a 

valid expectation in those affected that it will carry out the restructuring by starting to implement the plan or announcing its main features to those affected 

by it. The measurement of a restructuring provision includes only the direct expenditures arising from the restructuring, which are those amounts that are 

both necessarily entailed by the restructuring and not associated with on-going activities of the entity.

1.11 Clinical Negligence Costs

NHS Resolution operates a risk pooling scheme under which the clinical commissioning group pays an annual contribution to NHS Resolution, which in 

return settles all clinical negligence claims. The contribution is charged to expenditure. Although NHS Resolution is administratively responsible for all 

clinical negligence cases, the legal liability remains with clinical commissioning group.

1.12 Non-clinical Risk Pooling

The clinical commissioning group participates in the Property Expenses Scheme and the Liabilities to Third Parties Scheme. Both are risk pooling 

schemes under which the clinical commissioning group pays an annual contribution to the NHS Resolution and, in return, receives assistance with the 

costs of claims arising. The annual membership contributions, and any excesses payable in respect of particular claims are charged to operating 

expenses as and when they become due.

6
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Notes to the financial statements

1.13 Financial Assets

Financial assets are recognised when the clinical commissioning group becomes party to the financial instrument contract or, in the case of trade 

receivables, when the goods or services have been delivered. Financial assets are derecognised when the contractual rights have expired or the asset 

has been transferred.

Financial assets are classified into the following categories:

· Financial assets at amortised cost;

· Financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive income and ;

· Financial assets at fair value through profit and loss.

The classification is determined by the cash flow and business model characteristics of the financial assets, as set out in IFRS 9, and is determined at the 

time of initial recognition.

1.13.1 Financial Assets at Amortised cost

Financial assets measured at amortised cost are those held within a business model whose objective is achieved by collecting contractual cash flows  and 

where the cash flows are solely payments of principal and interest. This includes most trade receivables and other simple debt instruments. After initial 

recognition these financial assets are measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method less any impairment. The effective interest rate is 

the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash receipts through the life of the financial asset to the gross carrying amount of the financial asset.

1.13.2 Impairment

For all financial assets measured at amortised cost or at fair value through other comprehensive income (except equity instruments designated at fair 

value through other comprehensive income), lease receivables and contract assets, the clinical commissioning group recognises a loss allowance 

representing the expected credit losses on the financial asset.

The clinical commissioning group adopts the simplified approach to impairment in accordance with IFRS 9, and measures the loss allowance for trade 

receivables, lease receivables and contract assets at an amount equal to lifetime expected credit losses.  For other financial assets, the loss allowance is 

measured at an amount equal to lifetime expected credit losses if the credit risk on the financial instrument has increased significantly since initial 

recognition (stage 2) and otherwise at an amount equal to 12 month expected credit losses (stage 1).

HM Treasury has ruled that central government bodies may not recognise stage 1 or stage 2 impairments against other government departments, their 

executive agencies, the Bank of England, Exchequer Funds and Exchequer Funds assets where repayment is ensured by primary legislation. The clinical 

commissioning group therefore does not recognise loss allowances for stage 1 or stage 2 impairments against these bodies. Additionally Department of 

Health and Social Care provides a guarantee of last resort against the debts of its arm's lengths bodies and NHS bodies and the clinical commissioning 

group does not recognise allowances for stage 1 or stage 2 impairments against these bodies. 

For financial assets that have become credit impaired since initial recognition (stage 3), expected credit losses at the reporting date are measured as the 

difference between the asset's gross carrying amount and the present value of the estimated future cash flows discounted at the financial asset's original 

effective interest rate. Any adjustment is recognised in profit or loss as an impairment gain or loss.

1.14 Financial Liabilities

Financial liabilities are recognised on the statement of financial position when the clinical commissioning group becomes party to the contractual provisions 

of the financial instrument or, in the case of trade payables, when the goods or services have been received. Financial liabilities are de-recognised when 

the liability has been discharged, that is, the liability has been paid or has expired.  Financial liabilities are measured at amortised cost.

1.15 Losses & Special Payments

Losses and special payments are items that Parliament would not have contemplated when it agreed funds for the health service or passed legislation. By 

their nature they are items that ideally should not arise. They are therefore subject to special control procedures compared with the generality of 

payments. They are divided into different categories, which govern the way that individual cases are handled.

Losses and special payments are charged to the relevant functional headings in expenditure on an accruals basis, including losses which would have been 

made good through insurance cover had the clinical commissioning group not been bearing its own risks (with insurance premiums then being included as 

normal revenue expenditure).

1.16 Critical accounting judgements and key sources of estimation uncertainty

In the application of the clinical commissioning group's accounting policies, management is required to make various judgements, estimates and 

assumptions about the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities that are not readily apparent from other sources. The estimates and associates 

assumptions are based on historical experience and other factors that are considered to be relevant. Actual results may differ from those estimates and 

the estimates and underlying assumptions are continually reviewed. Revisions to accounting estimates are recognised in the period in which the estimate 

is revised if the revision affects only that period or in the period of the revision and future periods if the revision affects both current and future periods. 

These are regularly reviewed.
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Notes to the financial statements

1.16.1 Critical accounting judgements in applying accounting policies

The following are the judgements, apart from those involving estimations, that management has made in the process of applying the clinical 

commissioning group's accounting policies and that have the most significant effect on the amounts recognised in the financial statements. 

- None

1.16.2 Sources of estimation uncertainty

The following are assumptions about the future and other major sources of estimation uncertainty that have a significant risk of resulting in a material 

adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within the next financial year. 

The assumption applied in the estimation of prescribing liabilities not yet billed as at the Statement of Financial Position date. Nationally derived phasing 

profiles from the NHS Business Services Authority provided for forecasting the likely prescribing outturn has been utilised in deriving the estimated liability 

of costs not yet billed for the clinical commissioning group. This was estimated at £8,537,584 as at the Statement of Financial Position date (for the period 

31st March 2021 the full value included in the financial statements totalled £9,131,772).

1.17 Accounting Standards That Have Been Issued But Have Not Yet Been Adopted

The Department of Health and Social Care GAM does not require the following IFRS Standards and Interpretations to be applied in 2021-22. These 

Standards are still subject to HM Treasury FReM adoption, with IFRS 16 being for implementation in 2022/23, and the government implementation date 

for IFRS 17 still subject to HM Treasury consideration. 

IFRS 16 Leases will replace IAS 17 Leases, IFRIC 4 Determining whether an arrangement contains a lease and other interpretations and is applicable in 

the public sector for periods beginning 1 April 2022.  The standard provides a single accounting model for lessees, recognising a right of use asset and 

obligation in the statement of financial position for most leases: some leases are exempt through application of practical expedients explained below. For 

those recognised in the statement of financial position the standard also requires the remeasurement of lease liabilities in specific circumstances after the 

commencement of the lease term. For lessors, the distinction between operating and finance leases will remain and the accounting will be largely 

unchanged.

IFRS 16 changes the definition of a lease compared to IAS 17 and IFRIC 4. The clinical commissioning group will apply this definition to new leases only 

and will grandfather its assessments made under the old standards of whether existing contracts contain a lease.

On transition to IFRS 16 on 1 April 2022, the clinical commissioning group will apply the standard retrospectively without restatement and with the 

cumulative effect of initially applying the standard recognised in the income and expenditure reserve at that date. For existing operating leases with a 

remaining lease term of more than 12 months and an underlying asset value of at least £5,000, a lease liability will be recognised equal to the value of 

remaining lease payments discounted on transition at the clinical commissioning group’s incremental borrowing rate. The clinical commissioning group’s 

incremental borrowing rate will be a rate defined by HM Treasury. For 2022, this rate is 0.95%. The related right of use asset will be measured equal to 

the lease liability adjusted for any prepaid or accrued lease payments. No adjustments will be made on 1 April 2022 for existing finance leases.

For leases commencing in 2022/23, the clinical commissioning group will not recognise a right of use asset or lease liability for short term leases (less 

than or equal to 12 months) or for leases of low value assets (less than £5,000).  Right of use assets will be subsequently measured on a basis consistent 

with owned assets and depreciated over the length of the lease term. 

The CCG has completed an exercise to determine the impact of IFRS 16 ahead of the 2022/23 financial year and determined that this is not a material 

change.
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2 Other Operating Revenue

2021-22 2021-22 2021-22 2020-21 2020-21 2020-21

Admin Programme Total Admin Programme Total

£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000

Income from sale of goods and services (contracts)

Non-patient care services to other bodies 0 7 7 0 3 3

Other contract income 0 483 483 0 473 473

Total Income from sale of goods and services 0 490 490 0 476 476

Other operating income

Non cash apprenticeship training grants revenue 0 1 1 0 5 5

Other non contract revenue 0 289 289 0 63 63

Total other operating income 0 290 290 0 68 68

Total operating Income 0 780 780 0 544 544

Revenue in this note does not include cash received from NHS England, which is drawn down directly into the bank account of the clinical commissioning group 

and credited to the General Fund.
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3. Employee benefits and staff numbers

3.1 Employee benefits 2021-22 2020-21

Permanent 

Employees

Other Total Permanent 

Employees

Other Total

£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000

Employee benefits

Salaries and wages 4,871 116 4,987 5,625 243 5,868

Social security costs 536 0 536 527 0 527

Employer contributions to NHS Pension scheme 852 0 852 805 0 805

Apprenticeship levy 11 0 11 8 0 8

Gross employee benefits expenditure 6,270 116 6,386 6,965 243 7,208

3.2 Average number of people employed

Permanently 

employed Other Total

Permanently 

employed Other Total

Number Number Number Number Number Number

Total 95 3 98 106 5 111

None of the above people were engaged on capital projects (2020-21: None).

3.3 Ill Health Retirements

3.4. Exit packages agreed in the financial year

No exit packages have been agreed in the financial year (2020-21: None).

2020-212021-22

Total Total

One staff member has retired on ill health retirement within the financial year.  The additional pension liabilities borne by the relevant pension scheme is estimated to be 

£11k (2020-21: None).
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3.5 Pension costs 

Past and present employees are covered by the provisions of the two NHS Pension Schemes. Details of the benefits payable and rules 

of the Schemes can be found on the NHS Pensions website at www.nhsbsa.nhs.uk/pensions. 

Both are unfunded defined benefit schemes that cover NHS employers, GP practices and other bodies, allowed under the direction of 

the Secretary of State for Health and Social Care in England and Wales. They are not designed to be run in a way that would enable 

NHS bodies to identify their share of the underlying scheme assets and liabilities. 

Therefore, each scheme is accounted for as if it were a defined contribution scheme: the cost to the NHS body of participating in each 

scheme is taken as equal to the contributions payable to that scheme for the accounting period.  

In order that the defined benefit obligations recognised in the financial statements do not differ materially from those that would be 

determined at the reporting date by a formal actuarial valuation, the FReM requires that “the period between formal valuations shall be 

four years, with approximate assessments in intervening years”. An outline of these follows:

3.5.1 Accounting valuation

A valuation of scheme liability is carried out annually by the scheme actuary (currently the Government Actuary’s Department) as at the 

end of the reporting period. This utilises an actuarial assessment for the previous accounting period in conjunction with updated 

membership and financial data for the current reporting period, and is accepted as providing suitably robust figures for financial reporting 

purposes. The valuation of the scheme liability as at 31 March 2022, is based on valuation data as 31 March 2021, updated to 31 March 

2022 with summary global member and accounting data. In undertaking this actuarial assessment, the methodology prescribed in IAS 

19, relevant FReM interpretations, and the discount rate prescribed by HM Treasury have also been used.

The latest assessment of the liabilities of the scheme is contained in the report of the scheme actuary, which forms part of the annual 

NHS Pension Scheme Accounts. These accounts can be viewed on the NHS Pensions website and are published annually. Copies can 

also be obtained from The Stationery Office.

3.5.2 Full actuarial (funding) valuation

The purpose of this valuation is to assess the level of liability in respect of the benefits due under the schemes (taking into account 

recent demographic experience), and to recommend contribution rates payable by employees and employers. 

The latest actuarial valuation undertaken for the NHS Pension Scheme was completed as at 31 March 2016. The results of this valuation 

set the employer contribution rate payable from April 2019 to 20.6% of pensionable pay. 

The 2016 funding valuation also tested the cost of the Scheme relative to the employer cost cap that was set following the 2012 

valuation. There was initially a pause to the cost control element of the 2016 valuations, due to the uncertainty around member benefits 

caused by the discrimination ruling relating to the McCloud case. 

HMT published valuation directions dated 7 October 2021 (see Amending Directions 2021) that set out the technical detail of how the 

costs of remedy are included in the 2016 valuation process.  Following these directions, the scheme actuary has completed the cost 

control element of the 2016 valuation for the NHS Pension Scheme, which concludes no changes to benefits or member contributions 

are required.  The 2016 valuation reports can be found on the NHS Pensions website at https://www.nhsbsa.nhs.uk/nhs-pension-scheme-

accounts-and-valuation-reports. 
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4. Operating Expenses Notes

4.1. Operating expenses

2021-22 2021-22 2021-22 2020-21 2020-21 2020-21

Admin Programme Total Admin Programme Total

£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000

Purchase of goods and services

Purchase of healthcare from NHS and DHSC bodies: Services from other CCGs and NHS England 881 1,480 2,361 852 1,756 2,608

Purchase of healthcare from NHS and DHSC bodies: Services from foundation trusts 0 359,066 359,066 0 343,646 343,646

Purchase of healthcare from NHS and DHSC bodies: Services from other NHS trusts 0 0 0 0 0 0

Services from Other WGA bodies 0 133 133 0 147 147

Purchase of healthcare from non-NHS bodies 0 102,108 102,108 0 90,402 90,402

Purchase of social care 0 9,637 9,637 0 9,371 9,371

Prescribing costs 0 50,306 50,306 0 52,706 52,706

GPMS/APMS and PCTMS 0 47,094 47,094 0 42,846 42,846

Supplies and services – general 3 675 678 19 1,925 1,944

Consultancy services 9 48 57 9 0 9

Establishment 171 377 548 354 302 656

Transport 11 0 11 2 30 32

Premises 361 697 1,058 277 2,360 2,637

Audit fees 62 0 62 62 0 62

Other non statutory audit expenditure

·  Other services 0 0 0 7 0 7

Other professional fees 64 56 120 95 66 161

Legal fees 3 3 6 15 2 17

Education, training and conferences 87 2 89 80 64 144

Non cash apprenticeship training costs 0 1 1 0 5 5

 Total purchase of goods and services 1,652 571,683 573,335 1,772 545,629 547,401

Provision expense

Provisions 0 (493) (493) 0 0 0

Total provision expense 0 (493) (493) 0 0 0

Other operating expenditure

Chair and Non Executive Members 157 0 157 157 0 157

Other expenditure 0 0 0 4 0 4

Total other operating expenditure 157 0 157 161 0 161

Total operating expenditure 1,809 571,190 572,999 1,933 545,629 547,562

Included within Other professional fees is £64k (2020-21: £65k) for internal audit services.

4.2. Analysis of non NHS healthcare operating expenditure

2021-22 2021-22 2021-22 2021-22 2021-22

Total Independent/ 

Private 

Voluntary / 

Not-for-

Profit

Local 

Authorities

Devolved 

Administrations

£000s £000s £000s £000s £000s

Total primary healthcare purchased 1,871 1,871 0 0 0

Purchase of secondary healthcare

Social care (learning difficulties) 0 0 0 0 0

Mental health 16,415 4,510 839 11,066 0

Maternity 121 0 121 0 0

General and acute 7,476 5,322 379 1,559 216

Accident and emergency 1 1 0 0 0

Community health services 37,398 17,719 2,647 17,032 0

Continuing care incl different types of NHS funded care provided on continuous basis 38,826 2,322 0 36,504 0

Total secondary healthcare purchased 100,237 29,874 3,986 66,161 216

Social care 9,637 0 0 9,637 0

Total non NHS healthcare operation expenditure 111,745 31,745 3,986 75,798 216

2020-21 2020-21 2020-21 2020-21 2020-21

Total Independent/ 

Private 

Voluntary / 

Not-for-

Profit

Local 

Authorities

Devolved 

Administrations

£000s £000s £000s £000s £000s

Total primary healthcare purchased 1,056 1,056 0 0 0

Purchase of secondary healthcare

Social care (learning difficulties) 0 0 0 0 0

Mental health 13,025 2,269 855 9,901 0

Maternity 101 0 101 0 0

General and acute 2,144 1,045 355 655 89

Accident and emergency 45 45 0 0 0

Community health services 30,480 17,476 2,571 10,433 0

Continuing care incl different types of NHS funded care provided on continuous basis 43,552 778 27 42,747 0

Total secondary healthcare purchased 89,347 21,613 3,909 63,736 89

Social care 9,371 0 0 9,371 0

Total non NHS healthcare operation expenditure 99,774 22,669 3,909 73,107 89

In 2021/22 not all spend with foundations trusts came from Sunderland CCG.  As part of the revised financial regime COVID recovery expenditure that would have previously been paid by Sunderland CCG 

under the previous financial regime was instead paid by the Central ICP lead CCG.  In 2021/22 the lead CCG for the Central ICP was County Durham CCG. 

Included within Premises is £145k (2020-21: £139k) for rentals under operating leases paid to NHS Property Services and  RTC North Limited which is reported in note 6.

External audit fees and non audit services are inclusive of VAT.  Non-audit services are in respect of Mental Health Investment Standard assurance that NHSE requires CCGs to obtain from an independent 

reporting accountant, to demonstrate their investment in mental health expenditure rises at a faster rate than their overall published programme funding. An estimated accrual of £9k + VAT has been included 

for the 21/22 MHIS work.
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5. Better Payment Practice Code

5.1 Measure of compliance 2021-22 2021-22 2020-21 2020-21

Number £'000 Number £'000

Non-NHS payables

Total Non-NHS Trade invoices paid in the year 7778 159,126 6016 139,592

Total Non-NHS Trade Invoices paid within target 7739 158,672 5943 138,707

Percentage of Non-NHS Trade invoices paid within target 99.50% 99.71% 98.79% 99.37%

NHS payables

Total NHS Trade Invoices Paid in the year 833 362,846 1004 356,500

Total NHS Trade Invoices Paid within target 832 362,770 993 356,384

Percentage of NHS Trade invoices paid within target 99.88% 99.98% 98.90% 99.97%

The Better Payment Practice Code requires the clinical commissioning group to aim to pay all valid invoices by 

the due date or within 30 days of receipt of a valid invoice, whichever is later.
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6. Operating Leases

6.1 As lessee

6.1.1 Payments recognised as an expense 2021-22 2020-21

Buildings Other Total Buildings Other Total

£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000

Payments recognised as an expense

Minimum lease payments 145 6 151 139 6 145

Total 145 6 151 139 6 145

6.1.2 Future minimum lease payments 2021-22 2020-21

Buildings Other Total Buildings Other Total

£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000

Payable:

No later than one year 129 1 130 145 1 146

Between one and five years 148 0 148 254 0 254

After five years 0 0 0 0 0 0

Total 277 1 278 399 1 400

7 Property, plant and equipment

2021-22

Plant & 

machinery Total 

£'000 £'000

Cost or valuation at 01 April 2021 252 252

Transfer to other public sector body (252) (252)

Cost/Valuation at 31 March 2022 0 0

Depreciation 01 April 2021 252 252

Transfer to other public sector body (252) (252)

Depreciation at 31 March 2022 0 0

Net book value at 31 March 2022 0 0

Total at 31 March 2022 0 0

The clinical commissioning group has entered into a small number of formal operating lease arrangements, relating to leased cars and photocopiers, none of 

which are individually significant.  Specific lease terms vary by individual arrangement but are based upon standard practice for the type of arrangement involved.

The clinical commissioning group also has arrangements in place with NHS Property Services in respect of the utilisation of various clinical and non-clinical 

properties.  These largely relate to payments made in respect of void and sessional space in clinical properties, as well as for the clinical commissioning group's 

accommodation costs.

In 2021/22 Sunderland CCG transferred legal responsibility of its remaining assets to South Tyneside 

and Sunderland NHS Foundation Trust at the net book value of nil. 
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8.1  Trade and other receivables Current Current

31/03/2022 31/03/2021

£'000 £'000

NHS receivables: revenue 411 1,748

NHS prepayments 6 0

NHS accrued income 0 2

Non-NHS and Other WGA receivables: revenue 50 673

Non-NHS and Other WGA prepayments 139 225

Non-NHS and Other WGA accrued income 3 0

VAT 75 6

Other receivables and accruals 4 2

Total trade & other receivables 688 2,656

Total current 688 2,656

8.2 Receivables past their due date but not impaired

31/03/2022 31/03/2022 31/03/2022 31/03/2021 31/03/2021 31/03/2021

DHSC Group 

Bodies

Non DHSC 

Group Bodies

Total DHSC Group 

Bodies

Non DHSC Group 

Bodies

Total

£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000

By up to three months 8 10 18 513 0 513

By three to six months 0 0 0 0 10 10

By more than six months 0 0 0 0 0 0

Total 8 10 18 513 10 523

9. Cash and cash equivalents

31/03/2022 31/03/2021

£'000 £'000

Balance at 01 April 231 153

Net change in year (126) 78

Balance at 31 March 105 231

Made up of:

Cash with the Government Banking Service 105 231

Cash and cash equivalents as in statement of financial position 105 231

Balance at 31 March 105 231

The clinical commissioning group held no cash and cash equivalents at 31 March 2022 on behalf of patients (31 March 2021 : £0)

The great majority of trade is with NHS England.  As NHS England is funded by Government to provide funding to clinical commissioning groups 

to commission services, no credit scoring for NHS England is considered necessary.
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Current Current

31/03/2022 31/03/2021

£'000 £'000

NHS payables: revenue 122 809

NHS accruals 148 112

Non-NHS and Other WGA payables: revenue 8,530 5,129

Non-NHS and Other WGA accruals 26,201 30,948

Social security costs 77 82

Tax 69 78

Other payables and accruals 1,987 2,713

Total trade & other payables 37,134 39,871

Total current 37,134 39,871

11. Provisions

Current Current

31/03/2022 31/03/2021

£'000 £'000

Other 0 493

Total 0 493

Total current 0 493

Other Total

£'000 £'000

Balance at 01 April 2021 493 493

Reversed unused (493) 0

Balance at 31 March 2022 0 493

Expected timing of cash flows:

Within one year 0 493

Balance at 31 March 2022 0 493

Other Total

£'000 £'000

Balance at 01 April 2020 493 493

Arising during the year 0 0

Balance at 31 March 2021 493 493

Expected timing of cash flows:

Within one year 493 493

Balance at 31 March 2021 493 493

12. Contingencies

The clinical commissioning group has no contingent liabilities as at 31 March 2022 (31 March 2021: None).

The clinical commissioning group had no contingent assets as at 31 March 2022 (31 March 2021: None).

10. Trade and other payables

At 31 March 2022, the clinical commissioning group had no liabilities due in future years under 

arrangements to buy out the liability for early retirement over 5 years (31 March 2021: £0)

The clinical commissioning group had included a provision relating to a potential sustainability issue with 

a provider organisation.  The issue has now been resolved and as the provision was not required it has 

been reversed unused in 2021/22.
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13. Financial instruments

13.1 Financial risk management

13.1.1. Credit risk

13.1.2. Liquidity risk

13.1.3. Financial Instruments

As the cash requirements of NHS England are met through the Estimate process, financial instruments play a more limited role in creating 

and managing risk than would apply to a non-public sector body.  The majority of financial instruments relate to contracts to buy non-

financial items in line with NHS England's expected purchase and usage requirements and NHS England is therefore exposed to little credit, 

liquidity or market risk.

Because the majority of the NHS clinical commissioning group and revenue comes parliamentary funding, NHS clinical commissioning 

group has low exposure to credit risk. The maximum exposures as at the end of the financial year are in receivables from customers, as 

disclosed in the trade and other receivables note.

NHS clinical commissioning group is required to operate within revenue and capital resource limits, which are financed from resources voted 

annually by Parliament. The NHS clinical commissioning group draws down cash to cover expenditure, as the need arises. The NHS clinical 

commissioning group is not, therefore, exposed to significant liquidity risks.

Financial reporting standard IFRS 7 requires disclosure of the role that financial instruments have had during the period in creating or 

changing the risks a body faces in undertaking its activities.

Because NHS clinical commissioning group is financed through parliamentary funding, it is not exposed to the degree of financial risk faced 

by business entities. Also, financial instruments play a much more limited role in creating or changing risk than would be typical of listed 

companies, to which the financial reporting standards mainly apply. The clinical commissioning group has limited powers to borrow or invest 

surplus funds and financial assets and liabilities are generated by day-to-day operational activities rather than being held to change the risks 

facing the clinical commissioning group in undertaking its activities.

Treasury management operations are carried out by the finance department, within parameters defined formally within the NHS clinical 

commissioning group standing financial instructions and policies agreed by the Governing Body. Treasury activity is subject to review by the 

NHS clinical commissioning group and internal auditors.
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13 Financial instruments cont'd

13.2 Financial assets

Financial Assets 

measured at 

amortised cost

Total

31/03/2022 31/03/2022

£'000 £'000

Trade and other receivables with NHSE bodies 285 285

Trade and other receivables with other DHSC group bodies 150 150

Trade and other receivables with external bodies 33 33

Cash and cash equivalents 105 105

Total at 31 March 2022 573 573

Financial assets 

measured at 

amortised cost

Total

31/03/2021 31/03/2021

£'000 £'000

Trade and other receivables with NHSE bodies 1,618 1,618

Trade and other receivables with other DHSC group bodies 132 132

Trade and other receivables with external bodies 675 675

Cash and cash equivalents 231 231

Total at 31 March 2021 2,656 2,656

13.3 Financial liabilities

Financial Liabilities 

measured at 

amortised cost

Total

31/03/2022 31/03/2022

£'000 £'000

Trade and other payables with NHSE bodies 147 147

Trade and other payables with other DHSC group bodies 263 263

Trade and other payables with external bodies 36,580 36,580

Total at 31 March 2022 36,990 36,990

Financial liabilities 

measured at 

amortised cost 

(Restated)

Total 

(Restated)

31/03/2021 31/03/2021

£'000 £'000

Trade and other payables with NHSE bodies 140 140

Trade and other payables with other DHSC group bodies 3,054 3,054

Trade and other payables with external bodies 36,518 36,518

Total at 31 March 2021 39,712 39,712

14. Operating segments

The clinical commissioning group has considered the definition of an operating segment contained within IFRS 8 in 

determining its operating segments, in particular considering the internal reporting to the clinical commissioning group's 

governing body, considered to be the 'chief operating decision maker' of the clinical commissioning group, which was 

used for the purpose of resource allocation and assessment of performance.

All activity performed by the clinical commissioning group relates to its role as a commissioner of healthcare for its 

relevant population.  As a result, the clinical commissioning group considers that it has only one operating segment, 

being the commissioning of healthcare services. 

Comparators restated to reflect mapping changes in 2021/22, with no overall net impact.
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15 Joint arrangements - interests in joint operations

The clinical commissioning group’s shares of the income and expenditure handled by the pooled budget in the financial year were:

15.1 Interests in joint operations

Name of 

arrangement

Parties to the 

arrangement

Description of 

principal 

activities

Income Expenditure Income Expenditure

£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000

Better Care Fund NHS Sunderland 

CCG and 

Sunderland City 

Council

Better Care Fund 0 (167,748) 0 (167,717)

Children's 

Preventative Care

NHS Sunderland 

CCG and 

Sunderland City 

Council

Children's 

Preventative Care 

and improving 

commissioning 

initiatives 

482 (3,006) 490 (1,795)

Amounts recognised in entity's booksAmounts recognised in entity's books

2021-22 2020-21

The clinical commissioning group has entered into two pooled budget arrangements with Sunderland City Council. Both pools are 

hosted by Sunderland City Council.
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16. Related party transactions

Name Title Declaration Related Party Expenditure Income Creditors Debtors

£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000

Ian Pattison Governing Body Chair GP Partner at Southlands Medical Group Southlands Medical Group 1,268 0 77 0

Ian Pattison Governing Body Chair GP Appraiser NHS England 133 725 0 86

Ian Pattison Governing Body Chair Wife is a Portfolio GP NHS England 133 725 0 86

Neil O'Brien Accountable Officer
Working as Accountable Officer/Chief 

Clinical Officer
NHS County Durham CCG 73 690 0 0

Neil O'Brien Accountable Officer
Working as Accountable Officer/Chief 

Clinical Officer
South Tyneside CCG 121 440 0 18

Neil O'Brien Accountable Officer
 Wife works at County Durham and 

Darlington NHS Foundation Trust

County Durham and Darlington 

NHS Foundation Trust
8,282 0 11 0

David Chandler
Chief Officer and Chief 

Finance Officer 

Friends with Assistant Finance Director 

income and Contracting, Newcastle 

Hospitals NHS Foundation Trust

Newcastle Hospitals NHS 

Foundation Trust
12,081 5 5 0

David Chandler
Chief Officer and Chief 

Finance Officer 

Friends with Head of Finance and Business 

Development - South Locality, Cumbria, 

Northumberland Tyne & Wear NHS 

Foundation Trust

Cumbria, Northumberland Tyne 

and Wear NHS Foundation 

Trust
59,020 0 0 0

David Chandler
Chief Officer and Chief 

Finance Officer 

Wife is Assistant Director of Finance – 

Costing & Contracting at Gateshead Health 

NHS Foundation Trust

Gateshead Health NHS 

Foundation Trust
21,312 0 0 2

David Chandler
Chief Officer and Chief 

Finance Officer 

Sister is a nurse in ITU unit South Tyneside 

and Sunderland NHS Foundation Trust

South Tyneside and 

Sunderland NHS Foundation 

Trust

240,748 20 2 18

David Chandler
Chief Officer and Chief 

Finance Officer 
HFMA Northern Branch Chair HFMA 10 0 1 0

David Chandler
Chief Officer and Chief 

Finance Officer 

HFMA Commissioning Faculty Forum Vice 

Chair 
HFMA 10 0 1 0

David Chandler
Chief Officer and Chief 

Finance Officer 
HFMA Trustee HFMA 10 0 1 0

Ann Fox
Director of Nursing, 

Quality and Safety

Honorary title of visiting professor from 

University of Sunderland
University of Sunderland 176 0 0 0

Scott Watson

Director of Contracting, 

Planning and 

Informatics

Friends with Director 

South Tyneside and 

Sunderland NHS Foundation 

Trust

240,748 20 2 18

Tarryn Lake
Associate Director of 

Finance
Friends with Divisional Finance Manager

South Tyneside and 

Sunderland NHS Foundation 

Trust

240,748 20 2 18

Claire Bradford Medical Director 
Deputy Chairman of Northern Cancer 

Alliance (hosted by NHS England)
NHS England 133 725 0 86

Philip Foster
Managing Director, All 

Together Better

Step-son is an Advanced Nurse Practitioner 

in Bridge View Medical Group 

Bridge View Medical Group 
2,265 0 112 0

Philip Foster
Managing Director, All 

Together Better

Son is a Community Pharmacist employed 

by Sunderland GPA
Sunderland GP Alliance 15,088 160 1,622 0

Philip Foster
Managing Director, All 

Together Better

Son’s partner is a pharmacist employed by 

Cumbria, Northumberland Tyne and Wear 

NHS Foundation Trust

Cumbria, Northumberland Tyne 

and Wear NHS Foundation 

Trust

59,020 0 0 0

Martin Weatherhead
Chair, All Together 

Better

GP Partner, Dr Weatherhead and 

Associates

Dr Weatherhead and 

Associates
2,265 0 112 0

Chris Macklin Lay Member
Non Executive Director North Tees and 

Hartlepool NHS Foundation Trust

North Tees and Hartlepool NHS 

Foundation Trust
138 0 0 0

Raj Bethapudi Executive GP
GP Partner,  Galleries Medical Practice - 

The Galleries Medical Group

Galleries Medical Practice - 

The Galleries Medical Group
1,378 0 80 0

Raj Bethapudi Executive GP

Brother is a consultant radiologist at County 

Durham and Darlington NHS Foundation 

Trust

County Durham and Darlington 

NHS Foundation Trust 8,282 0 11 0

Raj Bethapudi Executive GP
Brother is GP Partner in a practice in 

Durham which falls under Durham CCG

NHS County Durham CCG
73 690 0 0

Karthik Gellia Executive GP GP Partner, Dr Gellia and Dr Balaraman Dr Gellia and Dr Balaraman 665 0 43 0

Fadi Khalil Executive GP
GP Partner at The Broadway Medical 

Practice

The Broadway Medical Practice
1,068 0 46 0

Fadi Khalil Executive GP Shareholder in Sunderland GP Alliance Sunderland GP Alliance 15,088 160 1,622 0

Fadi Khalil Executive GP GP Partner at Hylton Medical Group Hylton Medical Group 806 0 92 0

Tracey Lucas Executive GP
GP Partner at Deerness Park Medical Group Deerness Park Medical Group

1,898 0 749 0

Saira Malik Executive GP GP Partner at Sunderland GP Alliance Sunderland GP Alliance 15,088 160 1,622 0

Saira Malik Executive GP

Brother is a Doctor at South Tyneside and 

Sunderland NHS Foundation Trust

South Tyneside and 

Sunderland NHS Foundation 

Trust

240,748 20 2 18

Saira Malik Executive GP

Father Electee public governor South 

Tyneside and Sunderland NHS Foundation 

Trust

South Tyneside and 

Sunderland NHS Foundation 

Trust

240,748 20 2 18

Eric Harrison
Executive Practice 

Manager

Managing Partner at Deerness Park Medical 

Group
Deerness Park Medical Group 1,898 0 749 0

Clare Nesbit
Director of People and 

Primary Care

Ex daughter-in-law is employed by 

Gateshead Health NHS Foundation Trust

Gateshead Health NHS 

Foundation Trust
21,312 0 0 2

Clare Nesbit
Director of People and 

Primary Care

Sister employed by Gateshead Health NHS 

Foundation Trust as the integration agenda 

lead.      

Gateshead Health NHS 

Foundation Trust
21,312 0 0 2

Clare Nesbit
Director of People and 

Primary Care

Sister in law employed as Breast Screening 

Nurse at Gateshead NHS Foundation Trust

Gateshead Health NHS 

Foundation Trust
21,312 0 0 2

Debbie Burnicle Lay Member PPI Voluntary role at Carers Centre Sunderland Carers Centre 75 0 0 0

Pat Harle Lay Member PCCC Lay member of South Tyneside CCG South Tyneside CCG 121 440 0 18

Pat Harle Lay Member PCCC

Appointed member of council of governors 

for South Tyneside and Sunderland NHS 

Foundation Trust

South Tyneside and 

Sunderland NHS Foundation 

Trust

240,748 20 2 18

Matt Thubron
Head of Contracting 

and Performance

Sister-in-law is employed by South Tyneside 

and Sunderland NHS Foundation Trust

South Tyneside and 

Sunderland NHS Foundation 

Trust

240,748 20 2 18

Helen Steadman
Head of Strategy and 

Planning

Brother is Estates Officer at Newcastle 

Hospitals NHS Foundation Trust

Newcastle Hospitals NHS 

Foundation Trust
12,081 5 5 0

Details of related party transactions with individuals are as follows:

During the year 2021-22 the clinical commissioning group has undertaken transactions with the following clinical commissioning group Governing Body members or key management staff, or parties related to 

any of them:
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16. Related party transactions (Continued)

Name Title Declaration Related Party Expenditure Income Creditors Debtors

£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000

Ian Pattison Governing Body Chair GP Partner at Southlands Medical Group Southlands Medical Group 1,152 0 37 0

Ian Pattison Governing Body Chair GP Appraiser NHS England 1,119 2,010 137 1,317

Ian Pattison Governing Body Chair Wife is a Portfolio GP NHS England 1,119 2,010 137 1,317

Neil O'Brien Accountable Officer Working as Accountable Officer/Chief Clinical Officer County Durham CCG 0 510 0 162

Neil O'Brien Accountable Officer Working as Accountable Officer/Chief Clinical Officer South Tyneside CCG 121 392 11 46

Neil O'Brien Accountable Officer  Wife works at County Durham and Darlington NHS 

Foundation Trust

County Durham and Darlington 

NHS Foundation Trust

8,176 0 7 0

David Chandler Chief Finance Officer and 

Deputy Chief Officer

Friends with Assistant Finance Director income and 

Contracting, Newcastle Hospitals NHS Foundation 

Trust

Newcastle Hospitals NHS 

Foundation Trust

12,345 90 254 0

David Chandler Chief Finance Officer and 

Deputy Chief Officer

Friends with Head of Finance and Business 

Development - South Locality, Cumbria, 

Northumberland Tyne & Wear NHS Foundation Trust

Northumberland, Tyne and 

Wear NHS Foundation Trust

56,465 0 207 0

David Chandler Chief Finance Officer and 

Deputy Chief Officer

Wife is Assistant Director of Finance – Costing & 

Contracting at Gateshead Health NHS Foundation Trust

Gateshead Health NHS 

Foundation Trust

21,136 0 0 2

David Chandler Chief Finance Officer and 

Deputy Chief Officer

Sister is a nurse in ITU unit South Tyneside and 

Sunderland NHS Foundation Trust

South Tyneside and 

Sunderland NHS Foundation 

Trust

232,440 1 15 46

David Chandler Chief Finance Officer and 

Deputy Chief Officer

HFMA Northern Branch Chair HFMA 4 0 0 0

David Chandler Chief Finance Officer and 

Deputy Chief Officer

HFMA Commissioning Faculty Forum Chair HFMA 4 0 0 0

David Chandler Chief Finance Officer and 

Deputy Chief Officer

HFMA Trustee HFMA 4 0 0 0

Ann Fox Director of Nursing, Quality 

and Safety

Honorary title from University of Sunderland University of Sunderland 44 0 56 0

Scott Watson Director of Contracting and 

Informatics

Mother employed by South Tynesiide & Sunderland 

NHS Foundation Trust

South Tyneside and 

Sunderland NHS Foundation 

Trust

232,440 1 15 46

Scott Watson Director of Contracting and 

Informatics

Step mother is member of Sunderland City Council Sunderland City Council 68,148 105 12,037 591

Scott Watson Director of Contracting and 

Informatics

Aunt is employed by South Tyneside and Sunderland 

NHS Foundation Trust

South Tyneside and 

Sunderland NHS Foundation 

Trust

232,440 1 15 46

Scott Watson Director of Contracting and 

Informatics

Friends with Director South Tyneside and 

Sunderland NHS Foundation 

Trust

232,440 1 15 46

Tarryn Lake Associate Director of 

Finance

Friends with Divisional Finance Manager South Tyneside and 

Sunderland NHS Foundation 

Trust

232,440 1 15 46

Claire Bradford Medical Director Deputy Chair of Northern Cancer Alliance (hosted by 

NHS England)

NHS England 1,119 2,010 137 1,317

Raj Bethapudi Executive GP GP Partner,  Galleries Medical Practice - The Galleries 

Medical Group

Galleries Medical Practice - 

The Galleries Medical Group

1,559 0 15 0

Raj Bethapudi Executive GP Brother is a consultant radiologist at County Durham 

and Darlington NHS Foundation Trust

County Durham and Darlington 

NHS Foundation Trust

8,176 0 7 0

Raj Bethapudi Executive GP Brother is GP Partner in a practice in Durham which 

falls under Durham CCG

NHS County Durham CCG 0 510 0 162

Karthik Gellia Executive GP GP Partner, Dr Gellia and Dr Balaraman Dr Gellia and Dr Balaraman 678 0 0 0

Fadi Khalil Executive GP GP Partner at The Broadway Medical Practice The Broadway Medical 

Practice

971 0 0 25

Fadi Khalil Executive GP GP Partner at  New Silksworth Medical Practice 

(Sunderland GP Alliance)

Sunderland GP Alliance 13,007 0 468 47

Tracey Lucas Executive GP GP Partner at Deerness Park Medical Group Deerness Park Medical Group 1,982 0 205 0

Saira Malik Executive GP GP Partner at Sunderland GP Alliance Sunderland GP Alliance 13,007 0 468 47

Saira Malik Executive GP Provides advice re ICAR services to South Tyneside 

and Sunderland NHS Foundation Trust

South Tyneside and 

Sunderland NHS Foundation 

Trust

232,440 1 15 46

Saira Malik Executive GP Brother is a Doctor at South Tyneside and Sunderland 

NHS Foundation Trust

South Tyneside and 

Sunderland NHS Foundation 

Trust

232,440 1 15 46

Saira Malik Executive GP Electee public governor South Tyneside and 

Sunderland NHSFT

232,440 1 15 46

Eric Harrison Executive Practice 

Manager

Managing Partner at Deerness Park Medical Group Deerness Park Medical Group 1,982 0 205 0

Clare Nesbit Director of People and 

Primary Care

Ex daughter-in-law is employed by Gateshead Health 

NHS  Foundation Trust

Gateshead Health NHS 

Foundation Trust

21,136 0 0 2

Clare Nesbit Director of People and 

Primary Care

Sister employed by Gateshead Health NHS Foundation 

Trust as the integration agenda lead.      

Gateshead Health NHS 

Foundation Trust

21,136 0 0 2

Clare Nesbit Director of People and 

Primary Care

Sister in law employed as Breast Screening Nurse at 

Gateshead NHS  Foundation Trust

Gateshead Health NHS 

Foundation Trust

21,136 0 0 2

Debbie Burnicle Lay Member PPI Ambassador in a voluntary role acting as a critical 

friend and promoting the needs of carer and how the 

centre can support carers to continue to care for 

Sunderland Carers Centre

Sunderland Carers Centre 50 0 0 0

Pat Harle Lay Member PCCC Lay member of South Tyneside CCG South Tyneside CCG 121 392 11 46

Pat Harle Lay Member PCCC Appointed member of council of governors for South 

Tyneside and Sunderland NHS FT

South Tyneside and 

Sunderland NHS Foundation 

Trust

232,440 1 15 46

Florence Gunn Strategic Practice Nurse Practice Nurse at Forge Medical Practice Forge Medical Practice 1,334 0 40 0

Florence Gunn Strategic Practice Nurse Son is project lead for value based commissioning at 

the North of England Commissioning Support Unit

North of England 

Commissioning Support Unit

5,862 75 128 0

Matt Thubron Head of Contracting and 

Performance

Sister-in-law is employed by South Tyneside and 

Sunderland NHS Foundation Trust

South Tyneside and 

Sunderland NHS Foundation 

Trust

232,440 1 15 46

Helen Steadman Head of Strategy and 

Planning

Brother is Estates Officer at Newcastle Hospitals NHS 

Foundation Trust

Newcastle Hospitals NHS 

Foundation Trust

12,345 90 254 0

During the year 2020-21 the clinical commissioning group has undertaken transactions with the following clinical commissioning group Governing Body members or key management staff, or parties related to any of 

them:

Details of related party transactions with individuals are as follows:
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16. Related party transactions (Continued)

Expenditure Income Creditors Debtors

£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000

Ashburn Medical Centre* 761 0 0 0

Bridge View Medical Group* 2,265 0 112 0

Castletown Medical Centre* 452 0 32 0

Chester Surgery* 385 0 29 0

Concord Medical Practice 743 0 44 0

Deerness Park Medical Group* 1,898 0 749 0

Dr Bhate & El-Shakankery (Riverview Health Centre)* 886 0 120 0

Dr Gellia and Dr Balaraman * (formerly Roker Family 

practice)
665 0 43 0

Dr Stephenson & Partners* 1,649 0 116 0

Forge Medical Practice - Old Forge Surgery* 1,266 0 83 0

Fulwell Medical Centre* 1,319 0 75 0

Galleries Medical Practice - The Galleries Medical 

Group (formerly Dr Dixit Practice)*
1,378 0 80 0

Grangewood Surgery* 980 0 48 0

Happy House Surgery 966 0 72 0

Herrington Medical Centre* 1,214 0 67 0

Hetton Group Practice* 1,872 0 50 0

Houghton Medical Group* 1,042 0 60 0

Hylton Medical Group 806 0 92 0

IJ Healthcare - Harraton Surgery 594 0 38 0

Kepier Medical Practice* 1,231 0 83 0

Millfield Medical Group* 1,867 0 112 0

New Silksworth Medical Practice (GP Alliance) 1,537 0 67 0

New Washington Medical Group * 968 0 104 0

Pallion Family Practice* 1,440 0 155 0

Park Lane Practice* 500 0 41 0

Redhouse Medical Centre* 729 0 64 0

Rickleton Medical Centre* 281 0 33 0

South Hylton Surgery* (GP Alliance) 772 0 45 0

Southlands Medical Group* 1,268 0 77 0

Springwell Medical Group* 899 0 41 0

St. Bede Medical Centre* 1,212 0 66 0

Sunderland GP Alliance 15,088 160 1,622 0

The Broadway Medical Practice* 1,068 0 46 0

The New City Medical Group 849 0 0 0

Villette Surgery* (Dr Bringham & Partners) 830 0 46 0

Village Surgery* (Joshi) 626 0 42 0

Wearside Medical Practice* (Dr Shetty) 1,164 0 88 0

Westbourne Medical Group* 839 0 81 0

* Member Practice of Sunderland GP Alliance https://www.sunderlandgpalliance.co.uk/about-us/for-members/ 

Expenditure Income Creditors Debtors

£000 £000 £000 £000

             76,775 1,040 11,365               4 

The clinical commissioning group is a membership organisation.  The GP Practices of Sunderland are all members of the clinical commissioning group. The table 

below lists the 2021-22 related party transactions with the Member Practices of Sunderland. In addition, the clinical commissioning group works with the Sunderland 

GP Alliance who are part of a collaboration agreement with practices in Sunderland. The table below outlines the transactions with this organisation and outlines the 

practices who are members of each GP alliance.  

Details of related party transactions with individuals are as follows:

Related Party

The Department of Health and Social Care is regarded as a related party. During the year 2021-22 the clinical commissioning group has had a significant 

number of material transactions with entities for which the Department is regarded as the parent Department.

In addition, the clinical commissioning group has had a number of material transactions with other government departments and other central and local 

government bodies in 2021-22. Most of these transactions have been with Sunderland City Council as outlined below.

Other Government Bodies

Sunderland City Council

The Annual Report sets out details of the Sunderland All Together Better Alliance in place from 1 April 2019, which is an ‘alliance’ of providers and commissioners, working 

together to join up out of hospital health and care services and improve health outcomes. The main partners are already listed in this disclosure note, being Sunderland Council, 

the CCG itself, the Sunderland GP Alliance, STSFT and CNTW (value of All Together Better Alliance transactions for year ended 31 March 2022 being £221,181k).

Department of Health and Social Care Entity

South Tyneside and Sunderland NHS Foundation Trust 

Cumbria, Northumberland, Tyne and Wear NHS Foundation Trust 

Gateshead Health NHS Foundation Trust 

North East Ambulance Services NHS Foundation Trust 
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16. Related party transactions (continued)

Expenditure Income Creditors Debtors

£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000

Ashburn Medical Centre* 717 0 28 0

Bridge View Medical Group* - Dr Weatherhead and Cloak 62 0 146 0

Broadway Medical Practice* 971 0 0 25

Castletown Medical Centre* 349 0 22 0

Chester Surgery* 397 0 3 0

Church View Medical Centre* 0 0 5 0

Colliery Medical Group 0 0 0 0

Concord Medical Practice 756 0 26 0

Conishead Medical Group (Dr Hipwell)* 0 0 26 0

Deerness Park Medical Group* 1,982 0 205 0

Dr Bhate & El-Shakankery (Riverview Health Centre)* 862 0 134 0

Dr Gellia and Dr Balaraman * (formerly Roker Family practice) 678 0 27 0

Dr Nathan* 0 0 53 0

Dr Obonna* 0 0 13 0

Dr Stephenson & Partners* 1,935 0 59 0

Dr Weatherhead & Associates* (Bridgeview - merge with Dr Cloak)1 2,367 0 0 0

Forge Medical Practice - Old Forge Surgery* 1,334 0 40 0

Fulwell Medical Centre* 1,313 0 31 0

Galleries Medical Practice - The Galleries Medical Group (formerly Dr Dixit Practice) 1,559 0 15 0

Grangewood Surgery* 1,036 0 35 0

Happy House Surgery 938 0 31 0

Herrington Medical Centre* 1,361 0 43 0

Hetton Group Practice* 1,931 0 15 0

Houghton Medical Group* 1,083 0 48 0

Hylton Medical Group 773 0 49 0

IJ Healthcare - Harraton Surgery 621 0 21 0

Kepier Medical Practice* 1,369 0 18 0

Millfield Medical Group* 1,902 0 72 0

New Silksworth Medical Practice (GP Alliance) 0 0 37 0

New Washington Medical Group3 950 0 105 0

Pallion Family Practice* 1,582 0 11 0

Park Lane Practice* 528 0 15 0

Redhouse Medical Centre* 774 0 29 0

Rickleton Medical Centre* 287 0 9 0

South Hylton Surgery* (GP Alliance) 7 0 17 0

Southlands Medical Group* 1,152 0 37 0

Springwell Medical Group* 887 0 35 0

St. Bede Medical Centre* 1,259 0 32 0

Sunderland GP Alliance 13,007 0 468 47

The New City Medical Group 903 0 0 17

Villette Surgery* (Dr Brigham & Partners) 873 0 41 0

Village Surgery* (Joshi) 640 0 20 0

Wearside Medical Practice* (Dr Shetty) 1,050 0 52 0

Westbourne Medical Group* 871 0 35 0

* Member Practice of Sunderland GP Alliance http://www.sunderlandgpalliance.co.uk/member-practices/ 

1
Dr Wheatherhead merged with Bridgeview Medical Group on 1st April 2020

Other Government Bodies Expenditure Income Creditors Debtors

£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000

Sunderland City Council 68,148 105 12,037 591

Cumbria, Northumberland, Tyne and Wear NHS Foundation Trust 

Gateshead Health NHS Foundation Trust 

North East Ambulance Services NHS Foundation Trust 

In addition, the clinical commissioning group has had a number of material transactions with other government departments and other central and local government 

bodies in 2020-21. Most of these transactions have been with Sunderland City Council as outlined below.

The Annual Report sets out details of the Sunderland All Together Better Alliance in place from 1 April 2019, which is an ‘alliance’ of providers and commissioners, working together to 

join up out of hospital health and care services and improve health outcomes. The main partners are already listed in this disclosure note, being Sunderland Council, the CCG itself, the 

Sunderland GP Alliance, STSFT and CNTW (value of All Together Better Alliance transactions for year ended 31 March 2021 being £222,923k). 

South Tyneside and Sunderland NHS Foundation Trust 

The clinical commissioning group is a membership organisation.  The GP Practices of Sunderland are all members of the clinical commissioning group. The table below 

lists the 2020-21 related party transactions with the Member Practices of Sunderland. In addition, the clinical commissioning group works with the Sunderland GP 

Alliance who are part of a collaboration agreement with practices in Sunderland. The table below outlines the transactions with this organisation and outlines the 

practices who are members of each GP alliance.  

Related Party

The Department of Health and Social Care is regarded as a related party. During the year 2020-21 the clinical commissioning group has had a significant number of 

material transactions with entities for which the Department is regarded as the parent Department.

Department of Health and Social Care Entity
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2021-22 2021-22 Duty 2020-21 2020-21 Duty 

Target Performance Achieved? Target Performance Achieved? 

223H (1) Expenditure not to exceed income 583,047 579,386 Yes 559,739 554,769 Yes

223I (2) Capital resource use does not exceed the amount specified in Directions 0 0 Yes 0 0 Yes

223I (3)

Total Revenue resource use does not exceed the amount specified in 

Directions 582,267 578,605 Yes 559,195 554,226 Yes

223J (1)

Capital resource use on specified matter(s) does not exceed the amount 

specified in Directions 0 0 Yes 0 0 Yes

223J (2)

Revenue resource use on specified matter(s) does not exceed the amount 

specified in Directions 0 0 Yes 0 0 Yes

223J (3)

Revenue administration resource use does not exceed the amount specified 

in Directions 5,478 4,565 Yes 5,457 4,472 Yes

The clinical commissioning group received no capital resource during the year ended 31 March 2022 and incurred no capital expenditure (year ended 31 March 2021: £0)

The financial targets included in the table above are as per CCG Allocations Directions published by NHS England and Improvement.

Performance against the revenue expenditure duties is further analysed below:

2021-22 2021-22 2021-22 2020-21 2020-21 2020-21

Programme Administration Total Programme Administration Total

£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000

Revenue resource 576,789 5,478 582,267 554,010 5,185 559,195

Net operating cost for the financial year 574,040 4,565 578,605 549,754 4,472 554,226

Underspend against in year revenue resource available 2,749 913 3,662 4,256 713 4,969

2021-22 2021-22 2021-22 2020-21 2020-21 2020-21

Programme Administration Total Programme Administration Total

£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000

In year revenue resource available to the clinical commissioning group 596,998 5,478 602,476 574,219 5,185 579,404

Net operating cost for the financial year 574,040 4,565 578,605 549,754 4,472 554,226

Underspend against revenue resource 22,958 913 23,871 24,465 713 25,178

In 2021/22 NHSE/I confirmed that 2020/21 in year surpluses would not be added to CCG brought forward surplus figures as this formed part of the NHSE/I Interim financial regime which included additional funding to support the 

COVID-19 response. In 2020/21 Sunderland CCG delivered a surplus of £4,969k.

The revenue resources outlined in the table above only includes the financial performance against in year resources available to the clinical commissioning group. The table below outlines the clinical commissioning groups cumulative financial 

position incorporating brought forward surpluses from previous financial years which have not been utilised.

NHS Sunderland CCG - Annual Accounts 2021-22

17. Events after the end of the reporting period

There is one non-adjusting post balance sheet event.  This relates to the Health and Social Care Bill which was introduced into the House of Commons on 6 July 2021.  The Bill allows for the 

establishment of Integrated Care Boards (ICB) across England.  ICBs will take on the commissioning functions of CCGs.  The Bill passed on 28th April 2022 and the CCG functions, assets and liabilities 

will therefore transfer to an ICB.  (2020-21: None)

18. Financial performance targets

NHS Clinical Commissioning Group have a number of financial duties under the NHS Act 2006 (as amended).

NHS Clinical Commissioning Group performance against those duties was as follows:

In 2021/22 NHSE/I continued with a revised financial regime in response to the COVID pandemic, which effectively split the financial year in two.  Allocations were made for the first six months (H1)  and then again for the second six months (H2), 

resources were allocated both at CCG level and within systems and performance was assessed over the full financial year.  The most relevant of these systems for Sunderland CCG being the Central Integrated Care Partnership (ICP) which 

contains Sunderland CCG, South Tyneside CCG, County Durham CCG, South Tyneside and Sunderland NHS Foundation Trust and County Durham NHS Fountation Trust. 

For 2021/22 the CCG had a planned surplus of £570k, which was increased to £3,570k following agreement between the CCG and NHSE/I regional team.  This value is included in the underspend of £3,664k above.
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